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Win Hanverky Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries are an
integrated sportswear manufacturer, distributor and retailer for
international sports brands. We have two broad lines of
businesses, namely Manufacturing Business and Distribution and
Retail Business, with geographical markets spanning over
Europe, North America, Mainland China and Hong Kong. We are
the exclusive licensed distributor of Umbro Products in the
Greater China and the owner of the trademark “Diadora” in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau. We believe that our
expertise and knowledge in the sportswear industry, our
established customer network and our integrated, quality and
large-scaled production capability will enable us to capture the
opportunities whenever the market situation is recovered.

The Shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange since 6 September 2006.
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~ MBWEZE Financial Highlights

BEALTEFTEHBER Key Financial Information for the Last Five Years
BE+t-BA=t-RHLEE/
R+=A=+-8
For the year ended 31 December/
As at 31 December
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
BERR Financial Performance
(F#&7xT) (HK$’000)
E: Revenue 3,487,342 3322400 2487519 2,054,091 1,366,056
BERT Operating profit 75,447 400,123 352,967 345,038 167,900
BR P15 B AT A Profit before income tax 79,216 410,219 360,805 332,834 163,253
FERF Profit for year 26,774 334,694 283,420 255,459 132,466
ARARAREFEA Profit attributable to
FEAL & Rl holders of the Company 33,325 290,259 260,600 241,542 123,294
BN Financial Position
(FEr) (HK$°000)
FRBEE Non-current assets 1,008,239 719,938 584,317 433,801 345,376
mBEE Current assets 1,768,929 1,896,482 1,364,808 820,975 729,446
REBEE Current liabilities 732,963 702,582 442,971 517,851 584,769
RBEEFE Net current assets 1,035,966 1,193,900 921,837 303,124 144,677
EEAE Total assets 2,777,168 2,616,420 1,949,125 1,254,776 1,074,822
EEAERRDER Total assets less
current liabilities 2,044,205 1,913,838 1,506,154 736,925 490,053
s Total equity 2,029,194 1,901,098 1,372,147 552,518 263,962
ReRREZEN Cash and cash equivalents 363,272 580,280 567,387 200,985 123,712
EEER Operation Indicators
EFE(%) Gross profit margin (%) 28.3 32.2 34.7 36.7 36.0
FFIEE%) Net profit margin (%) 0.8 10.1 1.4 12.4 9.7
BEERLE (%D Gearing ratio (%)Mete) 5.6 4.2 0.8 0.4 1.2
MELL & (£F) Current ratio (times) 2.4 2.7 3.1 1.6 1.2
FEWIRR 2 BEH (B) Trade receivable
sales period (days) 77 66 62 58 63
REZHEEH(B) Inventory sales period (days) 75 63 54 49 54
Bt - Note:

EEEELXNEEAHARUBES -

Gearing ratio represents the ratio between total borrowings and total
equity.
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FEHE Chairman’s Statement

RABRRESENMAEMAXEEBERE On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to announce the annual
RAR ([R2F]) REMBELE (GBIAE results of Win Hanverky Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
BHEZE-_ZENF+-A=t—-HLEFE subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
MEEEE - December 2008.

ERRR-ARBEBN—F Business Environment - Year of Challenges

ZEENFE . -BRBTHNESHMAKERE 2008 saw a financial crisis of unprecedented scale sweeping
2 - FERRRAERTEMS  BERS across the world. Credit crunches in all major markets have sent
DEBABE XEXEFHLLABRRER many companies into financial hardship. Economies have
MEERE EMESETSEIRIHME slumped with unemployment rates rising and in turn dampening
THEERFE - retail markets and affecting all industries.

RECHREBARE  BMANEEEBR Notwithstanding the difficult operating environment, the sales
FRMeEEEZHERSZ  KDARKMER revenue of our Manufacturing Business managed to maintain
NMEERARELEERZIERFGEEM during the year attributable to our strong manufacturing
B ARNIERFREEERNRETE capabilities and scalable production which are trusted by our key
BERAEECERERNER=[IK LA customers. To cater for the steady orders from major customers
MELABIEERAREEREZ - /M & and potential business, the Group has established three more
EEFEHEAURREREGRANAET factories during the year, thus incurred additional overhead costs
B B RARAEATEEIN D R ENIG and operating expenses. The Group, however, has closed its
ke oldest sub-contracting factory in Dongguan which is expected to
offset part of the increased costs in the coming years.

HREELESNSRAEKNBRETZE & With the US economy seriously affected by the financial turmoil,
ARZ M SR EB AR & A % IR & o R it our active wear export business to the US market was inevitably
RIATE - ZEBKIBELEERES - Wt suffered. The business segment incurred significant loss and thus
AEEHEAR-_SEENFL¥FHEEAEME the Group planned to close down the factory in Jordan, which
EHOZEXENTHRENNEIR - It dedicated to producing active wears for exporting to the US, in
o AEBEREZEFE LT LA AN10%E the first half of 2009. In addition, the Group had made substantial
BEEERERE ZADAKANTERE provision for its 10% stake in a US unlisted company which is the
ZEENY.LHmEERZE - brand owner of N.Y.L., our active wear customer.

ERDEREBEER  HRPEAREREE As for our Distribution and Retail Business, it did not perform well
MEWRBAGXE - ZOBRFANRER in Mainland China and Hong Kong markets either. The segment
NEETHEREETSHERHNZIMMTS did not perform as well as expected during the year because of
KRB -MEZEABRRERTEFETEER the unanticipated slack retail sentiment. To make matter worse,
REFEBRE-—DTEL  BPHERER many international brands conducted clearance sale in the
BREOLREEREFE - Bt Z2HR second half of the year, resulting in price pressure on products
OEFELHRER -&KMATFRE KERR and squeezed margins. Thus the segment incurred loss for the
FEREE-_ZZENFENALS - year under review. We also believe this unfavourable situation

will continue in the entire year of 2009.

—ZZ\F £ 2008 Annual Report 5
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hairman’s Statement

In April 2008, one of the Group’s subsidiaries and Diadora S.p.A.
entered into an agreement to form a joint venture, Winor, to
manufacture, sell and distribute Diadora Products in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau. During the second half of the
year, several marketing and promotion campaigns and exhibitions
had been organised by the Winor Group in Mainland China to
rejuvenate the “Diadora” brand and pave way for future business
development.

Embrace Challenges and Fighting Fit

Looking to 2009, we believe the rocky economies in Mainland
China and Hong Kong will continue to present challenges to the
Group. We expect orders from our existing major customers to be
reduced. However, the Group is confident of closing more
business deals with new customers, especially local brand
products in the PRC market. Improving operational efficiency and
reducing operating overhead expenses against sales are
paramount to bracing the business of the Group. We will regularly
review our operational structure to identify room for streamlining
business processes, eliminating redundancies and benefiting
from the scale of the organisation. For the same objective, the
former Active Wear Business under the Manufacturing Business
will be scaled down substantially to minimise negative financial
impact on the Group. Taking into consideration all these
measures, the Group is optimistic about reporting stable
segmental performance in the coming year.

On the wholesale and retail fronts, the markets are expected to
stay weak in Mainland China and Hong Kong in the coming year.
We will consolidate our retail network by closing loss incurring
outlets and open new shops where business potential is strongly
visible. The Group will take advantage of the current poor market
climate to negotiate for better shop rentals and leasing terms.

For Umbro Products, we will step up sales promotion to speed up
turnaround thus alleviate inventory costs. The Group will
consolidate its distributor base and focus on key accounts to
streamline the business. It will also tighten collaboration with
Umbro to develop new generation products of outstanding design
and quality. We are confident of rejuvenating our Distribution
Business in the near future. For the Diadora Distribution
Business, through the joint venture formed with Diadora S.p.A.,
the Group will continue to develop products for the PRC market
and adhere to the target of opening 200 shops by the end of
20009.

KE&EEZERARZXFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited



FEH/E Chairman’s Statement

AEBIUER-_ZZNFHEEHEAERAX The Group did not make significant capital expenditure
AE - R-ZEENF+ZA=+—-H #EM commitment for 2009. We are in a net cash position of HK$363.3
W3 £ F 48 4363,300,00058 T » ETRE 4 million as at 31 December 2008, and expect cash balance to
BEE-—SRARBZENEF-_RA=TN\H keep building up (net cash balance increased to HK$487.4 as at
MR QEZE € FRERITEZ487,400,000% 28 February 2009, unaudited) to give the Group greater flexibility
) WEIBERAEEEE T ETSHEBE to ramp up operations once the market begins to improve.
BELRBERER -

BERR  ARR—FHEETENSBIE— Overall, it will not be smooth sailing for the industry in the year
MEIE - XMEBEAWEEED  £RETHEH ahead. We are likely to see industry peers lacking in financial
HEZMHEELTE - ZRAEE - £f#%  strength to be ousted from the market. As for the Group, it will
BORARENE  BABRRNBERESR strive to enhance operational efficiency, impose stringent cost
BREBERNUERR - BAPABEFER control and ensure it is in a solid financial position. We will focus
BEREANTENEE > BUBHRERNE resources on the profitable business segments and streamline or

BENER - AEECEZUG LEEZ shut down less efficient operations. The Group is poised to
E-EHRERRBEFREENEH - capture opportunities when the economic environment begins to

improve in 2010.

RABENKERHESERERBE—F | thank my fellow board members for the contributions and efforts

RAEAEBNRBEEEMFELENERRS on strategic development they provided to the Group in the past

ho THELBRREE - AEEEREE year and look forward to us working together to overcome the

BURMEEELBRE  NEEE  RHE hurdles ahead. The Group will remain vigilant and adopt prudent

BHEAARFRFMERNERF - business strategies, in other words, fight fit with the aim of
achieving ultimate rewards for Shareholders.

FER LI Kwok Tung Roy
FE Chairman
B8 —TERFE=ZA=-THAH Hong Kong, 25 March 2009
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2008, despite the global
financial turmoil, the Group was able to achieve a 5.0% growth in
revenue to HK$3,487.3 million from HK$3,322.4 million for the
year 2007.

Gross profit of the Group amounted to HK$986.4 million,
representing a decrease of 7.7%, with gross profit margin
decreased to 28.3% against 32.2% for the year 2007. Operating
profit also decreased from HK$400.1 million to HK$75.4 million.
Operating profits included non-cash impairment losses on certain
assets of HK$131.7 million and HK$6.9 million, respectively in
2008 and 2007 (the “Impairment Losses”), and a non-recurring
gain on de-recognition of licence rights of HK$33.5 million in
2007 (details in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements)
(the “Non-recurring Gain”). Excluding the Impairment Losses and
the Non-recurring Gain, the operating profit for the year ended 31
December 2008 would have decreased by 44.5% from HK$373.5
million in 2007 to HK$207.1 million in 2008, reflecting primarily
the unsatisfactory performance of the manufacture and sale of
active wear products to the US market with consumer sentiment
severely dampened by the global financial crisis that hit in the
second half of 2008.

Net finance income decreased from HK$18.8 million to HK$6.7
million mainly attributable to the continuous reduction of interest
rate and decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the year,
squeezing interest income from bank deposits of the Group.

The effective tax rate increased significantly to 66.2% as
compared to 18.4% in 2007 mainly because deferred tax assets
are not recognised in current year for loss making subsidiaries
while profit making subsidiaries were still subject to income tax
expenses.

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company was
HK$33.3 million and basic earnings per Share were HK2.6 cents.

The Board recommends payment of a final dividend of HKO0.8
cents per Share for the year ended 31 December 2008.

KE&EEZERARZXFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited
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# Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is an integrated manufacturer, distributor and retailer
for renowned international sports brands. In response to the rapid
changes of the operating and business environment during the
year, the Group changed its lines of businesses and consolidated
its three previous business lines,

namely “Sportswear

n oo«

Manufacturing”, “Sportswear Distribution and Retail” and “Active

and Outer Wear”, into two new business lines, namely

“Manufacturing” and “Distribution and Retail”. The Directors
considered that the new basis of business identification provides
a more appropriate presentation of the current business
environment and operations. Further segment information
regarding the two lines of business is set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements. The financial performances of
the two new business lines are summarised as below, and certain
comparative amounts have also been restated to conform to the

current year presentation.

Manufacturing Business

The Group’s Manufacturing Business operates mainly on OEM
basis for international sports brands. Most of the Group’s
products are exported and sold to Europe, North America and
Asia. During the year, the Group was able to maintain its sales to
key customers. Furthermore, during the first half of the year, the
Group expanded production capacity and established new
factories to make sure it has sufficient capacity to cater for
demand from existing customers and new customers. However,
the increase in manufacturing business was markedly eroded by
the reduction in the manufacture and sales of active wear
products because of the downturn of the US market. Significant
sales rebates had to be offered to customers to maintain
reasonable level of sales in the US market and amid the negative
consumer sentiment resulting from the global economic tsunami.
As a result, Manufacturing Business achieved only a 6.8%
increase in sales revenue to HK$2,834.1 million, accounting for
80.3% of the Group’s total sales revenue as compared to 79.8%
(as restated) for the year 2007.

Apart from offering sales rebates for active wear products, the
Group also faced adverse operating conditions including rising
labour cost and depreciation of the newly acquired plant and
machinery after new factories were set up in Mainland China
during the year. As a result, the segmental gross profit margin
decreased from 28.6% at HK$759.3 million (restated) in 2007 to
25.7% at HK$728.3 million in 2008.

—Z2Z\EE$ 2008 Annual Report
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Apart from inflation and appreciation of RMB in the first half of
2008 which pushed up operating and administrative costs such
as staff costs, transportation expenses, and other office and
factory overheads, etc, during the first half of the year, the newly
established factories in Mainland China commanded set up
expenses, additional administrative staff costs, rental expenses
and subsequently depreciation of property, plant and equipment,
etc. In addition, instead of making profits in previous years, loss
was incurred from sale of active wear products in the US market
this year. To cope with the adversity, the Group scaled down the
active wear business and certain impairment provisions were
made for the closure of the Jordan factory (which included
provision for termination benefits and impairment of property,
plant and equipment) of HK$15.5 million and the Group’s equity
interest in a US unlisted company of HK$26.0 million during the
year. Because of the above factors, operating profit for the year
substantially decreased to HK$158.9 million with profit margin at
5.6% (2007 (as restated): HK$269.5 million with its margin at
10.2%).

Distribution and Retail Business

This segment includes the businesses of distribution of Umbro
Products through the T&S Group, distribution of Diadora Products
through the Winor Group and retail of multi-brand products and
distribution of merchandise through the Win Sports Group.

Segmental sales revenue increased by 3.8% to HK$695.6 million,
representing 19.7% of the Group’s total sales revenue as
compared to 20.2% for 2007; whereas segmental gross profit
margin decreased to 37.1% (2007: 46.2%).
segment did not perform as well as expected during the year

In addition, the

because of the unanticipated slack retail sentiment. To rid the
excessive stock against poor consumer sentiment as a result of
the global financial turmoil, the Group had to offer greater sales
discounts to accelerate stock clearance and boost sales volume
and amounts. Thus, the gross profit margin of this business was
inevitably squeezed.

KE&EEZERARZXFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited
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# Management Discussion and Analysis

Segmental operating loss was HK$81.1 million (2007: profit of
HK$137.9 million with margin at 20.6%). The first reason for the
decrease was the drop in gross profit as explained above. Other
factors included the full year impact of incorporating the Win
Sports Group in 2008 after it became a subsidiary of the Group in
April 2007, last year’s operating profit comprising Non-recurring
Gain of which no such gain was made in current year, and
increased spending in promotion and advertising to enhance
consumer awareness and the images of the brands and the
Group. Furthermore, the Winor Group, which was established in
April 2008, incurred trademark amortisation, brand promotion and
marketing and various selling and administrative expenses. Also,
the poor market environment commanded provisions for
impairments on goodwill, inventory and certain receivables
amounting to HK$54.8 million. The above-mentioned factors
inevitably dragged down operating profit and the profit margin of
the segment for the year. Detailed discussions of the sales
performance and profit margins are set out below:

Distribution of Umbro Products

The T&S Group has the exclusive rights to distribute Umbro
Products in the Greater China region. Sales revenue from this
business was stable at HK$566.6 million against HK$573.0
million in 2007. The business reported growth in sales revenue in
the first half of the year, but the increase was significantly eroded
by the decline in sales in the second half year after the global
financial turmoil began. Also, as discussed above, the T&S Group
had to offer more competitive sales discounts to attract new
customers and maintain reasonable market share. As a result,
the gross profit margin of the business shrank from 48.0% to
37.7% during the year.

As at 31 December 2008, the T&S Group had a network
comprising over 110 Umbro product distributors operating
approximately 1,480 points-of-sale in the Greater China region
(of which approximately 1,350 were in Mainland China). The Win
Sports Group was also one of the distributors of Umbro Products.
Details of its sales network are presented below.

—Z2Z\EE$ 2008 Annual Report
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Distribution of Diadora Products

During the year, the Group continued to expand its Distribution
and Retail Business. On 7 April 2008, Windia Holdings Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Diadora S.p.A.
entered into an agreement to form a joint venture, Winor, to
manufacture, sell and distribute Diadora Products in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau.

The above transaction constituted a discloseable transaction of
the Company under the Listing Rules. Its details were set out in
the circular to Shareholders dated 28 April 2008.

During the year, the Winor Group was still at the initial setup
stage, but several marketing and promotion campaigns and
exhibitions had been organised during the second half of the year
to promote the new image of “Diadora” so as to capture potential
sales revenue in the coming years. Furthermore, the amortisation
costs of the Diadora trademarks amounting to HK$5.2 million has
been charged to the income statement during the year.

As at 31 December 2008, the Winor Group had a network
comprising 22 Diadora product distributors operating

approximately 60 points-of-sale in the in Mainland China.

Retail of Multi-brand Products

The Win Sports Group operates mainly sportswear retail business
selling products of various sportswear brands in Mainland China
and Hong Kong. The Group acquired an additional 25% stake in
Win Sports, which became a 75%-owned indirect subsidiary of
the Group since March 2007.

For comparison, had the sales revenue of the Win Sports Group
been consolidated into the Group starting from 1 January 2007,
sales revenue from this business would have increased by 0.6%
to HK$202.8 million and the gross profit margin would have
reduced from 34.9% to 25.5% for the current year. Facing the
same problem as the T&S Group, the Win Sports Group also had
to offer major discounts to make sales, especially during the
second half of the year when the financial turmoil broke. The cost
for maintaining a reasonable sales volume was a narrow profit
margin. High rental expenses in Mainland China and Hong Kong
also presented pressure on the Win Sports Group.

As at 31 December 2008, the Win Sports Group had 11 self-
managed retail shops in Hong Kong and 100 mono-brand shops
in Mainland China.

KE&EEZERARZXFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited
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# Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL POSITION AND LIQUIDITY

The Group generally finances its operations with internally
generated cashflow and bank facilities. Despite the looming
global financial downturn, the Group was able to maintain a
sound and healthy financial position during the year. As at 31
December 2008, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
amounting to HK$363.3 million (2007: HK$580.3 million). The
decrease was mainly due to capital expenditure incurred for items
of property, plant and equipment and acquisition of Diadora
trademarks. Cash and cash equivalent, however, have been
increased to HK$487.4 million as at 28 February 2009
(unaudited).

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had bank borrowings
amounting to HK$113.3 million (2007: HK$79.7 million), all
subject to interest payable at floating rates and the majority of
them were denominated in RMB. The Group did not enter into
any interest rate swap to hedge against risks associated with
interest rates. As at 31 December 2008, the Group still had
unutilised banking facilities amounting to HK$439.9 million (2007:
HK$392.4 million). The gearing ratio, being total bank borrowings
divided by total equity, as at 31 December 2008 was 5.6% (2007:
4.2%).

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group’s sales and major materials purchase are mostly
denominated in US Dollars, while certain purchases or expenses,
e.g. staff cost and costs of raw materials sourced in China, are
settled in other currencies, such as Hong Kong Dollars and RMB.
During the year, the Group did not use any derivative instruments
to hedge against foreign currency exposure as the Directors
considered such exposure to be insignificant.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2008, the total issued share capital of the
Company was HK$126.8 million (2007: HK$126.8 million),
comprising 1,268.4 million (2007: 1,268.4 million) ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each. There was no change of capital structure during
the year.

—EF\FEFIR 2008 Annual Report
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNDERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had approximately 17,000
employees (2007: approximately 17,000 employees). The Group
remunerates employees based on their performance, working
experience and prevailing market conditions. Other employee
benefits include mandatory provident fund, insurance, medical
coverage and a share option scheme.

PROPSPECTS

The unprecedented global economic and market meltdown that
started in September 2008 have shaken the foundation of many
large corporations. We believe the growing anxiety about job
security among the working population will continue to dampen
consumer confidence and in turn cause the retail market to
contract further in 2009. We will keep a vigilant watch on the
changing market landscape and streamline our businesses
accordingly. Although challenges are expected for the world
economy in 2009, we believe the Group is poised to capture
opportunities when the economic environment begins to improve
in 2010.

Manufacturing Business

The performance achieved by the segment during the year is
proof of its solid fundamentals given the very unfavourable
business environment for manufacturers. Confident of its ability to
meet the needs of key customers and gain new customers, and
ready to streamline businesses to boost cost effectiveness, the
Group is optimistic about the future of the segment although the
outlook of 2009 will be still very challenging.

We have strong manufacturing capabilities and a scalable
production which are trusted by its key customers, but because of
the poor market sentiment, the Directors expect orders from
existing major customers to be reduced. However, We are
confident of securing new customers and handsome business
deals with them.

KE&EEZERARZXFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited
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# Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group closed the factory in Jordan, which was in line with its
decision to scale down the former Active Wear Business under
the segment and minimise negative financial impact on the
Group. The Group also closed the oldest factory in Mainland
China as well in order to save cost for 2009 and to reduce
capacity. We will continue to review our operational structure to
identify room for streamlining business processes and eliminating
redundancies, and ensure we benefit from the scale of the
organisation at all times. Improving operational efficiency and
reducing operating overhead expenses against sales are of
paramount importance to sustaining growth of the Group’s
business, hence they will also be the focuses of the Group in the
coming year.

Distribution and Retail Business

We expect a continuously challenging market for the segment in
2009 with both the wholesale and retail markets in Mainland
China and Hong Kong likely to remain in the slump. To rejuvenate
our distribution and retail business, we will:

(1) consolidate its retail network by closing loss incurring outlets
and opening new shops where there is strong business
potential;

(2) target to open 200 shops for the Diadora Distribution
Business by the end of 2009;

(3) step up sales promotion for Umbro Products to clear stock
and drive sales;

(4) consolidate the Umbro product distributor base and focus on
key accounts to streamline the business; and

(5) tighten collaboration with Umbro to develop new generation
products of outstanding design and quality.

Last but not least, the Group will exercise prudence and impose
stringent cost control to brace its solid financial position. Without
making significant capital expenditure commitment for 2009, we
expect cash balance to keep building up, which will give the
Group greater flexibility to ramp up operations once the market
begins to improve.

—Z2Z\EE$ 2008 Annual Report
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B Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LI Kwok Tung Roy, aged 58, is our executive Director, our co-
founder and chairman. Mr. LI is the elder brother of Mr. LEE Kwok
Leung. Mr. LI is responsible for strategic planning and overall
management of our Group. Mr. LI has over 30 years of
experience in the apparel industry and handling client
relationship. Mr. LI is a committee member of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference in He Yuan city,

Guangdong province of the PRC.

LAI Ching Ping, aged 58, is our executive Director, our co-
founder, deputy chairman and chief executive officer. Mr. LAl
oversees the merchandising functions including production and
purchasing teams within the Manufacturing Business of our
Group and is also responsible for the overall management of our
Group. Mr. LAl has over 30 years of experience in the apparel
industry. Mr. LAl is a committee member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference in Yun Fu city, Guangdong
province of the PRC.

CHEUNG Chi, aged 42, is our executive Director, chief financial
officer and company secretary. Mr. CHEUNG is responsible for
our overall financial management, merger and acquisition and
corporate finance projects. Prior to joining us in 2005, Mr.
CHEUNG had been the executive vice president and chief
financial officer of Aspire Holdings Ltd. which is a member of
China Mobile Communications Corporation. Mr. CHEUNG had
helped to set up its business model and establish a strategic
alliance with Vodafone and Hewlett Packard. Mr. CHEUNG had
also been the chief financial officer of eBIS Co, Ltd., and the
financial controller of Liuzhou ZF Machinery Co. Ltd. and a senior
consultant of Arthur Andersen & Co. in which he was responsible
for several initial public offering projects. He has over 16 years of
experience in financial management. Mr. CHEUNG obtained a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy from the City Polytechnic
of Hong Kong and an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
in 1992 and 2004 respectively. Mr. CHEUNG is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountant.

KE&EEZERARZXFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited
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LEE Kwok Leung, aged 46, is our executive Director. Mr. LEE is
the younger brother of Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy. Mr. LEE is
responsible for technology implementation and overseeing the
fabric knitting and dyeing business of our Group. Mr. LEE has
been with us for over 20 years after his graduation from the York
University in 1987 with a Bachelor of Arts degree.

WONG Wai Tak Victor, aged 48, is our executive Director. Mr.
WONG is responsible for overseeing cost control, product
development, garment production and quality control of all
production facilities of our Manufacturing Business. Mr. WONG
joined us in December 2007 and has over 20 years of experience
in garment industry. Prior to joining us, Mr. WONG had been the
founder of Demokritus Consultancy Co., a management
consulting business. Mr. WONG had also been the director of Liz
Claiborne Inc., chief operation officer of Clover Group
International Limited, group product manager of Li & Fung
(Trading) Limited, fabric sourcing manager and business
development manager of Levi Strauss Eximco and the senior
merchandising manager of Mountain Rose Limited (for Polo
Ralph Lauren in Hong Kong). Mr. WONG obtained a High
Diploma in Business Administration and Communication,
Advertising and Media from Greenwich Business College, London
in 1982. He is a member of Hong Kong Intimate Apparel

Industries Association.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHAN Kwong Fai, aged 62, is our independent non-executive
Director. Dr. CHAN joined us in April 2006. Dr. CHAN has been in
the academic field for over 30 years and is currently an Associate
Professor at the Department of Management and Marketing of
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Dr. CHAN is also an
author of several publications in the business management area.
Dr. CHAN graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor degree in Social Science in 1971 and obtained
his Master of Business Management from the University of
Adelaide and Doctor of Philosophy from the University of South
Australia in 1981 and 2004 respectively.

—Z2Z\EE$ 2008 Annual Report
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KWAN Kai Cheong, aged 59, is our independent non-executive
Director. He joined us in April 2006. Mr. KWAN is currently the
president of Morrison & Company Limited, a business
consultancy firm, and the independent non-executive director of
several listed companies in Hong Kong including Henderson
Sunlight Asset Management Limited, Hutchison Harbour Ring
Limited, Hutchison Telecommunications International Limited
(also listed on the New York Stock Exchange), Soundwill
Holdings Limited and SPG Land (Holdings) Limited. He is also
the non-executive director of China Properties Group Limited and
JF Household Furnishings Limited, shares of which are both
listed on the Stock Exchange. He previously worked for Merrill
Lynch & Co. Inc. and was the president for its Asia Pacific region.
Mr. KWAN was the non-executive director of being China Medical
and Bio Science Limited (provisional liquidators being appointed)
until 20 May 2008. Mr. KWAN was also previously the
independent non-executive director of TS Telecom Technologies
Limited (subsequently renamed as Great World Company
Holdings Ltd on 12 December 2008, whose shares are listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange) (resigned
on 23 January 2008).

Mr. KWAN completed the Stanford Executive Program in 1992.
He also holds a Bachelor of Accountancy (Honours) degree from
the University of Singapore. He is a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in Australia and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors.

MA Ka Chun, aged 57, is our independent non-executive
Director. Mr. MA joined us in June 2006. Mr. MA has been in the
apparel industry for over 20 years and is currently a director of
Fashionmark Holdings Limited, principally engaging in the
manufacture of apparels for some international fashion brands
with production bases in Zhuhai and Zhongshan, the PRC. Mr.
MA holds a Bachelor of Social Science degree from the
University of Hong Kong.

WUN Kwang Vincent, aged 59, is our independent non-executive
Director. Mr. WUN joined us in April 2006. He is currently the
managing director of Pinefield Industries Ltd, a manufacturer of
wooden products. Mr. WUN obtained a Master of Business
Administration degree from the Harvard University in 1979.

KE&EEZERARZXFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CHAN Kam Cheong, aged 53, is the chief executive of Al-Aham
and is responsible for overseeing our production facility in Jordan
and the NYL Business. Before joining our Group, Mr. CHAN had
his own business of developing, manufacturing and exporting
apparel to the US. Mr. CHAN joined our Group in 2000 when we
acquired a 60% interest in Gold Chase Limited. He obtained a
Higher Diploma in Textile Technology from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic in 1979.

WONG Hiu Man, aged 42, is the managing director of our
Distribution Business for the brand “Umbro”. Mr. WONG joined us
in 1998 and became the group financial controller and was
promoted to be our managing director of our Distuibution
Business in March 2007, overseeing the distribution business of
Umbro Products. Prior to joining us, he held various positions,
including assistant corporate relationship manager and assistant
division manager in the import/export department in HSBC in
Hong Kong for 5 years. He also worked for BP Chemicals Limited
in UK from 1990 to 1992. He was awarded a scholarship from the
Hong Kong Bank Foundation in 1986 to study for a Bachelor
degree in Business Administration at the University of Bath in UK,
and in 1988, he was also granted the Arthur Andersen Prize for
Financial Management.

TAM Keung, aged 57, is the managing director of our Distribution
Business for the brand "Diadora" and has over 30 years of
experience in wholesale and retail industry. Mr. TAM joined us in
2003 as the sales director of our Distribution Business for the
brand "Umbro" and was promoted to be the managing director of
Distribution Business for the brand "Diadora" in June 2008
responsible for overseeing the distribution business of Diadora
Products. Prior to joining us, Mr. TAM had been the sales and
merchandising manager of Isetan department store in Hong Kong
and the general merchandising manager of Robinson department
store in Singapore. He obtained a Bachelor degree in Chinese
Arts and Literature from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in
1976.

—Z2Z\EE$ 2008 Annual Report
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BE Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Armand A. GHIEUW, aged 58, is the managing director of our
Retail Business. Mr. GHIEUW joined us in October 2008 and has
over 30 years of experience in retailing, wholesaling and
marketing consumer products in Asia. Prior to joining us, Mr.
GHIEUW had been the director of Jockey Far East Limited and
the regional marketing manager of Triumph Intemational
Overseas Limited. He also served in senior marketing capacities
with intemational brands like Levi Strauss, Dior, and Bausch &
Lomb. He obtained a Master degree in International Management
from the Thunderbird Graduate School of Global Management in
the US in 1976 and a Bachelor of Arts degree in Journalism from
the San Jose State University in the US in 1975.
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¥ EAM|ME Corporate Governance Report

The Board recognises the importance of incorporating elements
of good corporate governance into the management structure and
the internal control procedures of the Group so as to ensure that
all business activities of the Group and the decision making
process are properly regulated.

During the year under review, the Company has complied with
the applicable code provisions and most of the recommended
best practices set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made enquiry
of all Directors, they all have confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard as set out in the Model Code
throughout the accounting period covered by this annual report.

Board of Directors

The overall management of the Group’s business is vested in the
Board.

The Board is responsible for governing the Group and managing
assets entrusted by the Shareholders. Its principal
responsibilities include the formulation of the Group’s business
strategies and management objectives, monitoring and
overseeing the performance of the Group, setting the Group’s
values and standards and ensuring a prudent and effective
framework of internal control is in place to enable risks to be
assessed and managed.

The day-to-day operations of the Group are delegated to the
Chief Executive Officer and the management of the Group. The
delegated functions and work task are periodically reviewed.

—EF\FEFIR 2008 Annual Report
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S)a & Corporate Governance Report

Composition

The Board currently comprises five executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors, whose biographical details
and family relationships among the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 16 to 20.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound knowledge, experience and/or expertise relevant to
the business operation and development of the Group.

All Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the Shareholders and have exercised their
duties with care, skill and diligence, contributing to the successful
performance of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are segregated. The
Chairman of the Board is Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy. The Chief
Executive Officer is Mr. LAl Ching Ping. There is a clear
segregation between the Chairman’s responsibility for the
management of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s
responsibility for the management of the day-to-day operations of
the Group’s business.

Appointment of Independent Non-Executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors serve the relevant function
of bringing independent judgment on the development,
performance and risk management of the Group. Each of the
Group’s independent non-executive Directors has been appointed
for a term of three years and subject to retirement by rotation at

least once every three years.

All of them have satisfied the independence criteria and the
Company confirmed that it has received a confirmation from each
of them pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Directors
consider them to be independent.

KE&EEZERARZXFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited
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¥ ERME Corporate Governance Report

Certain committees have been set up under the Board to
supervise the management and administrative functions of the
Group. They include:

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 18
April 2006 with written terms of reference. The primary duties of
the Remuneration Committee include making recommendations
to the Board on the policy and structure of all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration. The Company’s emolument policy is to ensure that
the remuneration offered to employees including executive
Directors and senior management is based on the skills,
knowledge, responsibilities and involvement in the Company’s
affairs. The remuneration packages are also determined by
reference to the Company’s performance and profitability,
remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing
market conditions. The emolument policy for independent non-
executive Directors, mainly comprising directors’ fees, is subject
to an annual assessment with reference to the market standard.
Individual director and senior management would not be involved
in deciding their own remuneration.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee has
reviewed and determined the remuneration packages for the
Directors. The remuneration of Directors comprises basic salary,
pensions and discretionary bonus. Details of the amount of
emoluments of Directors for the year ended 31 December 2008
are set out in note 24(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Members of the Remuneration Committee comprise Dr. CHAN
Kwong Fai (Chairman), Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy and Mr. KWAN Kai
Cheong, two of whom are independent non-executive Directors.

—EF\FEFIR 2008 Annual Report
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S)a & Corporate Governance Report

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 18 April
2006 with written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee
is mainly responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors and the management of the
Board succession. It carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorship with reference to the
selection guidelines which include appropriate professional
knowledge and industry experience, personal ethics, integrity and
personal skills. The Nomination Committee also considers
referrals and engagement of external recruitment professionals
when necessary and makes recommendations to the Board for
selection and approval.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee has
recommended the re-election of all the Directors to the Board for
approval.

Members of the Nomination Committee comprise Mr. WUN
Kwang Vincent (Chairman), Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy, Mr. LAl Ching
Ping and Mr. MA Ka Chun, two of whom are independent non-
executive Directors.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 18 April 2006
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee include
reviewing, overseeing and supervision of the effectiveness of our
financial reporting processes, internal control systems and risk
management. The Audit Committee shall comprise at least three
members with the majority being independent non-executive
Directors.

KE&EEZERARZXFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited
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¥ ERME Corporate Governance Report

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit
Committee in 2008:

» review of and recommendation for the Board’s approval of the
2008 consolidated financial statements and 2008 unaudited
interim consolidated financial information with a focus on
compliance with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and
other requirements in relation to financial reporting;

« discussion with the external auditor and the management on
accounting policies and practices;

+ review of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
system,;

» approval of the audit fees and terms of engagement of the
external auditor; and

« review of independence of the external auditor and
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
external auditor.

Members of the Audit Committee comprise Mr. KWAN Kai
Cheong (Chairman), Mr. WUN Kwang Vincent, Dr. CHAN Kwong
Fai and Mr. MA Ka Chun, all being independent non-executive
Directors.

Attendance of Meetings

The Board holds regular Board meetings, Remuneration
Committee meeting, Nomination Committee meeting and Audit
Committee meetings to discuss the Group’s businesses,
operations, development and conduct. All important issues are
discussed in a timely manner. The attendance record of each
Director at the aforesaid meetings is set out below:

—ZZ/\£5§ 2008 Annual Report
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BE_Z2RNF+-A=t+-HL
FEHE /SGEREESERE

Number of meetings attended/

eligible to attend for the year ended
31 December 2008

FMEsE

Ezges =f
Remuneration

Board Committee

Name of Director Meeting Meeting

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy ' 4/4 Al
Mr. LAl Ching Ping @ 4/4 N/A
Mr. CHEUNG Chi 4/4 N/A
Mr. LEE Kwok Leung 4/4 N/A
Mr. CHOW Chi Wai 4/4 N/A

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. CHAN Kwong Fai 25 3/4 Al

Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong "¢ 4/4 11

Mr. MA Ka Chun 35 4/4 N/A

Mr. WUN Kwang Vincent 4° 3/4 N/A
Notes:

1. Members of Remuneration Committee

2. Chairman of Remuneration Committee

3. Members of Nomination Committee

4. Chairman of Nomination Committee

5. Member of Audit Committee

6. Chairman of Audit Committee

KE&EEZERARZAT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited
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Committee

Meeting

11
11
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11
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Meeting

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
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¥ ERME Corporate Governance Report

EERER Accountability and Audit

EXTEHHESAARELEEMERE - The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the

REDEHRE CEASBESTMHLASHE financial statements of the Group. In preparing the financial

HNEBMBRESEL  FEBRERIE statements, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued

BEFRBUERTEEEERNEANTIES by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants have

AHEESIRNGREMERRM T2 been adopted. The principal accounting polilies, which have been
consistently applied to all the years, adopted for the preparation
of financial statements of the Group are set out in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AABNEREMAMEREEENANEEN The Company’s external auditor’s responsibility on the financial
BRENETZBHIARKNFERELITEI8EN statements of the Group is set out in the independent auditor’s

BIURHMBE report on pages 47 to 48 of this annual report.

BEFA > OADBRNIZYAMELIRKE During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the

BHMEEMIAOMEOT : Company’s external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers is set out
as follows:

TERT
fR % 14 & Nature of services HK$’000
¥ E BR 7% Audit services 4,100
FRERE (HE) Non-audit services (Note) 675

4,775

Mk FRBREEEEHTBHEEN BT Note: Non-audit services include review of interim financial information,
HERFRREBEERE - certain agreed-upon procedures and taxation related services.

A EB BE Internal Control

EXSASAEENRNELERF Y28 The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control

NAEBAINELRE (MK ZCERSHEE procedures and for reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s

HEREBREE) BRW internal control system which includes financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.

NEBHOER  EBRREENEBEEH The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and

HEWER AEFNAPEERAERYES management of risks associated with its business activities. The

BEWREBEGEAGRMAFER  WEE Group’s internal control is designed to provide reasonable

LREEESHELMNEARE  URBHER assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage

Big o and eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
fulfillment of business objective.

EAEIEEEW EEERNAEENSEZR During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review
SRR TEHERERHE of, and is satisfied with, the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group.
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- EZ8]/HE Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing,

distribution and retailing of garment products, including
sportswear and related accessories. Sales are primarily under an
OEM arrangement to customers in Europe, North America and
Asia and wholesale and retail modes in Mainland China and

Hong Kong.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 51 of
this report.

The Board recommends a payment of final dividend of HKO0.8
cents per Share for the year ended 31 December 2008, subject to
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to be held on Monday, 18 May 2009, payable to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company at the close of business on Wednesday, 13 May
2009. The final dividend will be paid on or about Friday, 5 June
2009.

The Board has also declared an interim dividend of HK2.5 cents
per Share for the six months ended 30 June 2008.

KE&EEZERARZXFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited
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TERERMBFELTFE Closure of Register of Members

AABRNBROBFEEFELR-_ZZTNE The register of members of the Company will be closed from
EFA+=R(EHZ)E-ZEZAFREA TN Wednesday, 13 May 2009 to Monday, 18 May 2009 (both days
R(EH-) (BEEREMA) BETEHE inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares will be
EHERBROBEERHER - AREEK registered. In order to qualify for entitiement to the final dividend
BE_ZZNF+-A=+—-HLEEXRH for the year ended 31 December 2008, all transfers of Shares
RENER REREBENR-ZSZAFEA accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
TZH(EHD) TFNRB=1T23&MER with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
NBEXHEREEREXRERQAAFTER Investor Services Limited of 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28
NBEFEREIEEERSELEBRLA b Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
WHEBBERKRER28FESERE P26 o 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 12 May 2009.

®E Reserves

KARARAEERFANREEELBFHED A Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the

ARG ETERRMT2IRARE L2253 Group during the year are set out in note 21 to the consolidated

BENGERREEHX - financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 52 to 53 of this report, respectively.

P NN 8= 4 Distributable Reserves of the Company

R-ZZBENE+ZRA=+—H KAAFAH As at 31 December 2008, the Company’s reserves available for
DIRF R R AR 1,258,200,0008 T & distributions to Shareholders were HK$1,258.2 million,
&% 173212 666,900,00058 7T ~ LARR 10 14 TR R comprising share premium of HK$666.9 million, share-based
10,100,000/ 7t ~ & & £3528,300,00058 payment reserve of HK$10.1 million, contributed surplus of
7T R AR B £ %152,900,000 7T ° HK$528.3 million and retained earnings of HK$52.9 million.

REHEFREQATE  AATANKRD BER Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the share
BREERHUEFEAARABERMAA premium reserve and the contributed surplus of the Company
(THHEZERAR]D NRET 2R - ERER may be distributed subject to the provision of the Company’s
ARREERE  AABMLEANEBERAE articles of association (the “Articles of Association”) and provided
ERPEHREE - that immediately following the date on which the dividend is

proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to

pay off its debt as and when they fall due in the ordinary course

of business.
iz 7% Share Capital
EAERASBFBHARGREHBERERM T Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are set
20 out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
ME - BBRFZE Property, Plant and Equipment
FEEVE BERZEEZDABEARGS Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
B RRM LT o Group are set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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- EZE2HE Report of the Directors

Donation

During the year under review, the Group made charitable and
other donations totaling HK$1,156,000.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of this
report.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and there is no restriction against such rights under
the laws of Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year under review.

Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy

Mr. LAI Ching Ping

Mr. CHEUNG Chi

Mr. LEE Kwok Leung

Mr. WONG Wai Tak Victor (appointed on 29 January 2009)
Mr. CHOW Chi Wai (resigned on 29 January 2009)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. CHAN Kwong Fai

Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong

Mr. MA Ka Chun

Mr. WUN Kwang Vincent

KE&EEZERARZAT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited
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BN —_EEAF-BAZTABFRLM - AFE As announced on 29 January 2009, Mr. CHOW Chi Wai resigned
BRAEREREREBTES B RER as an executive Director upon his refirement and Mr. WONG Wai
BEREREZARITES  IR=ZZNEF Tak Victor has been appointed as executive Director with effect
—AZt+hBBERK- from 29 January 2009.

REMBESEQMF  ERELEE—HER Under Article 86(3), Mr. WONG Wai Tak Victor holds office until
ETERREFAEAL  IHEERESR the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible, offers
BE - himself for election.

RBAHEEAAEST(1)R87(2)1F - ZER In accordance with Articles 87(1) and 87(2) of the Articles of
T4E BAEBETREMELEENERER  Association, Mr. LEE Kwok Leung, Dr. CHAN Kwong Fai and Mr.
RBEREHERT UHCEKERE KWAN Kai Cheong shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming

£ o annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

EERSREBEAEERE Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

AEFEENSREBAENBEEEBIERN Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management

E16E20E ° of the Group are set out on pages 16 to 20.

EEREEN Directors’ Service Contracts

BHTESCNARATIAB=FNRS Each of the executive Directors has a service contract with the
R THAMN-AES—FBERIRA Company for a term of three years and is subject to termination

BRAEMBAMAL - BEZSRESY by either party giving not less than six months’ written notice.
HEEZEME  SRTEZTTREAEERE Under the service contracts, each of the executive Directors is
ARENBFEESFERNEERRBIEA - entitled to an annual discretionary management bonus in respect

of each complete financial year of the Group as the Board may
approve.

EBUFHITES WL |ERRQ T ET L AR Each of the independent non-executive Directors does not enter
BEK HEEERBEHR=F o into any service agreements with the Company but has a fixed
term of office for three years.

RRERAQAARRBEFASLERERN None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming

EEPMBEAQNRTLATR-FAFTUL annual general meeting of the Company has an unexpired

EMBAELEE CEERERIN 2 RER service contract which is not determinable by the Company within

REEEH - one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

EEREANT R Directors’ Interest in Contracts
RUREETHERSIMREEEMNEER No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to

BEGFEAMEASEELEBENEXRS which the Company, its holding company or any of its
B HARRQT - HER A RS EEMHE subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
DABINFREZSHERBERETEARE interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
= e financial year or at any time during the financial year.
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EE2ME Report of the Directors

Directors’ Disclosure of interests

As at 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive(s) of the Company (if any) in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which any such director or chief executive has taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and were
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as
follows:

(a) Long positions in the Shares of the Company

*

HARAT

EmED

vk =] Percentage of

ESpE 514 Number interest in

Name of Directors Capacity of Shares the Company*

FEREE SRS A AR 742,985,967 58.58%
Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy Interests in controlled company (Mt&E)
(Note 1)

BEFRE EPN 4,186,000 0.33%
Mr. LAI Ching Ping Personal interest (Mt&E2)
(Note 2)

RELE PN % 10,650,000 0.84%
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Personal interest (MFEE3)
(Note 3)

FERLE 18 A 22 2,000,000 0.16%
Mr. LEE Kwok Leung Personal interest (Mt £ 4)
(Note 4)

BAEELE PN % 35,520,000 2.80%
Mr. CHOW Chi Wai Personal interest (Mg5E5)
(Note 5)

& %17 1,268,400,000% it 17 51 & -

BALNRERE-SENET=A=+-8 -

The calculation of percentages is based on 1,268,400,000 Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2008.
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(a) XARARBIFR @) (a) Long positions in the Shares of the Company (Continued)

Hfat -

1. ZEMRELEH B Quinta Asia Limited
(lQuintal) B&TRAT0% - HREE
Quintaf 2 H# % > REZHFRHER
Bl ZEREER LR B EE Quintaff
BEAQAANERZ REFARERE
QuintaB TR AEE230% (MEEHES
222,895,790 IR MY EZE AR D A
BRAEL17.57%) °

2. BETRLEHEEAL186,000 BEKRM °

3. RELEHEHE650,00018 10 - WRBA
BAMBEEBERE TREEXLOHRER
BT S IR BE ST 215285 10,000,0008% IR 15 ©

4. ZERZEREARAMEEBRE 7
BREEBRLCHAERABRES RIS
2,000,0000% Bz 17 ©

5. JAR{E%EHEHE26,520,0008 K145 0 A
BRARAMEEBERE  TREBEER
NEERABRES 215289,000,0008
B o

6. BEREL4E (WR=-ZTTNF-HA=+hA
EZRAES) RARAMBEEBRE
A] 4R 15 B8 AR AE 5t 8152 B8 1,500,000 Bt
B BR=—ZENF+-A=+—-HE
BT 20.12% °

Notes:

1. Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy holds 70% of the issued share capital of
Quinta Asia Limited (“Quinta”). Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy has a
controlling interest in Quinta and is therefore deemed to be
interested in Quinta’s interest in the Company for the purposes
of the SFO. Mr. Lai Ching Ping holds the remaining 30% of the
issued share capital of Quinta (representing an indirect interest
in 222,895,790 Shares or approximately 17.57% shareholding in
the Company).

2. Mr. LAI Ching Ping is interested in 4,186,000 Shares held.

3. Mr. CHEUNG Chi is interested in 650,000 Shares held and is
also taken to be interested as a grantee of options to subscribe
for 10,000,000 Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

4. Mr. LEE Kwok Leung is interested as a grantee of options to
subscribe for 2,000,000 Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

5. Mr. CHOW Chi Wai is interested in 26,520,000 Shares held and
is also taken to be interested as a grantee of options to
subscribe for 9,000,000 Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

6. Mr. WONG Wai Tak (appointed as a Director on 29 January
2009) is interested as a grantee of options to subscribe for
1,500,000 Shares (representing 0.12% of the Shares in issue as
at 31 December 2008) under the Share Option Scheme.

(b) AAAHEBLIE(EERESFR (b) Long positions in the shares of the Associated
HE®RG) WRDIFR Corporations of the Company (as defined in the SFO)

15 BB E

EZEI K

Percentage of

A EE BB interest in

EEnE Associated g% Number associated

Name of Directors corporation Capacity of shares corporation

FTEREE Quinta B A= 7 70%
Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy Personal interest

REFEE Quinta (PN 3 3 30%

Mr. LAI Ching Ping

BREXFIREEN  R-Z2TNF+ZA
=t—-R0 &% THARIKEZAEH
BEAYEESAFERZHEEFAQAARE
Mg iE (ERRESRBEMRMEXY
B zBm - HERORES2EAER

EP TR

Personal interest

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, none of
the Directors, chief executive(s) or any of their respective
associates had any interest or short position, whether
beneficial or non-beneficial, in the shares, the underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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FTERFRABARTROOERR

R

RZZZNF+ZA=+-H BELAE
ERTHRARZN  RESHA  UTAL
BRERBESZRBERAEXVEBHE2RIDF
REMANEARAR,/ARBEEFFRBE
RHIE3B6IRB LR FTEF R TR A
BROZESHIARRE °

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2008, as far as the Directors were aware, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief executive(s) of
the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO or were recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.

AXRARRBER Long positions in the Shares of the Company
AR B ER
BAOE D
Approximate
EFHHE percentage of
Z1B g% Number interest in
Name Capacity of securities the Company*
Quinta BExmfEn 742,985,967 58.58%

Beneficial interest

Templeton Asset BREKE 126,861,579 10.00%

Management Ltd. Investment manager

34

*  HAKDBRER-EENE+=-A=+-AC
£171,268,400,000/ B3 5T & ©

BREXFBBEES R-BENFTZA=
TR ARAEEZEEAAL (RATE
ERITHARRN BH - REIFEEEXIR
DREBRONEZIAEMAREESR
HERPIEXVRBE2RID B2 EXAEARD
ARREE S R ERAIEIBOHRAZTTRA
AREFNETH -

EERHERBzER

BRASEEB)  ESVEERLIEBER
FESRFABIREEIFAEFERT2ME
MEBHERES

*  The calculation of percentages is based on 1,268,400,000 Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2008.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, the Company
had not been notified by any person (other than the Directors or
chief executive(s) of the Company) who had interests or short
position in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company
which were required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which
were recorded in the register kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is interested in any business apart from the
Group's business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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BRLMERBRE Pre-IPO Share Options

AETAEEREER—UHEBHAEERRE In recognition of the contributions made by employees and a
REIHWER  RARR-_ZEEAFEAT consultant of the Group towards its growth and success, on 10
AOZERERERREERAMERAE May 2006, Pre-IPO Share Options (the exercise of which would
B ZLEEERBRACEMNEHEBRES entitle these grantees to an aggregate of 44,400,000 Shares)
BRAERE (REARATEZSERESH have been granted by the Company to, and accepted by, certain
7] ¥ 3£ 44,400,000 B 7)) © employees and the relevant consultant.

BE-_ZEZNE+-A=+-BLEEWNE Movements of the Pre-IPO Share Options for the year ended 31
ROHERABREZFNT - December 2008 are as follows:

ERARERABRESRE
Number of Pre-IPO Share Options

BRORE
Exercise Price RZBENE RERTE RERXER RZIEENE
per Share TEEE -A-H Exercised Lapsed T=A=+-H
ARA BT SEAH Exercise As at during during As at
Grantee HK$ Vesting date Period 01/01/2008 the year theyear  31/12/2008
RELE 1.596 06/09/2006 06/09/2006- 1,960,000 — — 1,960,000
HTEE 09/05/2016
Mr. CHEUNG Chi 30/06/2007 30/06/2007- 3,960,000 — — 3,960,000
Executive Director 09/05/2016
30/06/2008 30/06/2008- 4,080,000 — — 4,080,000
09/05/2016
10,000,000 — — 10,000,000
TEREE 2.28 06/09/2006 06/09/2006- 404,000 — — 404,000
HTEE 09/05/2016
Mr. LEE Kwok Leung 30/06/2007 30/06/2007- 804,000 — — 804,000
Executive Director 09/05/2016
30/06/2008 30/06/2008- 792,000 — — 792,000
09/05/2016
2,000,000 — — 2,000,000
BEELEE 1.14 30/06/2008 30/06/2008- 9,000,000 — — 9,000,000
HTEE 09/05/2016
Mr. CHOW Chi Wai
Executive Director
9,000,000 — — 9,000,000
@t 21,000,000 — — 21,000,000

Total
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BRAFRERAERE @ Pre-IPO Share Options (Continued)

BERLHERABERENTIERIBEZN A summary of the principal conditions attached to the Pre-IPO
T Share Options is set out below:

1. KE 1.

BERABERNBRESARAS A
BENRE1.00ET o

2. BRERRSE 2,

BRTIEMKREZAEREN  FERD
HERMNBREGRIR/10F  ES
EURRERNEERTR (LAEBLHEH
TEEHE - BERAMERANBRE
BRHMERE  MARTENZEBR
BEEEDEN -

3. THEARITEE 3.

HNEIBE -

4. Htpikt 4.

RER/FITEBTERCAERANER
BYAFE T HIMBRME

(a) RODFHKEEREABRARFENT
EERAMERAERE

(b) BRADRE  BXAR/IREAR
FRBXAHERG LHEEMS
BRHS  BROAERABRE
MY R2HATE

(c) TREXRAHERANBRETAR
FAQRETBAFELTRAME
ik ob =R

KE&EEZERARZXFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited

Consideration

A cash consideration of HK$1.00 has been paid by each
grantee of the Pre-IPO Share Options.

Option Period

Subject to other conditions as set out below, 10 years from
the date of the offer of the respective Pre-IPO Share Options
unless extended in writing by the Board (and approved by the
Independent Non-Executive Directors) in its absolute
discretion. Each of the Pre-IPO Share Options (to the extent
not already exercised) shall lapse automatically at the end of
such option period.

Exercised Periods and Exercise Price

As set out on page 35.

Other conditions

The grant and/or exercise of each of the Pre-IPO Share
Options is subject to the following additional conditions:

(a) the Pre-IPO Share Option cannot be exercised within the
first six months after the commencement of dealings in
the Shares;

(b) any exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Option may be made
in part or in full subject to any further restrictions imposed
by the Company, the Stock Exchange and/or the Sponsor
as any of them see fit for the purposes of obtaining the
Stock Exchange approval to the listing of and permission
to deal in the Shares;

(c) any exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Option shall be further
subject to any guidelines issued by the Company from
time to time in order to ensure full compliance with the
Listing Rules;
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BRAHERABRE @

4,

H o &4 ()

(d BRAMERMNBREBABAR

(e)

AFFE » FRBRHEE

RITENERARERNBRES
REXE28 R BRI E MR K
Mo BRIBETHERT RN

(i) ZRBANBEARE (WE) TR
ARABHENRBARGTES
RABERABRE HEX
TENERARERAERE
Beagsh HEEEE2
ERETEE ;

(i) FRATEERLORERAE
BRENEFTEHNALZE
ML BRILLEZEEHR
BEXE WEIBETREY
RBENRHERT BEER
DNBE R AR AT BB R AE
AEBARALIEABHEED X
M

(iii) MARABREAXFAEFTRD
B9 & IR AT BB IR B AE AR R AR
ff BAIRTENBROHER
AEREERBAN  HES
EUEENBERAEEEET
53

BERAMERMBREARARE
FEHRXAARBATERIEZRN
EHERRE o

Pre-IPO Share Options (Continued)

4. Other conditions (Continued)

(d) the Pre-IPO Share Option is personal to the relevant

(e)

grantee and may not be transferred or assigned;

the

Pre-IPO Share Option (to the extent not already

exercised) shall lapse at the expiry of the option period

as described in paragraph 2 above or otherwise in the

following manner:

(i)

(iii)

the grantee’s personal representatives (if any) may
exercise the Pre-IPO Share Option within 12 months
from his death, upon the expiry of which the Pre-IPO
Share Option (to the extent not already exercised)
shall lapse automatically unless extended by the
Board in its absolute discretion;

the grantee’s right to exercise the Pre-IPO Share
Option shall not be affected by his/its cessation of
employment, unless such cessation of employment
arises from any serious misconduct, bankruptcy or
conviction of any criminal offence involving integrity
or honesty, in which case the Pre-IPO Share Option
(to the extent not already exercised) shall lapse
automatically on the his/its last date of employment
with the Group;

if the grantee breaches any term or condition of the
Pre-IPO Share Option as described herein, the Pre-
IPO Share Option (to the extent not already
lapse automatically
otherwise directed by the Board in writing in its

exercised) shall (unless

absolute discretion); and

(f) the grantee of the Pre-IPO Share Option shall adhere to
any undertakings or restrictions that may be further

imposed on them by the Stock Exchange or the Sponsor.
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ARECRERRR-ZZEAFNANBE
BRNEERBRRIBRESS ([5HE])
BUHEZETHNEARFASEEMNES &
& WHER Ex -FF #E®H K
B ERASBENAEH (AFERXHRE
CERBE) ERBRE URBRSAER
ARBFPECRTRAEEI0%HRE © R
BRAEREMEMTEHTIBHRGE
B AHABEBEALARLTEHMNE &
TRAZ10% HERERRE—-SHER
HeREZEREABLEAA+=EAHH
nRTERERSTREBRE (BEST
ERARTERBRE MOEERRIBILIEH
TESAREZHBATBRIRETRIN
ROBE  THEBEBTROMN0.1%HE
{Ei#485,000,0008 7T - HEEERRE- it
RN  MEBEEMEERATEBBENRS
TEEBERTRND1% -

Zi A EERARKREALTEEEER T
FHEMNEERSEE - B THREST
KSHEERSWEARNAEFES » Ma)
DEERSHEERAHRRREE  UFE
AEBEANE RORIRKBEEEHMNEE
KRSREFRBEMNCERSEELRR
BXBEEFE RAULEEEA -

AENEMEATE RZF-A"ENRAL
HEwm BRENTEERESERE
AEERRHBREEANKUTEREER
HERMAAEXAROREXEERE
RAINFHRTERROAE=EFHS
E-BRETRESSEENHAARAKEAR
et FHBREMEETE  EARS
BIRFAVIR AT AR LR AR IR -

Report of the Directors

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the Shareholders passed on
8 August 2006, the Company has established a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) whereby the Board may, at their
discretion, invite any Directors, employees, consultants,
professionals, customers, suppliers, agents, partners or advisers
of or contractors to the Group (subject to the eligibility
requirements as set out therein) to take up options which entitle
them to subscribe for Shares representing up to a maximum in
nominal value of 30% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The total number of Shares available for issue
under the Scheme and any other schemes must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Listing Date unless further Shareholders’ approval has been
obtained. The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon the exercise of the options granted and to be granted
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12
months’ period up to the date of grant to a substantial
Shareholder or an independent non-executive director or their
associates would not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue or an
aggregate value of HK$5,000,000 unless further Shareholders’
approval has been obtained; and to each other eligible person

would not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

The purpose of the Scheme is to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions that eligible participants have made or may make to
the Group. It also provides the eligible participants with an
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company with a
view to (a) motivate the eligible participants to optimise the
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and (b)
attract and retain or otherwise maintain ongoing business
relationship with the eligible participants whose contributions are,
will or expected to be beneficial to the Group.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
ending on 7 August 2016. The exercise price of options shall be
determined by the Board and shall not be less than the highest of
the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the options and the
average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer and the nominal value of
a Share. An option may be exercised at any time during a period
as the Board may determine which shall not be more than ten
years from the date of grant of the option subject to the
provisions of early termination thereof.
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ERBRENSTERENRENEREN The accounting policy adopted for the share options is described
200 in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

BEZZENF+ZA=1+—HLFE Set out below are particulars and movements of the share
BRESFEETHEREFBEREHAOT (ZZ options under the Share Option Scheme for the year ended 31

BREDRT-BEE LCEHEEH) December 2008 which have been granted to, and accepted by, an
employee:
BRETEHETHNEREYE
Number of share options under
the Share Option Scheme
SREE
Exercise Price R-BENE  RERGE RER R-BENE
per Share FEARY TEEH -B-H Exercised A% tZR=1-H
ARA REAH & Vesting Exercise As at during Lapsed during As at
Grantee Date of grant HK$ date period 01/01/2008 the year the year  31/12/2008
ERBLE 3011112007 2.06 01/12/2008 01/12/2008- 500,000 - - 500,000
frEE 07/08/2016
Mr. WONG Wai Tak Victor 01/12/2009 01/12/2009- 500,000 - - 500,000
Executive Director Vo 07/08/2016
01/12/2010 01/1212010- 500,000 - - 500,000
07/08/2016
1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
M EREALE-ZZLET-_AREZE Note: Mr. Wong Wai Tak Victor was appointed as the chief operating
AERDREEERNEREEE AR officer of our Manufacturing Business since December 2007 and
EENE-B-+NABEZEAEERLQTAH subsequently appointed as our executive Director on 29 January
TESE - 2009.
EEEBEN Management Contracts
ERMEBEITIRFEEELRLTA2BREM No contract concerning the management and administration of
BEABIEBRNEERTHABENESN - the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company

were entered into or existed during the year.
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FEEFRHEES

BE-ZENFE+ZA=+-HLEFE X
SEFREFREEFEIEASENEE
REBEOLAT :

BARF /HER
AREF/HES

KATHEEALUmbroEBAEZ =SS
NE+ZB=+-HLEEXAEENEARE
FEF-—Z -BEEHARFAE EF &
EMNBBASEEARDTCBITRAS%U L
MRR SEEFLAMEELAERLARE
FPRAtERWEMER

BREBERS

GEMBERRMANBFRENETHELR
SABLTRAFRENFEBERS &
ARBETHRAE4AZTEKE -

THETHEAL(LTRAFERSE) EX
RABZRBEBITLR/ RNMABEEST
foMARRAERELEHRAKENEFE
WEBELM -

(A) BAKERUERBRE

HREASELEERNMBR  AAH
# & & K B 2 8 Al-Aham Garment
Manufacturing Co. Ltd. ([Al-Aham])
BE-ZZMNETH¥ERE-—EER
Diamond Needle Factory (Jordon)
Co. Ltd. ([Diamond Needle]) A& &
B BEEENYLREEROEMG -

REBE LA ([BRELE]) BA-AhamiiT
B % - £ Diamond Needled B %
ENRERBEZEEER2ERE
It Diamond Needle#f 18 fE B R L £
BMBA BRATNEEAL -

R% Report of the Directors

Major customers and suppliers

Sales and purchases of the Group attributable to its major
customers and suppliers respectively for the year ended 31
December 2008 were as follows:

HHERD L LRBEOL

% of Sales % of Purchases

The largest customer/supplier 50.7 7.0
Five largest customers/suppliers 71.8 19.3

Umbro Group, being a connected person, is one of the five
largest customers to the Group during the year ended 31
December 2008. To the best knowledge and belief of the
Directors, none of the Directors, their associates or any
Shareholder owning more than 5% of the issued share capital of
the Company, has any interest in any of the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers as disclosed above.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Certain related party transactions, disclosed in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements also constitute continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, required to be
disclosed in accordance with chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The following transactions between certain connected parties (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and the Company have been entered
into and/or ongoing for which relevant announcements, if
necessary, had been made by the Company in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules.

(A) Provision of sub-contracting services to the Group

Al-Aham Garment Manufacturing Co. Ltd. (“Al-Aham”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, has been engaging
Diamond Needle Factory (Jordon) Co. Ltd. (“Diamond
Needle”) as a sub-contractor for manufacturing components
of products bearing the brand of NYL since the second half of
the year 2004 due to the limitation in the production capacity
of our Group.

Mr. CHAN Kam Cheong (“Mr. Chan”) is the chief executive of
Al-Aham. Given that Diamond Needle is beneficially and
wholly-owned by Mr. Chan’s brother, Mr. Chan Kam Chuen,
Diamond Needle is therefore deemed to be an associate of
Mr. Chan, and hence a Connected Person of our Company.
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BEBERS ® Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

(A) AXREEREAERE (&) (A) Provision of sub-contracting services to the Group (Continued)
BE-ZENE+ZA=+-HLEF The sub-contracting fee that has been paid or payable by our
B A& @B 3 E { Diamond Group to Diamond Needle amounted to approximately
NeedleHV & B E F A 45,096,000/ 7T HK$5,096,000 for the year ended 31 December 2008, which
BRAQABD-ZEEAFNA-TEHE was below the relevant annual cap approved by the Stock
BRER(ERER]D MEERIMitE Exchange as disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated
MEBEFELR - 25 August 2006 (the “Prospectus”).

(B) IXEEBEEEUmbroE m (B) Purchases of Umbro Products from the T&S Group
AEFTEE-BEUREEREUmMbro The T&S Group has been supplying Umbro Products to the
DHEGRESN I HENZESBHE Win Sports Group pursuant to our Group’s distribution right
UmbrofE @ ° under the Umbro Distributor Agreement.
UmbrofBAXREFTHEERER ' & The Umbro Group is a substantial shareholder of T&S HK,
HEABEEALT BARRXEXETA hence it is a Connected Person. And as T&S HK is an
UmbroS BB B A » KL XEFTA associate of the Umbro Group, hence T&S HK is a
RARMNBEBEAL - Connected Person of our Company.
BE-ZENE+-A=+-HLEF Our purchases of Umbro Products from the T&S Group
B AEERXREEBEEEUmbroER amounted to approximately HK$77,651,000 for the year
&5 AEK77,661,0008 T @ ERER ended 31 December 2008, which was below the relevant
FtERR-_ZEELtENA+-HE@A annual cap approved by the Stock Exchange and announced
[AMNEEFELR - to the public on 11 June 2007.

(C) MAKEBEHERR (C) Purchases of fabrics by the Group
Oceanjade Corporation Limited Oceanjade Corporation Limited (“Oceanjade”) is one of the
([Oceanjadel) AR AR ZEMBA A suppliers of Rich Form (HK) Limited, a wholly-owned
WH (BB ERATE P — U HER subsidiary of our Company, for fabrics and related fabric-
HELXENYLREERRENHRRE samples (“Fabrics”) for the production of products bearing the
BRARER((HE] - AEER=Z brand of NYL. We established a business relationship with
T —FHEOceanjade BEXKBEE - W Oceanjade since 2001 and would like to continue our
Oceanjadef] B R AR F INEEMH relationship so long as Oceanjade is able to continue to
EEEHhE  AAEEESHES supply quality Fabrics at competitive pricing to us.
OceanjadeX 5 °
MR Oceanjade AR EEM R F R 2 Given that Oceanjade is beneficially and wholly-owned by Mr.
EEBR2ERE MRAEERELT Chan’s brother, Mr. CHAN Kam Chuen, and that Mr. Chan is
WEEZ2EWB D T A-Ahami T EHE a chief executive of Al-Aham, an indirect wholly-owned
H > EtOceanjadeH RIEBBRELEN subsidiary of our Company, Oceanjade is therefore deemed
BEA BREALANBEEAL - to be an associate of Mr. Chan, and hence a Connected

Person of our Company.
BE-_ZENF+-A=+—-HLF Our purchases of Fabrics from Oceanjade amounted to
E » REBE [ Oceanjade EEH RN £ approximately HK$33,428,000 for the year ended 31
A #33,428,0008 T  BERERER December 2008, which was below the relevant annual cap
i EHI Mt ENEEEE LR - approved by the Stock Exchange as disclosed in the
Prospectus.
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(D) (i)

(D) (ii)

B Umbro%E E 45 &€ UMBROMm & #)

Em

REBUmbrofBH UmbrofE M 4%
HAHEEN > KEBTAUmbrofk
BHRAHERS  #EUMBROMRE
MER AUmbroSBEBEBHE
D AEBEBEREZENBATK
EEE(BB)ERLDARKE (F
B)BRARASNE-SEEMNFR=
ZENFER-EBUmbroE B fE
ZEER RTERBIE=HE
BREEZSER  AEEE-Z
ENFERTHBEEZSER °

UmbrofBAA R R BB L E
WEBRR  SHUBRARQALE
BEAL -

BE-_ZEZ/\F+-A=+—-HL
EE AEE@UmbroEEMNEE
BAK41,213,0008 T BRER
ERFEEBIAHENEEEE
LFR

72 85UmbrofE m M@ Umbrofk B %
HNEERERBUmbroE @B E

UmbroZE &

REUmbron & ZEBEEKX
HESHEZEUMbroER - 25 &
mAUmMbroREEZHEBHE G
REB(TER) MERTHEFR
BHI_ZZLtF+-A=1+-—
BoH#% FiBUmbroEmLAR
#B Umbro International Limited
(UmbroSBWE+H—KKEAH)
W& o Umbron B ERE A&
BERPEFHEUMbroERERB
REXT REBRERAR(RINE
RABRAEERAR (REFITHW
2EMBAT) MUmbroEB S &
EEE

R% Report of the Directors

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

(D) (i)

(D) (ii)
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Sales of products bearing UMBRO brand to the Umbro
Group

In addition to being a licensed distributor of Umbro
Products for the Umbro Group, we are also an authorised
supplier of the Umbro Group for products bearing
UMBRO brand for the Umbro Group’s distribution in the
EU. We, through, Win Hanverky Limited and Win
Hanverky (China) Limited, our wholly-owned subsidiaries,
has been supplying such products to the Umbro Group
since 2004 and 2008 respectively. Apart from engaging
independent third party contractors for the manufacture
of such products, our Group has also commenced the
manufacture of these products since 2008.

The Umbro Group is a substantial shareholder of a
subsidiary of our Company, hence it is a Connected
Person of our Company.

Our sales to Umbro Group amounted to approximately
HK$41,213,000 for the year ended 31 December 2008,
which was below the relevant annual cap approved by
the Stock Exchange as disclosed in the Prospectus.

Payment of royalty to the Umbro Group and purchases of
Umbro Products from the Umbro Group for distribution of
the Umbro Products

Pursuant to the Umbro Distributor Agreement, we
distribute various Umbro Products in the Greater China.
These products are sourced from suppliers approved by
the Umbro Group directly or via an internet platform
operated by the Umbro Group (“Platform”) until 31
December 2007. Thereafter all Umbro Products must be
secured through Umbro International Limited, one of the
members of the Umbro Group. As part of the Umbro
Distributor Agreement, we pay, through T&S HK, Team &
Sports (Shenzhen) Limited and Tien Yan Limited, wholly-
owned subsidiaries of T&S HK, royalty to the Umbro
Group for our distribution of Umbro Products in the
Greater China calculated in accordance with the terms
set out therein.
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BEBERS ® Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

(D) (ii) 2 EUmbroEMmEUmbroEE X (D) (ii) Payment of royalty to the Umbro Group and purchases of

FTEEEBRBEUMbrcSBEE Umbro Products from the Umbro Group for distribution of
UmbroZ m () the Umbro Products (Continued)

UmbroSBAARAT — BB LA The Umbro Group is a substantial shareholder of a
MEEZRR HUEBREARATNE subsidiary of our Company, hence it is a Connected
BAL o Person of our Company.

BE-_ZZ)\E+-A=+-HL Our royalty to and purchases from the Umbro Group
FE  AEBEBUmbroEB X FH amounted to approximately HK$64,869,000 and
EEREBERBEER2AAY HK$1,857,000 respectively for the year ended 31
64,869,000 7t % 1,857,000 Tt ° December 2008, which was below the relevant annual
BREXFAHERR-ZZEZLEFEZ caps approved by the Stock Exchange and announced to
ANBLMGHHBEEELR- the public on 8 February 2007.

(E) MAEEBEHREUmbroE M (E) Purchases of Umbro Products from the TSG Group
REBEUmbrofk B K Platformy 32 Due to the long established relationship with the TSG Group,
HEMXEEBCELRABE  X4& TSG Group, one of the Umbro Group’s approved suppliers
EE-BHRAEEEARCRINDEBRA which is also an approved supplier on the Platform, has been
AIMEUNboEm HAXASEERIE supplying Umbro Products to Team & Sports (Shenzhen)
UmbroZ S ZE BN D HEET D Limited for distribution pursuant to our Group’s distribution
8 ° right under the Umbro Distributor Agreement.
AESERAANEERERBHREERE The TSG Group is owned and controlled by Mr. Samuel Ho
# e ARAAEERAERBHA+ =@ and his relatives. Given that Mr. Samuel Ho was a director of
ARBEEREEETHELRAZE certain members of the Group within the preceding 12
2 RAAXREEEERAMEENE months from the date of this annual report, the TSG Group
A BREQXRANBEEAL - should be regarded as an associate of Mr. Samuel Ho and

therefore a Connected Person of our Company.

BE-_ZEENF+-A=+-HLF Our purchases from the TSG Group amounted to

E AEEOXREEENEBEEAY approximately HK$4,997,000 for the year ended 31

4,997,000 7T - BERERERFTIKEH December 2008, which was below the relevant annual cap

R ENHEBFE LR - approved by the Stock Exchange as disclosed in the
Prospectus.
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R% Report of the Directors

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

(F) Sales to Amerseas Enterprises Limited (“Amerseas”)

Bowker Garment Accessories Company Limited and its
subsidiaries (“Bowker Accessories Group”) and Win Hanverky
Textile Limited, subsidiaries of our Company, have been
supplying certain garment accessories and fabric,
respectively, to Amerseas and its subsidiaries (“Amerseas

Group”) starting from 2007.

Amerseas is a wholly-owned subsidiary of TSG BVI, which in
turn is owned and controlled by Mr. Samuel Ho and his
relatives. As Mr. Samuel Ho was a director of certain
members of the Group within the preceding 12 months from
the date of this annual report, Amerseas is therefore an
associate of Mr. Samuel Ho. and hence a Connected Person
of our Company.

Our sales by Bowker Accessories Group and Win Hanverky
Textile Limited to the Amerseas Group amounted to
approximately HK$3,064,000 and HK$3,872,000 respectively
for the year ended 31 December 2008, which were below the
relevant annual caps approved by the Stock Exchange and
announced to the public on 15 January 2007.

(G) Sales of products bearing DIADORA brand to the Diadora

Group

Win Hanverky Sportswear Company Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and its subsidiaries have been
supplying products bearing the DIADORA brand to Diadora
HK in the past.

Upon completion of the subscription and shareholders’
agreement entered into between, among others, our
Company and Diadora S.p.A. on 7 April 2008, Diadora S.p.A.
became a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of our
Company, hence it is a Connected Person. As Diadora HK is
an associate of Diadora S.p.A., hence Diadora HK is a
Connected Person of our Company.

Our sales of products bearing DIADORA brand to the Diadora
Group amounted to approximately HK$9,024,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2008, which was below the relevant
annual cap approved by the Stock Exchange and announced
to the public on 7 April 2008.



BEBERS ®

EX(BEBYFYTES)ICERBER
ENF+ZRA=F- Hiif%%f@@x
5 URIAZER

(1) RAREREXBBREPITL

2 B-REERIIATERADARTHE
VE=FHEBILE=HFEMEOEKT

i

(3) REREEEXZNMEEBZEELATES
BRAUARARREEEFNKERE
TR

(4) WEBE AR FHEZRR TR

ENEBELRBEXZAXMAHBERAR
8 o

RIELHHRBIE14A381% EEERALRD
AREMEAEREEEHMASRANE
B RIS B 44005 [ E R TH
ERFZERESEINARE T ABERER
PETETEREELERERF - REME M
EEEESRREHCREFETNERBES
EERER  EdiEd

(1) EXEEENRZECERQATESH
i

2 FEASERHUERRBHEOBER
DREASENEBBRET

(3) MEXZNREKREAER
FET R

5 2 &%

(4) BEEXS (WER) LEBE 2 A EHR
it RRFRERZADMNER
PREE

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

The Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
have reviewed the continuing connected transactions made
during the year ended 31 December 2008 and confirmed that
these transactions were entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Company than terms available to or from independent
third parties;

(3) in accordance with each of the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole;
and

(4) have not exceeded the relevant maximum amount capped in
accordance to the waiver previously granted by the Stock
Exchange or previous announcement.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
the auditor of the Company to perform certain factual finding
procedures on the above continuing connected transactions on a
sample basis in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Related
Services 4400 “Engagements to Perform Agreed-Upon
Procedures Regarding Financial Information” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
reported their factual findings for the selected samples based on
the agreed procedures to the Board stating that:

(1) the selected samples of the transactions had been approved
by the Company’s Directors;

(2) the selected samples of the transactions in respect of
provision of goods or services by the Group were entered into
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

(3) the selected samples of the transactions were entered into in
accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions; and

(4) such transactions, where applicable, did not exceed the
relevant caps in accordance to the waivers previously
granted by the Stock Exchange or previous announcements.
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- EZE2HE Report of the Directors

Code on Corporate Governance Practices

The Company has applied the principles and complied with the
code provisions in the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the accounting period covered by this
annual report. Principal corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 21 to 27 of this report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, throughout
the year ended 31 December 2008 and up to the date of this
report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float of
more than 25% of the Company’s issued Shares as required
under the Listing Rules.

Auditor

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
LI Kwok Tung Roy
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2009

KE&EEZERARZAT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited
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PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince's Building
Central, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WIN HANVERKY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Win
Hanverky Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 173, which
comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31
December 2008, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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ndent Auditor’s Report

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2008 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2009

KEEEZERARZAFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited



RZEZNF+ZA=+—H Asat31December 2008

Ga N
Consolidated Company
Mk “EENFE CZZZtF ZEEN\E CZEELE
Note 2008 2007 2008 2007
TEx TEx TEx TR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
HETHR L ERE Leasehold land and land use rights 6 55,521 53,086 - =
VERY: Y BT Property, plant and equipment 7 662,000 547,028 - -
EWEE Intangible assets 8 245,190 52,324 — =
REBAR 2R E Investments in subsidiaries 9 - — 1,356,152 1,232,338
i AINGPA £ Interests in associates 10 23,851 25,184 = =
EEFEHEE Deferred income tax assets 19 6,890 13,717 - —
THEESHEE Available-for-sale financial assets 1 6,370 = - —
H o & WUk 50 Other receivables 14 8,417 28,599 — =
1,008,239 719,938 1,356,152 1,232,338
RBEE Current assets
7 Inventories 12 547,674 486,155 - —
ERESRAREE Trade and bills receivable 13 769,350 704,067 - —
®e EATEREMEWRIIET  Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables 14 88,633 125,980 24 582
BEeRBEEEEN Cash and cash equivalents 15 363,272 580,280 42,578 253,925
1,768,929 1,896,482 42,602 254,507
RBEE Current liabilities
EREZEAREE Trade and bills payable 16 386,627 376,877 - —
JE 5t iR 20 R S A FE A 0R A Accruals and other payables 17 188,449 178,133 2,314 1,120
NHFEHERE Current income tax liabilities 55,861 79,330 — =
HE& Borrowings 18 102,026 68,242 - —
FEA3 1 & 2 R 78 Amounts due to subsidiaries 33 - — 10,481 110,966
732,963 702,582 12,795 112,086
RBEERE Net current assets 1,035,966 1,193,900 29,807 142,421
HEERRBEE Total assets less current liabilities 2,044,205 1,913,838 1,385,959 1,374,759
FRB8E Non-current liabilities
R Borrowings 18 11,300 11,509 — =
BREFEHAE Deferred income tax liabilities 19 3,711 1,231 - =
15,011 12,740 — _
REE Net assets 2,029,194 1,901,098 1,385,959 1,374,759

Mt B iRk — Mo

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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i % Balance Sheets

. W-TZ &+-A=1—H Asat31 December 2008

G4a KRR

Consolidated Company
i3 Z2EN\E CZEZELE ZBENF CERLE
Note 2008 2007 2008 2007

ThEn Thx Thx Thn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

B Equity
ANRAREBEA Capital and reserves attributable
EEERR to equity holders of the Company

e Share capital 20 126,840 126,840 126,840 126,840

& Reserves 21 1,658,152 1,686,336 1,259,119 1,247,919
1,784,992 1,813,176 1,385,959 1,374,759

YERRER Minority interest 244,202 87,922 - -

RS Total equity 2,029,194 1,901,098 1,385,959 1,374,759

MEBMERE D o The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial

statements.
LI Kwok Tung Roy LAI Ching Ping
ZER AT
Director Director
EE EE

50 | k=& EZEREBR2AAE  WinHanverky Holdings Limited



ZE18HE K Consolidated Income Statement

HE-_TZN\F+-A=+—HLFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2008

B 3E ZEENE CZETLHE
Note 2008 2007
TERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
&= Revenue 5 3,487,342 3,322,400
8 & B AR Cost of sales 22 (2,500,945) (2,253,386)
EA Gross profit 986,397 1,069,014
HER 7 HEA Selling and distribution costs 22 (360,959) (374,538)
— B RAITHRE X General and administrative expenses 22 (551,441) (329,105)
HA WA R W& Other income and gains 23 1,450 34,752
e RF Operating profit 75,447 400,123
BMEWA Finance income 25 12,350 24,821
& & A Finance costs 25 (5,697) (6,019)
BMEWA —FE Finance income - net 6,653 18,802
FEEE AT (BR) & Share of (loss)/profit of associates 10 (2,884) 2,647
BEHEEREFHNERER Share of loss of a jointly
controlled entity — (11,353)
BR it 15 Bt A1 28 A Profit before income tax 79,216 410,219
FiEHimx% Income tax expense 26 (52,442) (75,525)
FERF Profit for the year 26,774 334,694
AT ALERL: Attributable to:
RATRERFEA Equity holders of the Company 33,325 290,259
DERRER Minority interest (6,551) 44,435
26,774 334,694
KARBREREEA Earnings per share for profit
BEEERRZ attributable to the equity holders
BREA (USRABWLE) of the Company during the year
(expressed in HK cents per share)
- BEX - basic 27 2.6 23.1
- #8 - diluted 27 2.6 22.8
KE Dividends 28 41,857 86,251

B BHRERO 2D

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

. HE-_ZT)\F+-A=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2008

ADFAREREAES
Attributable to equity holders
of the Company

L2 SURRER aRs
Share it @5 Minority Total
capital Reserves Total interest equity

(Ma20)  (H=E21)
(Note 20) (Note 21)

TERL TET TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R=ZENF-A-Af&e Balance at 1 January 2008 126,840 1,686,336 1,813,176 87,922 1,901,098
EMBREEH Currency translation differences
-F£E - Group - 28,179 28,179 6,831 35,010
N - Associates = 1,551 1,551 = 1,551
HER B L ARR MG Loss resulting from change in
EUREZEBES estimated consideration
WEE (Mt 14) receivable from disposal of
interest in a subsidiary (Note 14) — (17,492) (17,492) — (17,492)
EREEREINARE Net income recognised directly
in equity - 12,238 12,238 6,831 19,069
EERF Profit for the year - 33,325 33,325 (6,551) 26,774
EEN\ERANAAE Total recognised income for 2008 - 45,563 45,563 280 45,843
L — B AR Establishment of a subsidiary
(M9 c)) (Note 9(c)) - - - 156,000 156,000
B2 Share option scheme
- B E 1A (B 5t 20) - value of services (Note 20) — 2,357 2,357 — 2,357
EffRE Dividend paid
-ZEZLERBRE — 2007 final = (44,394) (44,394) = (44,394)
-ZEEN\ERHRE — 2008 interim — (31,710) (31,710) - (31,710)

—  (713747)  (73747) 156,000 82,253

RZZEN\F+= A =1— B K% # Balance at 31 December 2008 126,840 1,658,152 1,784,992 244202 2,029,194
WEBEERR -2 The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial
statements.
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mEEZBEHR Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-_TZN\F+-A=+—HLFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2008

ARARERAAES
Attributable to equity holders

of the Company

& LYERRER BRER
Share i @5t Minority Total
capital Reserves Total interest equity
(Maz20)  (H=E21)
(Note 20) (Note 21)
TET TET TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-BELE-A-BHNER Balance at 1 January 2007 124500 1,211,463 1,335,963 36,184 1,372,147
ERBREEH Currency translation differences
-X&HE - Group - 28,011 28,011 6,590 34,601
-BENT - Associates = 948 948 = 948
-RERHEE - Jointly controlled entity — 86 86 — 86
HENBL ARG MG Gain resulting from change in
EURELBEL estimated consideration
fl (e 14) receivable from disposal of
interest in a subsidiary (Note 14) — 23,299 23,299 — 23,299
BRERBANARE Net income recognised directly
in equity - 52,344 52,344 6,590 58,934
EEREA Profit for the year — 290,259 290,259 44,435 334,694
“EZLERANALR Total recognised income for 2007 — 342,603 342,603 51,025 393,628
WK B A 7 Acquisition of subsidiaries
(H&E32) (Note 32) — — — 11,866 11,866
EEMBLAER Acquisition of additional interests
in subsidiaries — 137 137 (1,862) (1,725)
HEMBARER Disposal of interest in a
(BEE9(b)) subsidiary (Note 9(b)) — 134,116 134,116 (6,877) 127,239
BREE Share option scheme
- PR E & (F &5 20) - value of services (Note 20) — 7,330 7,330 — 7,330
-BIROABRE — proceeds from issue of shares 2,340 32,544 34,884 - 34,884
ERRE-ZSZtFFHRE  Dividend paid - 2007 interim - (41,857)  (41,857) — (41,857)
ENMEAR Dividends paid to minority
PERRRE shareholders of subsidiaries - — — (2,414) (2,414)
2,340 132,270 134,610 713 135,323
R=2FtF+=A=1- B %% Balance at 31 December 2007 126,840 1,686,336 1,813,176 87,922 1,901,098

MEBRHERRN B2 o

The accompanying notes are an

statements.

integral part of these financial
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nsolidated Cash Flow Statement

. BE-TT\&+-B=+—HILEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2008

B = “E2EN\F CZEETtHF
Note 2008 2007
TERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BREEXEKBAERE Cash flows from operating activities
REMBRE Cash generated from operations 29(a) 134,555 157,916
2 FE Interest paid (5,612) (2,549)
ENEBREHR Hong Kong profits tax paid (40,311) (28,215)
2T B R pE R EFTER Mainland China enterprise
income tax paid (23,251) (34,533)
2B ES Overseas income tax paid (10) —
RETEHREBRESFEHE Net cash generated from
operating activities 65,371 92,619
RETBHHSRE Cash flows from investing activities
2 WA E Interest received 8,901 22,908
BEHEELTHE Purchase of leasehold land and
=+ b {5 F A land use rights (1,986) (22,198)
IBEWE - #es Purchase of property, plant
k& and equipment (211,407) (254,570)
BEEE Purchase of trademarks 9(c) (62,400) —
HEME  HER Proceeds from disposal of property,
& T8 RIE plant and equipment 29(b) 2,182 2,106
HEME A RES Acquisition of additional interests
in subsidiaries 29(c) — (1,725)
WHEM B AT, ¥ #E  Acquisition of interests in
subsidiaries/business 32 — (27,105)
HEMBARET Proceeds from disposal of certain
FE &5 P18 RIE R interests in a subsidiary,
HERR net of direct costs 29(d) — 127,239
HEMWEB QR Receipt of proceeds from disposal
8 IE of interest in a subsidiary 10,422 5,709
RETHMERESFEHE Net cash used in investing activities (254,288) (147,636)
MBI EHRET — 2D ° The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial
statements.
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HEE2MERXR Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-_TZN\F+-A=+—HLFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2008

Pt aE ZBENE CZEBELH
Note 2008 2007
TERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
METBRESRE Cash flows from financing activities
BEMBNRIE Proceeds from borrowings 73,450 74,251
EBEEE Repayments of borrowings (41,975) (13,794)
BENRE Dividends paid (76,104)  (44,271)
BITR M Issue of shares — 34,884
BESEE (FTFE) Net cash (used in)/
FiBE < F5 generated from financing activities (44,629) 51,070

HERREEBYWRLEE Net decrease in cash and

cash equivalents (233,546) (3,947)
FHNEERESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of the year 580,280 567,387
ReENRSESEYELZLWE Exchange gains on cash and

cash equivalents 16,538 16,840
FRESRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at

end of the year 15 363,272 580,280
MBI iEsHRE —BD ° The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General information

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are engaged in the
manufacturing and selling of garment products, including
sportswear, active and outer wear, and related accessories.
Sales are primarily under OEM (Original Equipment
Manufacturing) arrangements to customers in Europe, North
America and Mainland China, and under distribution and
retail modes in Mainland China and Hong Kong. Its
production bases are primarily located in Mainland China.
Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out
in Note 9 to these consolidated financial statements.

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Cap.22, (Law 3 of 1961, as
combined and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address
of the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated, and
have been approved for issue by the Company’s board of
directors on 25 March 20009.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

These consolidated financial statements comprise the
consolidated and the Company’s balance sheets as at 31
December 2008, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
Except as described in Note 5 regarding the combination of
two former business segments or otherwise stated, these
policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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2 EEEHHEBME @

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 B EE (@)

(a) E-EENFARLEAKH
CERENBIREE

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Amendment and interpretation effective in 2008 and
relevant to the Group’s operations
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KEEEZERARZAFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited

HKAS 39, ‘Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement’, amendment on
reclassification of financial assets permits
reclassification of certain financial assets out of
the held-for-trading and available-for-sale
categories if specified conditions are met. The
related amendment to HKFRS 7, ‘Financial
instruments: Disclosures’, introduces disclosure
requirements with respect to financial assets
reclassified out of the held-for-trading and
available-for-sale categories. The amendments
are effective for annual period starting
prospectively from 1 July 2008. These
amendments do not have any impact on the
Group’s financial statements as the Group has
not reclassified any financial assets.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 11, ‘HKFRS 2 - Group and
treasury share transactions’, provides guidance
on whether share-based transactions involving
treasury shares or involving group entities (for
example, options over a parent’s shares) should
be accounted for as equity-settled or cash-settled
share-based payment transactions in the stand-
alone accounts of the parent and group
companies. This interpretation does not have an
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2 BEEEFBREME@ 2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
21 RBEEE @) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b) EZZENFAEYEHEAEH (b) Interpretations effective in 2008 but not relevant to

EERBENRE the Group’s operations

UTEEMEANZRBNLNER The following interpretations to published standards

—EEN\F-A-—HHZEH are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or

BEETHEARA  BREE after 1 January 2008 but are currently not relevant to

rEENEERR : the Group’s operations:

e EHE (BERUBRERRE «  HK(IFRIC) - Int 12, ‘Service Concession
BE) -REH12% [k arrangements’

BTN <]

e EE (BBRMEREREE «  HK(IFRIC) - Int 14, ‘HKAS 19 - The limit on a
EE)-RBEUE (& defined benefit asset, minimum funding
BEITERE 195 -8R requirements and their interaction’
EEREREEESER

HRBIARMERERER]
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2 EEEFHRBEw@ 2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
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(c) AEEUERAKRMNZERE
BEARBTEA 2B RR
=

THEREMEARBRTERZ
BIRRBAR-ZTNF—A
—BRZERBR S AB AR
RERER SRR - EAKEE R
RATRM

o FEBEFEREIN (B
A) [ BHREN 2] (A=
Z2NE-A-BRBRNF
ERBER) - BETER

WARBXIER (D%
RERBED]) UEXR
BIEEERE 2R
BERERZZDOIMZ
- iEXBERERSR
BRARFERKZS
HEERREREEN %
BRR (M2EKER) R
MPHRR (MEERERRK
2ERBER)EAZS - B
BEREJNREHIBLER
ENE BRREBERE
A2 AHEREBHE
ERENEESGERN
FEZIREBHERG
HEBIINEERARR -
AEBERBE-TENF -
A-—HREREBEE
BISE15E (BERT) - HEW
BRREAKSRRES
UEREREAXZS -

KEEEZERARZAFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to

existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group

The following standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been
published and are mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009 or later periods, but the Group has not early
adopted them:

« HKAS 1 (Revised), ‘Presentation of financial
statements’ (effective for annual period starting
from 1 January 2009). The revised standard will
prohibit the presentation of items of income and
expenses (that is, ‘non-owner changes in equity’)
in the statement of changes in equity, requiring
‘non-owner changes in equity’ to be presented
separately from owner changes in equity. All non-
owner changes in equity will be required to be
shown in a performance statement, but entities
can choose whether to present one performance
statement (the statement of comprehensive
income) or two statements (the consolidated
income statement and statement of
comprehensive income). Where entities restate
or reclassify comparative information, they will be
required to present a restated balance sheet as
at the beginning comparative period in addition to
the current requirement to present balance
sheets at the end of the current period and
comparative period. The Group will apply HKAS 1
(Revised) from 1 January 2009. It is likely that
both the consolidated income statement and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
will be presented as performance statements.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to

existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKAS 23 (Revised), ‘Borrowing costs’ (effective
for annual period starting from 1 January 2009).
The amendment requires an entity to capitalise
borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset (one that takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for use or sale) as
part of the cost of that asset. The option of
immediately expensing those borrowing costs will
be removed. The Group will apply HKAS 23
(Revised) from 1 January 2009. The amendment
has no impact on the Group’s accounting policies
as the Group’s existing accounting policy on
borrowing costs comply with the amended
requirements.

HKAS 27 (Revised), ‘Consolidated and separate
financial statements’ (effective for annual period
starting from 1 July 2009). The revised standard
requires the effects of all transactions with non-
controlling interests to be recorded in equity if
there is no change in control and these
transactions will no longer result in goodwill or
gains and losses. The standard also specifies the
accounting when control is lost. Any remaining
interest in the entity is re-measured to fair value
and a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
The Group will apply HKAS 27 (Revised)
prospectively to transactions with non-controlling
interests from 1 January 2010.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards,

amendments and interpretations to

existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

KEEEZERARZAFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited

HKFRS 2 (Amendment), ‘Share-based payment’
(effective for annual period starting from 1
January 2009). The amended standard deals with
vesting conditions and cancellations. It clarifies
that vesting conditions are service conditions and
performance conditions only. Other features of a
share-based payment are not vesting conditions.
As such these features would need to be
included in the grant date fair value for
transactions with employees and others providing
similar services, that is, these features would not
impact the number of awards expected to vest or
valuation thereof subsequent to grant date. All
cancellations, whether by the entity or by other
parties, should receive the same accounting
treatment. The Group will apply HKFRS 2
(Amendment) from 1 January 2009, but it is not
expected to have any impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to

existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 3 (Revised), ‘Business combinations’
(effective for annual period starting from 1 July
2009). The revised standard continues to apply
the acquisition method to business combinations,
with some significant changes. For example, all
payments to purchase a business are to be
recorded at fair value at the acquisition date, with
contingent payments classified as debt
through the

consolidated income statement. There is a choice

subsequently re-measured
on an acquisition by acquisition basis to measure
the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.
All acquisition-related costs are to be expensed.
The Group will apply HKFRS 3 (Revised)
prospectively to all business combinations from 1
January 2010.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards,

amendments and interpretations to

existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

KEEEZERARZAF  Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

HKFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’ (effective for
annual period starting from 1 January 2009).
HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS 14 and aligns segment
reporting with the requirements of the US
standard SFAS 131, ‘Disclosures about segments
of an enterprise and related information’. The
new standard requires a ‘management approach’,
under which segment information is presented on
the same basis as that used for internal reporting
purposes. The Group will apply HKFRS 8 from 1
January 2009, but it is not expected to have a
material impact on the number of reportable
segments as well as the manner in which the
segments are reported.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to

existing standards that are not yet effective and have

not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13,
programmes’ (effective for annual period starting
from 1 July 2008). HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 clarifies
that where goods or services are sold together

‘Customer loyalty

with a customer loyalty incentive (for example,
loyalty points or free products), the arrangement
is a multiple-element arrangement and the
consideration receivable from the customer is
allocated between the components of the
arrangement using fair values. The Group will
apply HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 from 1 January 2009.
Management is now assessing the impact of
adoption of this interpretation, but it is not
expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards,

amendments and interpretations to

existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

KEEEZERARZAF  Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

HK(IFRIC) - Int 16, ‘Hedges of a net investment
in a foreign operation’ (effective for annual period
starting from 1 October 2008). HK(IFRIC) - Int 16
clarifies the accounting treatment in respect of
net investment hedging. This includes the fact
that net investment hedging relates to differences
in functional currency not presentation currency,
and hedging instruments may be held anywhere
in the Group. The requirements of HKAS 21, ‘The
effects of changes in foreign exchange rates’, do
apply to the hedged item. The Group will apply
HK(IFRIC) - Int 16 from 1 January 2009, but it is
not expected to have any impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to

existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

+ HKICPA’'s improvements to HKFRS published in
October 2008

HKAS 1 (Amendment), ‘Presentation of
financial statements’ (effective for annual
period starting from 1 January 2009). The
amendment clarifies that some rather than all
financial assets and liabilities classified as
held for trading in accordance with HKAS 39,
‘Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement’ are examples of current assets
and liabilities respectively. The Group will
apply the HKAS 1 (Amendment) from 1
January 2009, but it is not expected to have
any impact on the Group’s financial

statements.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards,

amendments and interpretations to

existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

« HKICPA’'s improvements to HKFRS published in
October 2008 (Continued)

HKAS 23 (Amendment), ‘Borrowing costs’
(effective for annual period starting from 1
January 2009). The definition of borrowing
costs has been amended so that interest
expense is calculated using the effective

interest method defined in HKAS 39
‘Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement’. This eliminates the

inconsistency of terms between HKAS 39
and HKAS 23. The Group will apply the
HKAS 23 (Amendment) prospectively from 1
January 2009, but it is not expected to have
any
statements.

impact on the Group’s financial
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to

existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

+ HKICPA’'s improvements to HKFRS published in
October 2008 (Continued)

HKAS 28 (Amendment), ‘Investments in
associates’ (and consequential amendments
to HKAS 32,
Presentation’

‘Financial Instruments:
and HKFRS 7,
Disclosures’)

‘Financial
instruments: (effective for
annual period starting from 1 January 2009).
An investment in associate is treated as a
single asset for the purposes of impairment
testing and any impairment loss is not
allocated to specific assets included within
the

Reversals of impairment are recorded as an

investment, for example, goodwill.
adjustment to the investment balance to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the
associate increases. The Group will apply the
HKAS 28 (Amendment) to impairment tests
relating to investment in associates and any
related impairment losses from 1 January

2009.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards,

amendments and interpretations to

existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

« HKICPA’'s improvements to HKFRS published in
October 2008 (Continued)

HKAS 36 (Amendment),
assets’ (effective for annual period starting

‘Impairment of

from 1 January 2009). Where fair value less
costs to sell is calculated on the basis of
discounted cash flows, disclosures equivalent
to those for value-in-use calculation should
be made. The Group will apply the HKAS 36
(Amendment) and provide the required
disclosure where applicable for impairment
tests from 1 January 2009.

HKAS 38 (Amendment),
(effective for annual period starting from 1

‘Intangible assets’

January 2009). A prepayment may only be
recognised in the event that payment has
been made in advance of obtaining right of
access to goods or receipt of services. The
Group will apply the HKAS 38 (Amendment)
from 1 January 2009, but it is not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to

existing standards that are not yet effective and have

not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

+ HKICPA’'s improvements to HKFRS published in
October 2008 (Continued)

HKFRS 5 (Amendment), ‘Non-current assets
held for sale and discontinued operations’
(and consequential amendment to HKFRS 1,
‘First-time adoption’) (effective for annual
period starting from 1 July 2009). The
amendment clarifies that all of a subsidiary’s
assets and liabilities are classified as held for
sale if a partial disposal sale plan results in
loss of control, and relevant disclosure
should be made for this subsidiary if the
definition of a discontinued operation is met.
A consequential amendment to HKFRS 1
states that these amendments are applied
prospectively from the date of transition to
HKFRSs. The Group will apply the HKFRS 5
(Amendment) prospectively to all partial
disposals of subsidiaries from 1 January
2010.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 B EE (@)

(c) AEEUERAKRMNZERE
BEARBTEA 2B RR

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and have

A6 ) not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)
e EREHMAGR_-ZE «  HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS published in
NETAFRAMEERY October 2008 (Continued)
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KEEEZERARZAF  Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

— There are a number of minor amendments to

HKFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments:
Disclosures’, HKAS 8, ‘Accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors’,
HKAS 10, ‘Events after the balance sheet
date’, HKAS 18, ‘Revenue’ and HKAS 34,
‘Interim financial reporting’ which are not
addressed above. These amendments are
unlikely to have an impact on the Group’s
financial statements and have therefore not
been analysed in detail.



ZEMBHMEME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 EEEFEEME@

2.1 B EE (@)

(d) BREHREXAEEXBER
ZBRTEAZETRRE

T 5 B ETER BT R
RBAR-EZAE-A—H
FERARZAEEE T
HBRBERERD - HEER
SEEB Y THEE :

o BAGIHERE195 (BT
K [EERA (H=ZF
NE-B-ARBHNEE
HRAER) o

o FEBEFEREI2R (BF
R EMIE: 2HIRKE
BERHERE 1R (BB
[ BHRRMOZ[AEE
TRMIBERBERTEL
WEEI(H-FFAF -
A—HHERNEFENBE
M) o

o BAGIEREIN (BT
A)[¢MIE: BAR
5l (BA=ZZAE-H-
ARRNEERBENR o

o BAGIEREI (BT
K)[¢BMIE: AR
Bl -Ta&E®RYEHER ]
(H=ZEZENFtA—HMH
BROEEBHEER) o

e BEUBHEENE IR
(BT A) [BRRAE B
BHREE I REBSHE
RIS [ RB Y M
BRI (A-FTEAFLA
- ARRNFESBE
) e

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(d) Amendments and interpretations to existing
standards which are not yet effective and not relevant
for the Group’s operations

The following amendments and interpretations to
existing standards have been published and are
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2009 or later periods
but are currently not relevant for the Group’s
operations:

« HKAS 19 (Amendment), ‘Employee benefits’
(effective for annual period starting from 1
January 2009).

«  HKAS 32 (Amendment), ‘Financial instruments:
Presentation’, and HKAS 1 (Amendment),
‘Presentation of financial statements’ ‘Puttable
financial instruments and obligations arising on
liquidation’ (effective for annual period starting
from 1 January 2009).

«  HKAS 39 (Amendment), ‘Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement’ (effective for
annual period starting from 1 January 2009).

« HKAS 39 (amendment) ‘Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement’ - ‘Eligible hedged
items’ (effective for annual period starting from 1
July 2009).

+ HKFRS 1 (Amendment), ‘First time adoption of
HKFRS’ and HKAS 27 ‘Consolidated and
separate financial statements’ (effective for
annual period starting from 1 July 2009).
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

21 RBEEE @) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(d) MAREMREREE XL ERD (d) Amendments and interpretations to existing
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standards which are not yet effective and not relevant

for the Group’s operations (Continued)

KEEEZERARZAFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited

HK(IFRIC) - Int 15, ‘Agreements for construction
of real estates’ (effective for annual period
starting from 1 January 2009).

HK(IFRIC) - Int 17 - ‘Distributions of non-cash
assets to owners’ (effective for annual period
starting from 1 July 2009).

HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS published in
October 2008

— HKAS 16 (Amendment), ‘Property, plant and
equipment’ (and consequential amendment to
HKAS 7, ‘Statement of cash flows’) (effective
for annual period starting from 1 January
2009).

— HKAS 20 (Amendment), ‘Accounting for
government grants and disclosure of
government assistance’ (effective for annual
period starting from 1 January 2009).

— HKAS 27 (Amendment), ‘Consolidated and
separate financial statements’ (effective for
annual period starting from 1 January 2009).

— HKAS 28 (Amendment), ‘Investments in
associates’ (and consequential amendments
to HKAS 32, ‘Financial Instruments:
Presentation and HKFRS 7, ‘Financial
instruments: Disclosures’) (effective for
annual period starting from 1 January 2009).
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in hyperinflationary economies’ (effective for
annual period starting from 1 January 2009).

HKAS 31 (Amendment), ‘Interests in joint
ventures (and consequential amendments to
HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7) (effective for annual
period starting from 1 January 2009).

HKAS 38 (Amendment), ‘Intangible assets’
(effective for annual period starting from 1
January 2009).

HKAS 40 (Amendment), ‘Investment property’
(and consequential amendments to HKAS
16) (effective for annual period starting from
1 January 2009).

HKAS 41 (Amendment), ‘Agriculture’
(effective for annual period starting from 1
January 2009).
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otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(d) Amendments and interpretations to existing
standards which are not yet effective and not relevant
for the Group’s operations (Continued)

« HKICPA’'s improvements to HKFRS published in
October 2008 (Continued)

— Amendments to HKAS 20 ‘Accounting for
government grants and disclosure of
government assistance’, HKAS 29, ‘Financial
reporting in hyperinflationary economies’,
HKAS 40, ‘Investment property’ and HKAS
41, ‘Agriculture’, which are not addressed
above.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

KEEEZERARZAF  Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
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(a) WELH

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries
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Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date
of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of
any minority interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary in the consolidated
financial statements to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

KEEEZERARZAFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions
with minority interests as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. For purchases from minority
interests, the difference between the consideration
paid and the relevant share of the carrying value of
net assets of the subsidiary acquired is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to minority
interests are also recorded in equity. For disposals to
minority the
consideration and the relevant share of minority

interests, differences between

interests are also recorded in equity.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group’s investments in associates include goodwill
(net of any accumulated impairment loss) identified
on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment
loss.
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2 BEEEFBREME@ 2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
22 HRERE @ 2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(c) HEE DT (&) (c) Associates (Continued)

AEERGHEATDRBEMN The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
BAREERGERERPHE profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated
RoOMEGMKBENGEESZS income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
BlEREDPRER WEANZR movements in reserves is recognised in reserves.
AERBERENREBERE - The cumulative post-acquisition movements are

ERAEEELHENRERS adjusted against the carrying amount of the
RIARAFIEHE AT NER investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an
(B 5 1A L fth A3 40 2 PR U SR associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
B) K AEETBRIABEN associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
BE REAEEEERERC the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
BREEDARAR o has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf

of the associate.

FEBHEBEE AR ZBARSM Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
EENRERRZRAEE M and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
HEE N B R AR o BR Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses
FGREGBETHEREELR are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
HE BAXEZBEEBETE evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
HoHEATGEFBENE Accounting policies of associates have been changed
FEC/FLNE  UEREX where necessary to ensure consistency with the
SEMREAKE B o policies adopted by the Group.
BELARANBEIRERERS Dilution gains and losses in associates are
REEGEZRER o recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

22 @ARE @) 2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(d) £EEFIEE (d) Jointly controlled entities
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Jointly controlled entities are entities where the
Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity which is subject to joint control and none of
the participating parties has unilateral control over
the economic activity. Investments in jointly controlled
entities are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group’s investments in jointly controlled entities
include goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment
loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its jointly controlled entities’
post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its
interest in the jointly controlled entity, including any
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the jointly controlled
entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled
entity. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of jointly
controlled entities have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in jointly controlled entities
are recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.3 Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations

engaged in providing products or services that are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those
of other business segments. A geographical segment is

engaged in providing products or services within a

particular economic environment that are subject to risks

and returns that are different from those of segments

operating in other economic environments.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars, the Company’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income

statement.
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to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

(c)

KEEEZERARZAFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated income statement
within ‘finance income or cost’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘other (losses)/
gains’ net.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as available-for-
sale are included in the available-for-sale reserve in
equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each consolidated
income statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
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2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) EEAT (&)
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(c) Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities or operations, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity. When
a foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold,
exchange differences that were recorded in equity
are recognised in the consolidated income statement
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Construction in progress represents buildings and
leasehold improvements in which construction work has
not been completed and plant, machinery and equipment
pending installation. It is carried at cost which includes
construction expenditures and other direct costs less any
impairment losses. On completion, construction in
progress is transferred to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. No depreciation is provided for
construction in progress until it is completed and
available for use.
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e Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged in the income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Freehold land with unlimited useful life is not depreciated.
Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

- Buildings 10 to 50 years
- Leasehold improvements 3 to 10 years
- Plant and machinery 5 to 10 years
- Furniture and equipment 3 to 10 years

- Motor vehicles and yacht 5 to 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

2.6 Leasehold land and land use rights

The up-front prepayments made for leasehold land and
land use rights are accounted for as operating leases.
They are expensed in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the periods of the lease, or when
there is impairment, the impairment is expensed in the
income statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7 Intangible assets

(a)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary/
associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on
acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible
assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is
included in investments in associates. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment and carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose.

Licence rights

Licence rights are stated at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. They are initially measured
as the fair value of the consideration given to acquire
the licence at the time of the acquisition. The
consideration given represents the minimum
contractual obligation at the time of the acquisition.

Licence rights are amortised over the licence periods
on a basis that reflects the pattern in which the
licence’s future economic benefits are expected to be
consumed by the Group.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7 Intangible assets (Continued)

(c) Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at
historical cost. Trademarks acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Trademarks have a finite useful life
and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks and licences over their estimated useful
lives of 25 years.

(d) Customer relationships

Customer relationships represent the fair value
attributable to customer base or existing contractual
bids with customers taken over in connection with
business combinations. The amount is amortised
over their estimated useful lives of five years.

2 EEEHEEME @

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
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2.8 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates
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and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation, are tested at least annually for
impairment and are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets that are
subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset'’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Assets other than goodwill that suffer an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.
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2.9 Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purposes for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the balance sheet date. These are
classified as non-current assets. Loans and
receivables are classified as trade and other
receivables in the balance sheet.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the balance sheet date.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency and classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of
the security and other changes in the carrying amount of
the security. The translation differences on monetary
securities are recognised in profit or loss; translation
differences on non-monetary securities are recognised in
equity. Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in equity.

When financial assets classified as available-for-sale are
sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the income statement
as ‘gains and losses from financial assets’.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement as part of other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets are stated at fair values. If the market for
a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted securities),
the Group established fair value by using valuation
techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis,
and option pricing models, making maximum use of
market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-
specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of
available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the financial asset
below its cost is considered as an indicator that the asset
is impaired. The cumulative loss, which is measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss, is
removed from equity and recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through
the income statement. Impairment testing of trade and
other receivables is described in Note 2.11.

2.10Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.11 Trade and other receivables
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Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of trade
receivables and other receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in
payments are considered as indicators that the
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the assets is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
income statement within general and administrative
expenses. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance for receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against general and administrative expenses in the
income statement.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks with original maturities of
three months or less.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction
from the proceeds.

2.14 Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2 BEEEFBREME@ 2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
217 EERA 217 Employee benefits
(a) BIKEEME (a) Pension obligations
EEARRELZERERNKE Group companies operate various defined
MetdE - ZEFE-—RHGESB contribution retirement benefit schemes. The
MRBARAXGEEERESH schemes are generally funded through payments to
REE YTEEHELEEE insurance companies or trustee-administered funds,
il o REMAGFERLEEE determined by periodic actuarial calculations. A
e -—BYEBELEHRRZR defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
ResFE - MZESULEREHA which the Group pays contributions into a separate
BEXNMEREFRRAHE entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
kBEHEEEESRY TS obligations to pay further contributions if the fund
ZEMN > AEETEE— DM does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
R EERHEEEE ° the benefits relating to employee service in the

current and prior periods.

PAEMHRMSE  AEEIEZRE For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
NS BEREEER AR contributions to publicly or privately administered
IRAEBERAKRESEED# pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual
Mo —BXRHTE  XEH or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
WRE—SHREE - #HHE obligations once the contributions have been paid.
HERERARAEEERAMAX - E The contributions are recognised as employee
FEZETRERERERA benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
BRRREIHBERTERAE contributions are recognised as an asset to the
Ee extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future

payments is available.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Share-based compensation

KEEEZERARZAFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited

The Group operates two equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is
determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market service and performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity) over a specified
time period. Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest. The total amount expensed
is recognised over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance sheet
date, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in
the consolidated income statement with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium when the options
are exercised.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses. It recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice
that has created a constructive obligation.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Group recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to either: terminating the
employment of current employees according to a
detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal;
or providing termination benefits as a result of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after
balance sheet date are discounted to present value.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue
is shown, net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities as described below. The amount of revenue is
not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity
has delivered products to the customer, the customer
has accepted the products and collectability of the
related receivables is reasonably assured.

(b) Subcontracting income

Subcontracting income is recognised when
subcontracting services are provided.

(c) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

2.20 Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

LN HAREE 2.21 Contingent liabilities
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A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

2.22 Dividend distributions

Dividend distributions to the Company’s equity holders
are recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s equity holders.
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3 Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors
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KEEEZERARZAFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk. The ongoing
global financial crisis which commenced in the middle of
2007 has resulted in, among other things, a lower level of
capital market funding, lower liquidity levels across the
banking sector, and, at times, higher interbank lending
rates and very high volatility in stock and currency
markets. The uncertainties in the global financial markets
have led to bank failures and bank rescues in the United
States of America (“USA”), Western Europe and
elsewhere. The global financial crisis has also led to
current or potential recession in major economies. Indeed
the full extent of the impact of the ongoing financial crisis
is proving to be impossible to anticipate or completely
guard against.

The Group’s risk management focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group has not used derivative
financial instruments to hedge its risk exposures on
changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest
rates.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Foreign exchange risk
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The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to the Chinese Renminbi and United
States Dollars as the functional currency of most of
the Group’s operations is Hong Kong Dollars. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. The Group
currently does not hedge its foreign exchange
exposure.

As at 31 December 2008, if Chinese Renminbi had
strengthened/weakened by 6% (2007: 7%) against
the United States Dollars with all other variables held
constant, profit for the year and equity holders’ equity
would have been approximately HK$19,454,000
(2007: HK$23,112,000) higher/lower mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation
of Chinese Renminbi denominated cash and cash
equivalents, borrowings, trade and other receivables,
and trade and other payables.

The foreign currency exchange exposure on assets
and liabilities denominated in United States Dollars is
considered to be minimal as Hong Kong Dollars is
currently pegged to United States Dollars.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) EERR (b) Credit risk
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Under the ongoing global financial crisis, debtors of
the Group may be affected by the unfavourable
economic conditions and the lower liquidity situation
which could in turn impact their ability to repay the
amounts owed. Deteriorating operating conditions for
debtors may also have an impact on management’s
cash flow forecasts and assessment of the
impairment of receivables. To the extent that
information is available, management has properly
reflected revised estimates of expected future cash
flows in their impairment assessments.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history. It performs periodic credit evaluations/
reviews of its customers.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s trade
receivables due from one customer (2007: one
customer) represent approximately 49% (2007: 43%)
of its total trade receivables from third parties as at
31 December 2008 (Note 13). The Group has no
other significant concentrations of credit risk.

Majority of trade receivables are with customers
having an appropriate credit history. The Group
grants its customers credit terms ranging from 7 to
120 days. Most of the Group’s sales are on open
account, while sales made to a small number of
customers are covered by letters of credit issued by
banks or settled by documents against payment
issued by banks.

The Group has policies to place its cash and cash
equivalents only with major financial institutions. As
at 31 December 2008, cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$124,963,000 is covered by the
bank deposit guarantee scheme of the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
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Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of
funding from an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity reserve comprising undrawn borrowing
facility and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of
expected cash flow.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities and into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

—ZEWMF —ERE
DPR—F Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and &t
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
FE&xT THET FiET TERT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
®e Consolidated
R=ZZZENE At 31 December 2008
+t=A=+—-H
BERRAERE Borrowings and
interest payment 104,281 618 12,266 117,165
EREZERRZERE Trade and bills payable 386,627 — — 386,627
FE SR FX R Accruals and other payables 188,449 = = 188,449
H A FE {3 IR X
679,357 618 12,266 692,241
R-BELHF At 31 December 2007
+=A=+—-H
BREAERE Borrowings and
interest payment 70,575 1,297 12,770 84,642
A EZRAKREZE Trade and bills payable 376,877 = — 376,877
FE 5T IR 3 R Accruals and other
H fth FE 1S 1R FX payables 178,133 — — 178,133
625,585 1,297 12,770 639,652
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

(d)

KEEEZERARZAFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited

Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, all financial
liabilities of the Company are due within one year
and equal their carrying balances as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

Except for the short-term bank deposits as at 31
December 2008 of HK$174,021,000 (2007:
HK$401,935,000) held at effective interest rates of
1.0% per annum (2007: 3.7% per annum), the Group
has no other significant interest-bearing assets.
Majority of these balances are at floating rates.

Except for the borrowings of HK$113,326,000 as at
31 December 2008 (2007: HK$79,751,000) at floating
rates, the Group has no other significant interest
bearing liabilities.

At the respective balance sheet dates, if interest
rates had been increased/decreased by one
percentage-point and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s net profit would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$607,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2008 (2007: HK$3,222,000).
The fluctuation is attributable to interest income from
bank deposits and interest expense on bank

borrowings.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for the Company’s shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group was in a net cash
position (total borrowings were less than cash and cash
equivalents).

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as total borrowings divided by total equity.

EXREBHENT : The gearing ratio was as follows:
—EENE CZEEZLHE
2008 2007
TER FTEr
HK$°000 HK$°000
BB A (fif3E18) Total borrowings (Note 18) 113,326 79,751
P % #A 58 Total equity 2,029,194 1,901,098
EXRGEL=R Gearing ratio 6% 4%
tLﬁFEF tbIEMEEHRE The increase in the gearing ratio above resulted primarily
WESERREERFENAER from the increase of borrowings to finance working
HEEYMEEEERMERIEM - capital due to slower turnover days of trade and bills

receivable and inventories.
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3 2RRAKRERE @ 3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 AP EME 3.3 Fair value estimation
TEANEREMSZEEN I A (W0 The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
AJEHESRERE) AFEDEAM in an active market (for example, available-for-sale
SAAEEEE AEEKAZEAR financial assets) is determined by using valuation
o UREFEARBERITMERK techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
HEERER - makes assumptions that are based on market conditions

existing at each balance sheet date.

RHEREKEZRIARENES The carrying value less impairment provision of trade
RRBEREAEATFEZEEY receivables and payables are a reasonable
¥ o HARNEFELHEE  UBREBEAE approximation of their fair values. The fair value of
BREEcmeEUEm SR EN financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
AHtERRGNESREMGET S discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
MEBENATE- current market interest rate that is available to the Group

for similar financial instruments.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment, leasehold
land and land use rights and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land
use rights, and intangible assets (other than goodwill) are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable, and goodwill is tested annually for
impairment in accordance with accounting policy stated in
Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts are determined based
on value-in-use calculations or market valuations. These
calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset
value may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell or
net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset in
the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to
be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using
an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group’s financial position and results of operations. If
there is a significant adverse change in the projected
performance and resulting future cash flow projections, it
may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the
income statement.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(b) Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and

(c)

KEEEZERARZAFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited

equipment and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and residual values (if applicable) and
consequently related depreciation/ amortisation charges
for its property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions, or based
on value-in-use calculations or market valuations with
reference to the estimated periods that the Group intends
to derive future economic benefits from the use of
intangible assets. Management will increase the
depreciation/ amortisation charge where useful lives are
less than previously estimated lives, and it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets

that have been abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful
lives; and actual residual values may differ from
estimated residual values. Periodic review could result in
a change in depreciable lives and residual values and
therefore depreciation/ amortisation expense in future
periods.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These
estimates are based on current market conditions and the
historical experience of manufacturing and selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly as
a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to changes in market conditions.
Management reassesses these estimates at each
balance sheet date.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(d)

Trade, bills and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade, bills and other receivables based on
an assessment of the recoverability of the receivables.
This assessment is based on the credit history of its
customers and other debtors and current market
conditions, and requires the use of judgements and
estimates. Management reassesses the provision at each
balance sheet date.

Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management expects it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available to utilise the temporary
differences or tax losses. Management reassesses its

expectation at each balance sheet date.
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to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Segmental information

At 31 December 2008, the Group is organised into two main
business segments, namely (i) Manufacturing and (ii)
Distribution and retail. The Manufacturing segment
represents manufacturing of sportswear and active and outer
wear, primarily under OEM arrangements to customers in
Europe, North America and Mainland China. The Distribution
and retail segment represents the distribution and retail of
“Umbro” and “Diadora” branded sportswear, footwear,
accessories and sport equipment in Mainland China and

Hong Kong.

Starting from this year, the Group has combined its
“Sportswear manufacturing” segment and “Active and outer
wear” segment, and reported the aggregated amounts as
“Manufacturing” segment as the two former business
segments are subject to similar risks and returns and the new
presentation is consistent with its internal management
financial reporting. Prior year segment information is restated
for comparative purposes.
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5 aWER @ 5 Segmental information (Continued)

(a) FEEHAFRN XKD (a) Primary reporting format - business segments
BE-_ZZ)\F+-A=+—HL The segment results for the year ended 31 December
FEDIMEEMT : 2008 are as follows:

PHREE

4%  Distribution A0 E @t

Manufacturing and retail Unallocated Total

THER TR THERT THERT

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

o EP A & Total segment revenue 2,834,124 695,613 — 3,529,737

2 HE K& Inter-segment revenue (42,395) — — (42,395)

g Revenue 2,791,729 695,613 — 3,487,342
meRF (58 / Operating profit (loss)/

DHMEE segment results 158,929 (81,125) (2,357) 75,447
MEWA Finance income 12,350
RERE Finance costs (5,697)
JE 1 Bt Share of loss of

AEEE associates (2,884) (2,884)
BR AT B AT R R Profit before

income tax 79,216
T Income tax expense (52,442)
FERF Profit for the year 26,774
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5 oEER @ 5 Segmental information (Continued)

(a) ZE2HHFA—EK 2B (&) (a) Primary reporting format - business segments (Continued)
STAGEBEERNE Mo MER W Other segment items included in the consolidated income
T - statement are as follows:

PHREBE
4£E  Distribution ROE Bt
Manufacturing and retail  Unallocated Total
TER TERT TER TERT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
HELHR Amortisation of leasehold
TR AR land and land use rights 1,170 — — 1,170
ME - BERRENE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 68,545 23,926 — 92,471
BREE#EH Amortisation of
intangible assets — 7,133 — 7,133
% BERRERE Impairment of property,
plant and equipment 17,960 — — 17,960
BYEERE Impairment of
intangible assets — 25,479 — 25,479
AEESREERE Impairment of available-for-
sale financial assets 26,000 — — 26,000
RERE-F8 Impairment of
inventories, net 12,699 9,377 — 22,076
FE Wbk SR B — F & Impairment of
receivables, net 20,196 19,960 — 40,156
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5 aWER @ 5 Segmental information (Continued)

(a) ZE2HHFX—EK 2B (&) (a) Primary reporting format - business segments (Continued)
BE-_ZZtF+-A=+—HL The segment results for the year ended 31 December
FEDIMEEMT : 2007 are as follows:

PHREE
4%  Distribution A0 E Bt
Manufacturing and retail  Unallocated Total
TERT TERT TERT TERT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
(Z=E5)
(restated)
2 E A & Total segment revenue 2,652,881 669,850 — 3,322,731
2 2B W & Inter-segment revenue (331) — — (331)
U & Revenue 2,652,550 669,850 — 3,322,400
mERH/ PHEE Operating profit/
segment results 269,539 137,914 (7,330) 400,123
FEWA Finance income 24,821
MEHA Finance costs (6,019)
FE G B & A DR R Share of profit of
associates 2,647 2,647
EELREHNERER Share of loss of jointly
controlled entities (11,353) (11,353)
BR T8 B AT R R Profit before income tax 410,219
FERE X Income tax expense (75,525)
FERF Profit for the year 334,694
FFAGREEERNEMSBEE N Other segment items included in the consolidated income
T e statement are as follows:
HELH R+ Amortisation of leasehold
R land and land use rights 832 — — 832
ME  BERREIE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 53,761 10,523 — 64,284
BRERMEH Amortisation of
intangible assets — 11,473 — 11,473
REHE-FH Impairment of inventories, net 796 (257) — 539
IR R E - T8 Impairment of receivables, net 1,667 4,719 = 6,386
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5 aBER @

5 Segmental information (Continued)

(a) TE2HBAX BB @

(a) Primary reporting format - business segments (Continued)
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KEEEZERARZAFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited

Inter-segment transactions are conducted at terms
mutually agreed among group companies.

Segment assets consist primarily of leasehold land and
land use rights, property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets, investments in associates, available-for-sale
financial assets, inventories, trade, bills and other
receivables, and cash and cash equivalents. Unallocated
assets mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents held
for corporate uses, tax recoverable and deferred income
tax assets.

Segment liabilities comprise mainly operating liabilities.
Unallocated liabilities mainly comprise deferred income
tax liabilities, current income tax liabilities and corporate
borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to leasehold
land and land use rights, property, plant and equipment,
available-for-sale financial assets, and intangible assets,
including additions resulting from acquisitions through
business combinations.
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5 aWER @ 5 Segmental information (Continued)

(a) EEEHHFX %K 2 (@) (a) Primary reporting format - business segments (Continued)
RZZEZENF+ZA=t—-HzZ® The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2008
BEEREGEHEBZZALFEN and capital expenditure for the year then ended are as
EXRIWT : follows:

PHREE

£E  Distribution L st

Manufacturing and retail Unallocated Total

TERT TERT TERT TERT

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000

BE Assets 1,854,304 847,005 52,008 2,753,317

=N Associates 23,851 = — 23,851

BEE Total assets 1,878,155 847,005 52,008 2,777,168

wes Total liabilities 445,290 243,112 59,572 747,974

NG Capital expenditure 213,818 253,332 = 467,150
R-ZZEELF+-A=t—-HZS The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2007
BEERERHEHBZZALFEN and capital expenditure for the year then ended are as

EXBEXWT : follows:
PHREE

4%  Distribution ADE #at

Manufacturing and retail  Unallocated Total

TET TET TET TET

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

(=E5)
(restated)

BE Assets 1,682,176 635,845 273,214 2,591,235

N Associates 25,185 = — 25,185

BEE Total assets 1,707,361 635,845 273,214 2,616,420

“eE Total liabilities 408,782 225,979 80,561 715,322

NG Capital expenditure 239,096 47,965 = 287,061
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5 oEER @ 5 Segmental information (Continued)
(b) REEHFX—HES I (b) Secondary reporting format - geographical segments
FAEBFEEEERPEAAER The Group primarily operates in Hong Kong and
2 HEHREREBMNIRFERKR Mainland China. Sales are made to overseas customers
ERBERBEF o as well as customers in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

—EEN\F —TBtH

2008 2007
THER TET
HK$’°000 HK$’000
iy & Revenue

BN Europe 1,339,276 1,361,338
SEPNES Mainland China 1,047,396 829,466
e United States of America 454,649 521,952
BB Hong Kong 153,864 132,572
me x Canada 90,210 109,335
H 55 M Bl =X Other Asian countries 249,745 230,075
Hit Others 152,202 137,662
3,487,342 3,322,400
“E2EEN\FE CZEETtHF
2008 2007
THER TAT
HK$’000 HK$’000

DEWE DT Analysis of revenue by category
HEE M Sales of goods 3,474,254 3,313,616
RS ERE Provision of subcontracting services 13,088 8,784

3,487,342 3,322,400
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ZEMBHMEME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TEHEH @ 5

(b) REEFAHAX—HED @)

AEEEBESBE D HWEIR
BERRRABEENLEE -

Segmental information (Continued)

(Continued)

(b) Secondary reporting format - geographical segments

The Group’s revenue by geographical location is
determined by the final destination of delivery of the

products.

“EENE C"ZTELE
2008 2007
TER FTERT
HK$’000 HK$’000

BEE Total assets
5B Hong Kong 795,951 1,123,153
M B K BE Mainland China 1,885,647 1,369,460
HiExR Other countries 95,570 123,807
2,777,168 2,616,420

REERBEEMAELED -

Total assets are allocated based on where the assets are

located.

—BEN\FE CZETLHF
2008 2007
TERT TET
HK$’000 HK$°000

BEREX Capital expenditure
&8 Hong Kong 24,266 18,582
i B A pE Mainland China 410,436 258,759
HAh B X Other countries 32,448 9,720
467,150 287,061

EXAXRBEEMELED -

Capital expenditure is allocated based on where the

assets are located.
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6 HET R LHFERAE -HE 6 Leasehold land and land use rights - Consolidated

FEEMESNHEEL R T ERE The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights
EalEMLEHERERHIREFE represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net
DHWMT : book amounts are analysed as follows:

—gE\F C-FTLF

2008 2007
TERT TERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
EBEBER: In Hong Kong held on:
HENF10ZE505F Leases of between 10 to 50 years 13,642 13,992
EHRBEAEREE : In Mainland China held on:
T AREEBE0F Land use rights of over 50 years 1,221 —
TiFERAENF10250F Land use rights of between 10 to 50 years 40,658 39,094
55,521 53,086
“EEINFE CZEZEZLtHF
2008 2007
TERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
F4) Beginning of the year 53,086 31,476
ELER Exchange differences 1,619 244
= Additions 1,986 22,198
1 88 Amortisation (1,170) (832)
F. End of the year 55,521 53,086
BAKEHERENEHESTA KRR Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments has been
THRAX included in general and administrative expenses.
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7 ME KBERZE-KRE 7 Property, plant and equipment - Consolidated
XA$# AENE GRERE REREE
1 £6  BEREE  Furniture Motr  %EIR
Freehold #%  Leasehold  Plantand and vehicles Construction @
land Buildings improvements ~ machinery  equipment  and yacht in progress Total

TEn Tén TEn TEn Tén TEn TR TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

WR=E5tE-A-H At1 January 2007

KA Cost 2,700 47,389 87,854 223,123 58,634 13,428 62,817 496,545
BHE Accumulated depreciaton - (1951)  (2907)  (74054)  (6603)  (0,123) — (150638)
REFE Net book amount 2,100 39,438 54,947 149,669 32,031 4,305 62,817 345,907
HE-EZtE Year ended 31 December 2007
T-ZA=t-HLEE

FNRAFE Opening net book amount 2,700 39,438 54,947 149,669 32,031 4,305 62,817 345,907
EXZER Exchange differences — 146 2,798 2,813 1,096 226 1,211 8,410
WENEL A Acquisition of subsidiaries = = 82 = 4,230 250 = 4,562
"E Additions — 4178 23,331 104,172 54,303 5,830 62,756 254,570
EER Transfers — 41,284 28,915 11,633 136 - (81,968) -
e Disposals - - - (1074) (107) (356) - (2,137
g Depreciation - (1567)  (1654)  (27762)  (16811)  (1600) — (284
ERREEFE Closing net book amount 2,700 83,479 93,529 239,511 74,278 8,655 44,876 547,028

WZBELE+ZA=+-H At31December 2007

RA Cost 2,700 93,106 143,653 341,867 17,319 14,690 44,876 758,271
ZHRE Accumulated depreciation — (9,627) (50,124) (102,356 (43,101) (6,035) — (211,243)
REFE Net book amount 2,700 83,479 93,529 239,511 74,218 8,655 44,876 547,028
HE-EZN\E+ZA Year ended 31 December 2008
St-ALEE

ENREFE Opening net book amount 2,700 83,479 93,529 239,511 74,278 8,655 44,876 547,028
EXZER Exchange differences — 903 4,934 5197 3,154 285 2,862 17,335
wE Additions — 2817 14,852 55,311 45,576 18,821 73970 211,407
B Transfers — 21,452 31,853 5118 — — (58,423) —
HE Disposals — - (382) (456) (982) (248) (1.21) (3,339)
ik Depreciation — (2317) (18,084) (35,633) (33,206) (3171) — (92,471)
B Impairment — (11,750) (5171) (825) (214) — — (17,960)
EREEEE Closing net book amount 2,700 94,584 121,531 268,223 88,606 24,342 62,014 662,000

W=BENE+ZA=1+—H At31 December 2008

RA Cost 2,700 104,344 185,401 391,801 156,138 33,211 62,014 935,609
ZHARERAE Accumulated depreciation

and impaiment — OT0)  (B38T0)  (123578)  (675%2)  (3869) — (n360)
REFE Net book amount 2,700 94,584 121,531 268,223 88,606 24,342 62,014 662,000
KAERLTHNURNERFEEE (TH Freehold land is located in the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan
Blo (“Jordan”).
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7 ME BERRE-HE@ 7 Property, plant and equipment - Consolidated
(Continued)
EReBaRkBERANMERIRHES Depreciation expense and impairment loss recognised in the
BAWWT : consolidated income statement is analysed as follows:

—EE\F C—FTLF

2008 2007

THER TAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

HERAK Cost of sales 45,509 32,917
—BRRITBAX General and administrative expenses 64,922 31,367
110,431 64,284
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BREE-&RE 8 Intangible assets - Consolidated
EEE EFBHE
e HE Licence  Customer @t
Trademarks Goodwill rights relationships Total
TET TET TET TET TET
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
R-—Z2ZtF—H—H  At1January 2007
BA Cost — 11,361 227,743 — 239,104
B Accumulated amortisation = = (88,808) — (88,808)
IREFE Net book amount = 11,361 138,935 = 150,296
BE_ZZtHF Year ended
+ZA=1+—HIEE 31 December 2007
FMREFE Opening net book amount — 11,361 138,935 = 150,296
ERZH Exchange differences = 1,609 348 122 2,079
WEHBLR,/ Acquisition of subsidiaries/
%% (Mi£32) businesses (Note 32) — 36,003 3,726 2,005 41,734
BHBREEE Derecognition of
(R aE) licence rights (Note) — —  (130,312) —  (130,312)
B Amortisation - - (11,206) (267) (11,473)
FHRIEEFE Closing net book amount — 48,973 1,491 1,860 52,324
R-EZtHF At 31 December 2007
+=A=+-8
B Cost = 48,973 3,806 2,127 54,906
B Accumulated amortisation = = (2,315) (267) (2,582)
1REFE Net book amount — 48,973 1,491 1,860 52,324
BE_ZEN\F Year ended
+ZA=1+—HIEE 31 December 2008
FMREFE Opening net book amount — 48,973 1,491 1,860 52,324
ELEH Exchange differences — 4,004 35 52 4,091
wE (KEE9(c) Additions (Note 9(c)) 221,387 — — — 221,387
B Amortisation (5,166) — (1,526) (441) (7,133)
HE Impairment = (24,008) = (1,471) (25,479)
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 216,221 28,969 — — 245190
R-ZZENE At 31 December 2008
+=A=t-H
A Cost 221,387 52,977 3,841 2,219 280,424
2B ERAE Accumulated amortisation
and impairment (5,166) (24,008) (3,841) (2,219) (35,234)
i [ F & Net book amount 216,221 28,969 = = 245,190
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BREEE-ZEe @

REH P 1,526,000 T (ZEZF+
% :11,206,000587T) st ASHERA ©
5,607,000/ 7T (ZZZ £ : 267,000/
T T A—MRITHEX © 25,479,000/
T(ZZEZLF &) HEFA-RRT
BEX -

MaE

RZZZLFE_F > AQRAZHWBRARREH
TR A EGE B2 TLtF=ARE=
Z_ZHE+-ALEREUmMbroEREFRE R
BEBE - RFRAEZBERIHES - REZ
W& ARBERXEFTERARAZ—ER
R Umbro International Limitedif #& $5 & &
RELBEZLE (N F6%E25%) HEZR
MUmbroEmX N EERE  HEESEXH
ENEHEERER - i KL ZAINEE
EifZ MERCEIANSEERESERE
ERERACIVERR - BN HESEEERER
HERSEENEL33,526,0008 TERIA
Htn a5 (KfEE23) o

HERENR

FAEIRERBEEE I BRBIEMEE
THAEEBRSELEN ([REELE
fil) e R=ZFEENE+=B=+—-8"
13,985,000 © (= & & t &
11,361,000/ 70) WEEBR 2B E FE X
MEEB IR D SE ¥ 0 T 14,984,00008 T
(ZEZ L F : 37,612,000 t) Bl 5
BEPEAEERSEEYK B2
HREEEBNBESELEENCHAE
AR REHNHRERE -

KEEEZERARZAFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited

Consolidated Financial Statements

Intangible assets - Consolidated (Continued)

Amortisation of HK$1,526,000 (2007: HK$11,206,000) is
included in cost of sales and HK$5,607,000 (2007:
HK$267,000) is included in general and administrative
expenses. Impairment of HK$25,479,000 (2007: Nil) is
included in general and administrative expenses.

Note:

In February 2007, Team & Sports Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a new distribution agreement to act as an
exclusive distributor of the Umbro branded products in Mainland
China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan from March 2007 to December
2020. Under this agreement, the Group is required to pay Umbro
International Limited, a shareholder of Team & Sports Limited, royalty
on all “Umbro” branded products sold at pre-determined rates
ranging from 6% to 25% based on selling price, but is not obligated
to any fixed periodic royalty payment. Consequently, the former
agreement for licence rights was terminated and the then recognised
licence rights and the related licence fees payable were
derecognised. The excess of the carrying amounts of the licence fees
payable over the licence rights of HK$33,526,000 was recognised as
other gains (Note 23).

Impairment tests for goodwill:

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGU”) identified according to business segment and
geographical location. As at 31 December 2008, goodwill of
HK$13,985,000 (2007: HK$11,361,000) is allocated to the
sportswear distribution business in Mainland China and
HK$14,984,000 (2007: HK$37,612,000) is allocated to the
sportswear retail business in Mainland China, representing
the identified groups of CGU within the Distribution and retail
segment that are expected to benefit from synergies of the
acquisitions.
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BREEE-ZE®@
BEREAR @

ReEtEANTRRSENREER
BEMELNLEE - ZSHAEEARE
EEEREDRIEREHRTEXEK
DHMAEN=FHRAFHUBREEN
AENBARERERN c BHE#E
REMREREAZREREUTIREZ
JIzEBBRREE - HBRETEBEE
ELENFEEXBNRBFHER

8

Intangible assets - Consolidated (Continued)
Impairment tests for goodwill: (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units are
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a three-
year period for the sportswear distribution business and a
five-year period for the sportswear retail business. Cash
flows beyond the period covered in approved budgets are
extrapolated using the key assumptions stated below. The
growth rates do not exceed the long-term average growth
rates for the businesses in which the cash-generating units
operate.

2008 2007
—EEN\F —EBtH

EERA%E EBDRTE EFRIE EBRZE

Sportswear Sportswear Sportswear Sportswear

distribution retail distribution retail

BEEF = Budgeted gross margin 38% 36% 48% 43%
AEREEBHESES  Growth rate used to

BeREaviERE extrapolate cashflows
beyond the
budget period 0% 0% 0% 0%
B A BE R = Pre-tax discount rate 8% 8% 4.5% 7%

EEEREBARARHETERRY
AHEEREEAE -

BE_ZEENFE+-A=+—-HLF
B RESARBAENRK  RED
REEXRKEELENRIAME
24,008,0008 T (ZEE L& : &) - &
A—RRITBHAX -

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on

past performance and its expectations for market

development.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, impairment of
HK$24,008,000 (2007: Nil) was recognised in respect of the
sportswear retail business CGU as a result of the decrease in
forecasted future profitability, which is included in general
and administrative expenses.
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9 HNBLARAMNRE-EAATF 9 Investments in subsidiaries - Company
“RENFE -FELH
2008 2007
THET FER
HK$’000 HK$’000
REFELEHRD  BEA AR Investment in unlisted shares, at cost 538,341 538,331
FEW KB A =) £ %8 (Hf&£(a))  Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note (a)) 817,811 694,007
1,356,152 1,232,338

THAR-ZZENFT-A=1t—HH
TEMBLE EIRLED) FE

The following are details of principal subsidiaries, all of which
are unlisted, as at 31 December 2008:

MK LEER BRIR
tEERRY BRRERSE frs g
Place of Particulars Interest held TEEEREENY
% incorporation and of issued “EENE ZZZLE  Principal activities and
Name type of legal entity paid up capital 2008 2007  place of operations
Al-Aham Garment HE BRERLA 125,000 B 7 100% 100% £EAXER/HE
Manufacturing Company Limited Jordan, limited J$125,000 Manufacturing of
liability company garment products/
Jordan
ERINERLA ABELHS 100% 7T 100% 100% BERKER/ER
Bowker Asia Limited ((Rz#E]) US$100 Trading of garment
BRELLA products/Hong Kong
British Virgin Islands
(‘BVI"), limited
liability company
BERRERERLA WEAE HNEBELE  4300,000% T 100% 100% £ERKER/PEAE
Bowker (Haining) Mainland China, US$4,300,000 Manufacturing of
Garment Co. Limited wholly foreign garment products/
owned enterprise Mainland China
ERAKEM (RR)ERAA MEAK HABBELE 4,050,000 % 100% 100% %ERKER/TEAE
Bowker Garment Mainland China, HK$4,050,000 Manufacturing of
Accessories (Dongguan) wholly foreign garment products/
Company Limited owned enterprise Mainland China
EEAREN(TRIERAA HEAE NEBELE  4199490% 7 100% 100% £ERKER/HEAKE
Bowker Garment Mainland China, US$4,199,490 Manufacturing of

Accessories (Heyuan)
Company Limited

wholly foreign
owned enterprise

KEEEZERARZAFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited

garment products/
Mainland China
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HNBRARANKRE-ZA2T@® 9

EL

Name

ERURERERLT

Bowker Garment
Accessories
Company Limited

BERKH () BRAT
Bowker Garment Factory
(Yunfu) Company Limited

ERARHERLR
Bowker Garment
Factory Company Limited

EEAER TR BRAA
Bowker Printing Factory
(Heyuan) Company Limited

EEEDRR(TRERAT
Bowker Sportswear (Heyuan)
Company Limited

ERAEENR(ER)ERAT
Bowker Venture Garment
(Yunfu) Company Limited

SMALHBER
EEERER
Place of

incorporation and

type of legal entity

% BERERLH
Hong Kong,
limited liability
company

HEKE MERELE
Mainland China,

wholly foreign

owned enterprise

E% ERERLH
Hong Kong,
limited liability
company

hEAKE NERELE
Mainland China,

wholly foreign

owned enterprise

hEAK  HERELE
Mainland China,

wholly foreign

owned enterprise

HEKE MERELE
Mainland China,

wholly foreign

owned enterprise

BREAR
HERAGFE
Particulars

of issued

paid up capital

10,000% 1t
HK$10,000

22,000,000/ 1t
HK$22,000,000

10,0008 L8 RE &
200,000 T R R
BEEERY
(R¥3E ()

HK$10,000 ordinary
HK$200,000
non-voting
deferred (Note (d))

47,997,720/8 1t
HK$47,997,720

13,682,820% 7T
US$13,682,820

80,000,000/ 7t
HK$80,000,000

Investments in subsidiaries - Company (Continued)

e
Interest held

“ERNE CRELE
2008 2007

100% 100%

85% 85%

100% 100%

100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

IRXHREELA
Principal activities and

place of operations

REERREE
RKER/ER

Investment holding and
trading of garment
products/Hong Kong

LERKER/TEAKE

Manufacturing of
garment products/
Mainland China

BERKER/ER
Trading of garment
products/Hong Kong

LEDERNEER/
hE KK

Manufacturing of
printing and
embroidery products/
Mainland China

EERRER/TEAE

Manufacturing of
garment products/
Mainland China

LERKER/THEKE

Manufacturing of
garment products/
Mainland China
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HHNBRARANKRE-ZX2FT @ 9

1

Name

Bowker (Vietnam) Garment
Factory Company Limited

BEHE (2R BRAT
Bowker Vietnam Holding
Limited

BERE (BN IXERAT
Bowker Yao Wa (Huizhou)
Industry Limited

EERARKEOTR) ERAT
Bowker Yee Sing

Garment Factory

(Heyuan) Company Limited

Corus Investments Limited

EMRIHER
EEERER
Place of

incorporation and

type of legal entity

HBE - BARERLR
Vietnam, limited
liability company

% ERERLT
Hong Kong,
limited liability
company

MEIRE
NERELE

Mainland China,
wholly foreign
owned enterprise

MEIRE
NERELR

Mainland China,
wholly foreign
owned enterprise

% BEREALA
Hong Kong,
limited liability
company

RESARERRRIERLR
MREERARR (R ARLT)

Diadora Sportswear (Shenzhen) Limited

HEAE  MEBELE
Mainland China,
wholly foreign
(formerly known as Win Sports
(Shenzhen) Limited)

owned enterprise

# ZOATNROBADAEERR  Hft
AHAABEESE -

KEEEZERARZAF  Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

BRAR
HERAGFE
Particulars

of issued

paid up capital

15,600,000% 7t
HK$15,600,000

1,000,000/ 7T
HK$1,000,000

16,000,008 7t
HK$16,000,000

120,000,008 7t
HK$120,000,000

10,0007 7t
HK$10,000

5,000,000 A &
RMB5,000,000

Investments in subsidiaries - Company (Continued)

fishe

Interest held
SRENE CBELE
2008 2007
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
11% 71%
#100% #100%
60% 75%

IERBREENE

Principal activities and

place of operations

LERKER/HEB

Manufacturing of
garment products/
Vietnam

REZRREEAK
En/B%

Investment holding and
trading of garment
products/Hong Kong

LERKER/TEAK

Manufacturing of
garment products/
Mainland China

LERKER/TEAR

Manufacturing of
garment products/
Mainland China

ES VA
Property holding/
Hong Kong

BEAXER/TEAE
Trading of garment
products/
Mainland China

# The shares of this company are held directly by the Company;
others are held indirectly by the Company
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9 HWEBLARAKNKRE-AATwm 9

E2
Name

HEERDA
Gold Chase Limited

BNTEBENARERAR
Guangzhou Panyu Newpurls
Garment Factory Limited

ENEERERRARLA
Guangzhou Win Sports Ltd.

#A (BB ERAR
Rich Form (HK) Limited

EFMENERRARLA
Sport City Garment
Factory Company Limited

EBLARAF

Sport Corners Limited

REEERAR (B ERLA
Team & Sports (Shenzhen) Ltd.

SMALHBER
EEERER
Place of

incorporation and

type of legal entity

E% BERERLH
Hong Kong,
limited liability
company

HEAE MERELE
Mainland China,

wholly foreign

owned enterprise

hEAK  NERELE
Mainland China,

wholly foreign

owned enterprise

% ERELLF
Hong Kong,
limited liability
company

HEKE NERELE
Mainland China,

foreign equity

joint venture

% ERERLF
Hong Kong,
limited liability
company

hEAKE NAERELE
Mainland China,

wholly foreign

owned enterprise

Investments in subsidiaries - Company (Continued)

BREAR

HERAGFE e
Particulars Interest held

of issued ZEEN\E ZEELE
paid up capital 2008 2007
10,000% 1t 100% 100%
HK$10,000

4,000,000% 7t 100% 100%
HK$4,000,000

20,000,000 Tt 15% 50%
HK$20,000,000

10,0007 7t 100% 100%
HK$10,000

550,000 7t 12.7% 72.7%
HK$550,000

500,000% 1t 15% 75%
HK$500,000

5,000,000/ 7t 60% 60%
HK$5,000,000

IRXHREELA
Principal activities and

place of operations

EERKER/ER
Trading of garment
products/Hong Kong

LERKER/THEAKE

Manufacturing of
garment products/
Mainland China

BERZEARER/
PEARE

Trading and retailing
of garment products/
Mainland China

BERKER/EHR
Trading of garment
products/Hong Kong

EERRER/TEAE

Manufacturing of
garment products/
Mainland China

TEEDRER/BR
Retailing of sportswear
products/Hong Kong

BERKER/THEAK
Trading of garment
products/Mainland China
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Name

REFTERLE (W (b)
Team & Sports Limited (Note (b))

XEHEERLE
Win Hanverky
(China) Company Limited

XERE (BR)ERLA
Win Hanverky Limited

FERERAMERAA (W (32)
Win Sports Limited (Note(32))

Win Sports Trading
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

XEEBRERA (W5 (c)
Winor International
Company Limited (Note (c))

ENmEZERERAH
Wuzhou Bowker
Garment Company Limited

otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9 HNWEBLARAKNKBRE-AATwmw 9

EMRIHER
EEERER
Place of

incorporation and

type of legal entity

R AREMALH
Hong Kong,
limited liability
company

Bk ERERLT
Hong Kong,
limited liability
company

g4 AREMEL
Hong Kong,

limited liability

company

g4 AREMAL
Hong Kong,

limited liability

company

hEAR HEEELE

Mainland China,
wholly foreign
owned enterprise

g4 AREMEL
Hong Kong,

limited liability

company

hEAE  AEBELE

Mainland China,
wholly foreign
owned enterprise

KEEEZERARZAF  Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

Investments in subsidiaries - Company (Continued)

BRAR
HERAGFE
Particulars

of issued

paid up capital

900,000 7t
HK$900,000

10,0008 ¢
HK$10,000

10,0008 T8 REE
1,000,000/ 7
FREEE
ZERH (W3 (d)

HK$10,000 ordinary
HK$1,000,000
non-voting deferred
(Note (d))

80,000,000/8 7t
HK$80,000,000

5,000,000% 7t
HKS$5,000,000

182,010,000% 7t
HK$182,010,000

76,695,7907% Tt
HK$76,695,790

fishe
Interest held
=L

2008

60%

100%

100%

15%

15%

60%

100%

ZERLE

2007

60%

100%

100%

75%

75%

100%

IERBREENE

Principal activities and

place of operations

BERRER/ Bk
Trading of garment
products/Hong Kong

EERKER/BR
Trading of garment
products/Hong Kong

BERKER/ER
Trading of garment
products/Hong Kong

BERKER/ER
Trading of garment
products/Hong Kong

EERTEARER/
MERE

Trading and retailing of
garment products/
Mainland China

REBR/EH

Investment holding/Hong Kong

LERRER/PEAE

Manufacturing of
garment products/
Mainland China



SEBMEHRRME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9 HHWEBLARAKNKRE -AATwm
Bt

(a)

FE W BY /B8 2 R SR & AR 4 ) o) 4R BE Y B
ARRENRARE - DEAABHK
BRERENS S BETE

R-ZZtFE=F A5EURSNKE
128,571,000 7t (4% 7 16,500,0003%
T)HENBRARAXEFTERAA ([X
& |) 2 15%MR # F Umbro International
Limted (T&SZ 5 — R R) - H#& » K&
B A T&SK E KB 2 5 19 B R B 75%)
% 60%; MM Umbro International
Limited RT&SR HKTE D & 2 i # Bl &
25%38 N E 40%° H R Lt i &
Umbro International Limited& & &
ZHESE TRERF30,873,000% 7T
MR o FrEFIERH15%D R RE
ENRAENZERRZRAEHNE
%8 5134,116,00078 T3t AR ©

RZZENENA > AEEEXEHRR
BRADTE ([XE]) FiDiadoralZ&E @R
HEAE BEERBMANEERHEET
S o A& E 234,000,000 T E
REKEGORR E - RESBKE
62,400,000 TR % @+ HRREB
[6] 7K [ ¥ 2 {f Al Diadora i 12 MY A2 88
KEHTA0%RE - it » REBRK
BEMBRRT LR EAERZBHER
O OBLELEEHBLER AEER
HRRAIRBLAEENSEIRHE
RBEAEERKEC%RE o ltoh
K H — KK B A Al B Diadoram 2 #) —
% Al Diadora®I 2 M A KB E &
Diadorai ZME TE ZEWIRR K 17

5 o

RAKER L% EBRBAEEEDiadora@iz
V4R 2 & 221,387,000 T (FfH=E8)
I #2255 K9 fh 5t AT 68 A B 8 o

9

Investments in subsidiaries - Company (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Amounts due from subsidiaries represent equity funding by the
Company to the respective subsidiaries and are measured in
accordance with the Company’s accounting policy for
investments in subsidiaries.

In March 2007, the Group disposed of 15% equity interest in
Team & Sports Limited (“T&S”), a subsidiary, to Umbro
International Limited, the other shareholder of T&S, for a cash
consideration of HK$128,571,000 (equivalent of
US$16,500,000). Consequently, the Group’s equity interest in
T&S and its subsidiaries has decreased from 75% to 60%; while
Umbro International Limited’s equity interest in T&S and its
subsidiaries was increased from 25% to 40%. In connection with
the disposal, Umbro International Limited has agreed to
surrender its entitlement to certain retained earnings amounting
to HK$30,873,000. The excess of the proceeds over the carrying
value of the 15% minority interest less transaction costs
amounting to HK$134,116,000, which has been credited to
equity.

In April 2008, the Group entered into agreements to establish
Winor International Company Limited (“Winor”) for the
manufacture and sale of products bearing the Diadora
trademarks in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau. The
Group has subscribed 60% equity interest in Winor for a cash
consideration of HK$234,000,000. The other shareholder has
subscribed the remaining 40% equity interest in Winor by
assignment to it the rights to use the Diadora trademarks, after
receiving a payment of HK$62,400,000 from Winor. In this
connection, the Group and the other shareholder of Winor have
entered into a put option and a call option agreement, under
which the Group can sell and the other shareholder can
purchase the Group’s 60% equity interest in Winor at pre-
determined amounts upon occurrence of a limited number of
events. In addition, a subsidiary of Winor acquired certain trade
receivables and inventories relating to the Diadora trademarks
from a former licensee of the Diadora trademarks.

Upon the establishment of Winor, intangible assets, representing
the Diadora trademarks, amounting to HK$221,387,000 (Note 8)
have been recognised and are to be amortised over their
estimated useful life of 25 years.
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9 HHBARMNKRE-—AX2T@® 9
Wiz ()

(d) BERERELRGUAFHAEEHMES
ZERDUBRERE  RIFFED AN
A8 H100,000,000,0005% 7t + & Bl &
EERE  MERFEEAGRMHLER
%8 AE %7K 100,000,000,0008 T » &
AR ERENERBEA IR

() REE-FENF+-A=+—-HLHF
EEMERE - MEARLEEME BT
BEER (C2ELF  H) -

ETHBATAREEEXREXEME
AASEEEERBEBENTNERE
NEEHRL °

Investments in subsidiaries - Company (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(d) The non-voting deferred shares are not owned by the Group.
These shares have no voting rights, are not entitled to dividends
unless the net profit of the relevant company exceeds
HK$100,000,000,000 and are not entitled to any distributions
upon winding up unless a sum of HK$100,000,000,000 has been
distributed by the relevant company to the holders of its ordinary
shares.

(e) None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: None).

The English names of certain subsidiaries represent the best
effort by the management of the Group to translate their
Chinese names as they do not have official English names.

10 REEZE DRI 2 RE — #E 10 Interests in associates - Consolidated

—2ENF C—ZTTLH

2008 2007
TER FTEx

HK$’000 HK$’000

=20 Beginning of the year 25,184 21,589
DL EE Share of reserves 1,551 948
21k (B1B) &7 Share of (loss)/profit (2,884) 2,647
FH End of the year 23,851 25,184

KEEEZERARZAF  Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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10 REEERTIZRE — REa®

WFAR=FBAET=A=+-8%
EEBE DT (R L) HHE

10 Interests in associates - Consolidated (Continued)

The following are details of the Group’s associates, all of
which are unlisted, as at 31 December 2008:

o B L it B BETHE
REBER N P E R
Place of Particulars Interest held TEERREERY
28 incorporation and of issued “ZZN\§F ZEZLHF Principal activities and
Name type of legal entity up capital 2008 2007  place of operations
EEEERREELE HE AR 54,889,0007 30% 30% WRMRERMEE
CUR) BRA A NE2ELE AR B K B
Fu Hsun Bowker Dyeing Mainland China, RMB54,889,000 Fabrics dyeing and
Factory (Heyuan) wholly foreign supply/Mainland
Company Limited owned enterprise China
EEREERAF EZHE BREME 6,800,000% T 30% 30% REERRBHDR
Fu Hsun Investment AH US$6,800,000 RiE/ 8%
Company Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding
company and fabrics dyeing
and supply/Taiwan
Fu Jin Bowker ELBE BEREM  2,900,000% 30% 0% HEAHRE/ AR
Company Limited NE] US$2,900,000 Sourcing of fabrics/
BVI, limited liability Taiwan
company

AEEREHELNRNEE BF - BE

The Group’s shares of the assets, liabilities, revenue and

REZWT : results of the associates are as follows:
2008 2007
“EENE —_TEZLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T& T
BE Assets 48,051 36,913
=K Liabilities 24,200 11,729
iy &= Revenue 60,593 78,486
FE (BB &8A (Loss)/profit for the year (2,884) 2,647
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M AIHESREE — H8 11 Available-for-sale financial assets - Consolidated
A ESHEENT ! Available-for-sale financial assets are as follows:

—EENE C"EEZLE

2008 2007

FERT FTERT

HK$’000 HK$°000

®1A1A8 At 1 January — —

NE Additions 32,370 —

HE Impairment (26,000) —

®12A318 At 31 December 6,370 —

RZZEZENFERA  AEBETHKE— In June 2008, the Group completed its acquisition of 10%

%F%l?ﬂﬂﬁmmktmﬂim%ﬂﬁ
BoZLAREERSIHRERED
REFRFTEA S AEEEN—BHE
12 - B8 B {{232,370,000/8 T JH3E B
FE U 3% 2\ 5] $% 78 32,370,000 JTiK 85 ©
ZREUETRIIE 2BEATHEES

RZBEENE+ZA=+—-0 ZEX
IHRBSHAFEDRERSANE - B
B MERBHEAET (BRERKRER
RANRREZUBES) ROEBEREH
JONCEBENEEE -HBE-ZZ
NE+ZA=1+—-HLEE BARZER
EMBERRRBFEATER  REFSE
26,000,000 T (ZZZ+ & &) HE
AR—MRTBEEAIA -

KEEEZERARZAFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited

equity interest in an unlisted company incorporated in the
USA, which is engaged in the design and distribution of
active wear and sportswear in the USA and is a sales agent
of the Group. The purchase consideration of HK$32,370,000
was settled by offsetting the receivables of HK$32,370,000
due from this company. This investment is denominated in
United States Dollars and is classified as available-for-sale
financial assets.

The fair value of these unlisted securities as at 31 December
2008 was determined according to the enterprise value
calculation based on earnings before interest, income taxes,
depreciation and amortisation extracted from the unaudited
financial results of the investee company for the year ended
31 December 2008 and an enterprise value multiple of 4.0.
During the year ended 31 December 2008, an impairment
loss of HK$26,000,000 (2007: Nil) was recognised in general
and administrative expenses as a result of the decrease in
forecasted future profitability of the investment.



12

13

ZEMBHMEME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE—&#4 12 Inventories - Consolidated
—EENE C—ETELEFE
2008 2007
TER TERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
J& A1 R Raw materials 179,493 188,398
ERE Work in progress 77,142 79,210
SR M Finished goods 291,039 218,547
547,674 486,155

FERANH2477,343,0008 T (ZEF
+ £ 1 2,241,641,000% ) R A H
%o WEFTAHEERAR o

FEREFES22,076,0008 T (Z2Z
+ & : 539,000 T) ' BEAFAHEER
z|_§ °

BRESERREE—FE

The costs of inventories recognised as expense and included
in cost of sales amounted to approximately
HK$2,477,343,000 (2007: HK$2,241,641,000).

Net write-down of inventories amounted to approximately
HK$22,076,000 (2007: HK$539,000) was included in cost of
sales.

13 Trade and bills receivable - Consolidated

—BEENE C—ZELE
2008 2007
TERT FTiExT
HK$’000 HK$’000

FE U B 5 1R K Trade receivables
— RBE=HA - from third parties 738,135 687,422
— REBHA - from related parties (Note 33(d)) 2,022 8,556

(BF=E33(d))

EWEE Bills receivable 54,211 23,776
794,368 719,754
R ERE Less: provision for impairment (25,018) (15,687)
769,350 704,067

BREZEARFERAERRSEND
FEMEE -

RZZBENF+ZA=+—-H —FRK (=
T —R)EFNRBHRER L
REE=ZAATHNAEEEKRE SRR
REBBAEI0% MREEFNLEHE
HAMERBE=ZAATIHNAEERKE
SRAREBBENI% (ZEELE .
43%) - REEFEN  YEEBEEKES
RRREBENEFEERR o

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivable
approximate their fair values.

As at 31 December 2008, there was one (2007: one)
customer with outstanding balance exceeded 10% of the
Group'’s total trade and bills receivable from third parties, and
the aggregated balances from this customer accounted for
approximately 49% (2007: 43%) of the Group’s total trade
and bills receivable from third parties. Other than this
customer, there was no concentration of credit risk with
respect to trade and bills receivable.
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1B3ERESRAREE—FE @

BUESERTIERBEERFFEER
BNEF AKRERTEFNEESN
F7E1208 © AEBE K E X ED T
RARNET MEALHEFNEERR
BITBRHNEARIARARITRED
ARXHEE - BREZRARRED

13

to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Trade and bills receivable - Consolidated (Continued)

Majority of trade receivables are with customers having an
appropriate credit history. The Group grants its customers
credit terms ranging from 7 to 120 days. Most of the Group’s
sales are on open account, while sales made to a small
number of customers are covered by letters of credit issued
by banks or settled by documents against payment issued by

REDMUT banks. The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivable is as
follows:

—EENFE CZEEBLHE
2008 2007
TR FBr
HK$’000 HK$’000
0E30K 0 - 30 days 356,545 339,833
31£60K 31 - 60 days 277,475 248,517
61£290K 61 - 90 days 72,400 38,792
91£120K 91 - 120 days 34,977 43,906
1212 180K 121 - 180 days 18,496 19,616
1812 365K 181 - 365 days 20,158 12,485
#8365 K Over 365 days 14,317 16,605
794,368 719,754

FEWE ZIRFKBEBA DR 120K —RFRIE
HE -R=ZENF+=A=+—-0H"
BHEBRN0REFRENEZERE S
& X A 9,453,0008 T (= ZEZF L F :
14,936,000/8 70) + MLEEHE T im HA 30 MR 36
REBNEFER ZERKEZEXR

Trade receivables that are less than 120 days past due are
generally not considered impaired. As at 31 December 2008,
trade receivables of HK$9,453,000 (2007: HK$14,936,000)
were more than 120 days past due but considered not to be
impaired. These relate to a number of customers for whom
there is no recent history of default. The past due ageing

WE IR DT - analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:
—EENE Z—E2ELE
2008 2007
THERT TAT
HK$’000 HK$°000
1212 180K 121 - 180 days 3,090 7,073
1812 365K 181 - 365 days 5,531 7,202
18 365K Over 365 days 832 661
9,453 14,936

KEEEZERARZAFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited
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BERESHEAREE—HFE@® 13

R-ZBZEN\E+=-F=+—H BRME
TEHEEBREZ2EREZRRA
25,018,000 © (= & & t &
15,687,000i87t) - B E ZIEREE T
EF (BREBARNEENZEERE =
F) BB o %% FE IR 5K &Y 8 HA 0k e 20
T

Trade and bills receivable - Consolidated (Continued)

As at 31 December 2008, trade receivables of
HK$25,018,000 (2007: HK$15,687,000) were impaired and
had been fully provided for. These receivables relate to a
number of customers, including customers in unexpected
difficult economic situations. The past due ageing of these
receivables is as follows:

—RENE C—ZTTLH

2008 2007

THER FTHET

HK$’000 HK$°000

0Z30K 0 - 30 days 317 71
31£60K 31 - 60 days 698 58
61290K 61 - 90 days 398 112
91£120K 91 - 120 days 357 276
1212180k 121 - 180 days 13,648 1,595
1812365K 181 - 365 days 6,538 5,243
1A 365K Over 365 days 3,062 8,332
25,018 15,687

ERESERREBENREREZE N
T

Movements of provision for impairment of trade and bills
receivable are as follows:

—RENE C—ZTTLH

2008 2007

TET TET

HK$°000 HK$’000

=) Beginning of the year 15,687 9,897

EHZE Exchange differences 548 102

HERE-F8 Provision for impairment, net 17,591 6,386
£ Py B85 1 ROIR Receivables written off during

FE U R FR the year as uncollectible (8,808) (698)

FER End of the year 25,018 15,687
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13 BEWEZIRAKREE —%44 @ 13 Trade and bills receivable - Consolidated (Continued)

ERERKERBENEIRBEC T The creation and release of provision for impaired
A—BRITEBEX - sTABEIRENS receivables have been included in general and administrative
RERN T 8 HR AT U= BB A IR B S o expenses. Amounts charged to the allowance account are

written off when there is no expectation of recovering
additional cash.

AEENESESRAREEUATIE The Group’s trade and bills receivable were denominated in
WESHE - the following currencies:

—gE\F C-FTLF

2008 2007

TERT TET

HK$’000 HK$’000

E United States Dollars 469,361 464,058
AR Chinese Renminbi 306,088 220,926
BT Hong Kong Dollars 18,755 33,241
Hits Others 164 1,529

794,368 719,754

RBSAHBANEERKRA LR EW The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
RRAAFEE REESEIEEEME the fair value of the receivables mentioned above. The Group
Hme does not hold any collateral.
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14 #& FARNREREMEKIRF 14 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

RE PN
Consolidated Company
“EENF BTt ZBENF —ZEtE
2008 2007 2008 2007
TER TERT TER TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
IR Current
aJ U =] 74 18 Tax recoverable 2,540 5,572 — =
He  KEEBRKHEMIES Rental, utility and other deposits 21,214 25,118 — =
EERYMNEMNRE Prepayments for operating expenses 6,693 10,726 — =
FENENRE Prepayments for inventories 4,111 6,922 - =
HEHBARERE Receivables from disposal of
i P& W i X (BT E) interest in a subsidiary (Note) 13,951 18,234 - —
EWEERERE Receivable from a sales agent 16,535 32,370 — =
] Uy [B] 12 {E B Value-added tax recoverable 20,184 15,835 — =
H 1t & U R 5X Other receivables 3,405 11,203 24 582
88,633 125,980 24 582
FE RN Non-current
HEMB D AER Receivable from disposal of
i P& W i X (BT &E) interest in a subsidiary (Note) 8,417 28,599 - —
97,050 154,579 24 582
B4 FEAFRE R H i fE IR TR E E B The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other
BRESEBNATEEE  -RBSHREAKR receivables approximate their fair values. The maximum
NEERRALBRBENAFE K& exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of
BYEFEEMAERR - the items mentioned above. The Group does not hold any
collateral.
REBNEMEKRREBUTIE®.T The Group’s other receivables were denominated in the
B : following currencies:
—EENE CZEEZLHE
2008 2007
TER TAET
HK$°000 HK$’000
E United States Dollars 38,902 79,203
AR Chinese Renminbi 23,137 24,370
BT Hong Kong Dollars 2,993 7,532
Hits Others — 708
65,032 111,813
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14 8% BARERH M ERIKRK

(%)

Bt

m

R-ZZHEFNA  AEEZ2ENELQA
Team & Sports (BVI) Limited A KB X
97,383,000 T HER XK EFTHERAA
(TRE]) 25% M 7 » EUIRFZA D BARAR
Xt BEEZE-FF o

REBZ-ZZEN\E+-A=1—-HLEE &
EEEFTEREFTERAAREKHELR
MERRE BH-ZTTNEFE-_T-TEHNM
SFARRKERD Rt EtERRERD
17,492,0008 T (= T 2 £ F : & i
23,299,000 ) o At ERREEBELN
B8 (k&) B (Gt A) e o

ZERWIRRDMMT

otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

(Continued)
Note:

In September 2005, Team & Sports (BVI) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group, disposed of a 25% equity interest in Team &
Sports Limited (“T&S”) for a consideration of approximately HK$
97,383,000, receivable by instalments through 2010.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group reassessed the
post disposal performance of T&S and its subsidiaries. The estimated
future revenues from 2009 to 2010 were decreased and
consequently the estimated consideration receivable was reduced by
HK$17,492,000 (2007: increased by HK$23,299,000). The loss (gain)
resulting from the change of estimated consideration receivable was
charged (credited) to reserves.

An analysis of such receivable is as follows:

—EEI)N\F —EELEF
2008 2007
FERT THExT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE ik 1 2k Receivable

— —ER - within one year 14,426 19,039
— —EHBIEER - after one year and not later than five years 9,637 33,976
24,063 53,015
B RBREURRFE WA Less: Unearned future interest income (1,695) (6,182)
EWRRFERE Net present value of the receivable 22,368 46,833

B — Analysed as -
— F R FE IR RX Amount receivable within one year 13,951 18,234
—FEEBIRR Amount receivable after one year 8,417 28,599
22,368 46,833

KEEEZERARZAF  Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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ZEMBHMEME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15 Cash and cash equivalents

ey AAT

Consolidated Company
—EENFE CZEZZTtF ZBENF ZEZELF
2008 2007 2008 2007
TER TAET TER TET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BITRFERSE Cash at bank and on hand 189,251 178,345 208 148
EHRITER Short-term bank deposits 174,021 401,935 42,370 253,777
363,272 580,280 42,578 253,925
RBSAHNBAEERBERERE The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
CEBYNAFLEMESE © approximates the carrying value of the cash and cash

R=ZZENF+ZA=+—-8 SHRE
AERERERER1.0%(CBBLE
3.7%) - EHRTERNERHA=EAH
BT o

RERBSEBEMUTIERTE

equivalents.

As at 31 December 2008, the effective interest rate on short-
term bank deposits was approximately 1.0% per annum
(2007: 3.7% per annum). The short-term bank deposits have
maturities of 3 months or less at inception.

Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the
following currencies:

=RE KAF

Consolidated Company
—EENE CZEELF ZEZEENF CZZZTtHF
2008 2007 2008 2007
FERT FTERT FERT TExT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT Hong Kong Dollars 47,393 54,685 20,213 29,852
FEARY Chinese Renminbi 225,979 232,130 — —
E United States Dollars 87,390 288,008 22,365 224,073
Htb Others 2,510 5,457 — =
363,272 580,280 42,578 253,925

AEEUTEAARBHENRERASE
ZENFHRRPBERENRT - BEZ
ZHEARBERRAIBURSESE
HH B A 35 3% o B KB R AR AR Y
HNEEHERRBEMRE -

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents denominated in
Chinese Renminbi were deposited with banks in Mainland
China. The conversion of these Chinese Renminbi
denominated balances into foreign currencies and the
remittance of funds out of Mainland China is subject to the
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control

promulgated by the Mainland China Government.
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16 ENESRARERE — 54 16 Trade and bills payable - Consolidated

—RENF C—ZTTLH

2008 2007
TERT TET
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FE 3 B 5 1R 5K Trade payables
— FE=5 - to third parties 333,154 342,112
— TEAER (M=E33(d) - to related parties
(Note 33(d)) 48,999 29,613
&3 R 15 Bills payable 4,474 5,152
386,627 376,877
ERFEZRAREZENRBRITOT : The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payable is as
follows:
—EENE C—EZEEZLE
2008 2007
TERT TET
HK$’°000 HK$’000
0£30K 0-30 days 193,756 205,255
31£60K 31-60 days 98,055 101,575
61£90K 61-90 days 53,521 43,107
91£ 120Kk 91-120 days 25,390 17,502
1212 365K 121-365 days 9,967 6,331
HBi18365K Over 365 days 5,938 3,107
386,627 376,877
FEENENEZRAREBUTIE The Group’s trade and bills payable were denominated in the
WitE following currencies:
—EENE C—EZEEZLE
2008 2007
TERT TET
HK$’°000 HK$’000
BT Hong Kong Dollars 91,156 123,166
HE AR Chinese Renminbi 117,975 74,221
E0 United States Dollars 176,002 176,620
Hity Others 1,494 2,870

386,627 376,877
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17 FEGTIR =0 &% EL fth FE {4 R X 17 Accruals and other payables
oE KAF
Consolidated Company
—2B\F -TTLF -BENF -TTtH
2008 2007 2008 2007
FERT FTERT FERT FTERT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

18 8 AU 7K JE 5t IR X Accrual for employment

costs 86,560 66,146 680 953
EREEREE Royalty payable 12,544 22,615 — —
BNEEEE Licence fees payable - 4,036 - —
FET BB Value added tax payable 12,940 5,854 - =
EhEFZE Deposits received
from customers 11,266 4,527 — —
Hi&EEf% Accrual for other operating
JE 51 IR 3R expenses 49,917 37,338 1,467 164
BEYE - KER Payable for purchases
%5 Y B AT IR X of property, plant and
equipment 5,758 23,468 — —
H 1t & {F R 5K Other payables 9,464 14,149 167 3
188,449 178,133 2,314 1,120
18 1EE — &RE 18 Borrowings - Consolidated

—RENE C—ZTTLH

2008 2007
TER TAET
HK$°000 HK$’000
B # Current
RHSBTERNWNESE S Current portion of long
-term bank loans — 526
BHSRITER Short-term bank loans 101,700 60,990
ERBEEDRITER Trust receipts import bank loans 326 6,726
102,026 68,242
3E B 5 Non-current
RHEBTERMIEMNEILS  Non-current portion of long-term bank loans 11,300 11,509
BEEHE Total borrowings 113,326 79,751
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18 B8 —HEaw

RZBEENE+ZA=+—H ' X5HE
BAEEBEEENT :

s to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18 Borrowings - Consolidated (Continued)

As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s borrowings were
repayable as follows:

—EENE C—EZEEZLE

2008 2007

TERT TET

HK$’000 HK$'000

—ER Within 1 year 102,026 68,242
E—ZWME Between 1 and 2 years — 526
E-_FERF Between 2 and 5 years 11,300 10,983
113,326 79,751

RHEENREEEEAFERES - B
“ZENEF+ZA=1+-—H FEHE
BENATFES11,286,0008 T (ZEF+
F:11,814,000& ) » LREFEAE
EETPHESR 5% L BRERET
WEASAE(ZEZELF © 6.0%) °

R-ZZEZENF+ZA=+—-H RER
THRE BHEBRTEERGTREED
RITEH  251511,300,0008 T (=ZF
£t & 12,035,000 7T )
101,700,000 & (= & T + &
34,240,0007%8 7t) % 326,000 (Z 2%
+ F : 6,726,000 T) - AA D AIE
R o

WEREUTHERE :

The carrying amounts of the short-term borrowings
approximate their fair values. As at 31 December 2008, the
fair value of the non-current borrowings was HK$11,286,000
(2007: HK$11,814,000), which is based on the estimated
cash flows discounted using the Group’s average borrowing
rate of 5.5% (2007: 6.0%).

As at 31 December 2008, the long-term bank loans, short
term bank loans and trust receipts import bank loans of
HK$11,300,000 (2007: HK$12,035,000), HK$101,700,000
(2007: HK$34,240,000) and HK$326,000 (2007:
HK$6,726,000), respectively, were guaranteed by the
Company.

The borrowings were denominated in the following

currencies:
—EENF ZCZEELHF
2008 2007
TERT FTERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Hong Kong Dollars —_ 5,985
HE AR Chinese Renminbi 113,000 73,025
ES United States Dollars 326 741
113,326 79,751

XEEEZRERA A
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18 fBE — e w 18 Borrowings - Consolidated (Continued)
FEENAERESRIBHERE (= All (2007: all) of the Group’s borrowings are on floating rates.
TELF 28) 0  REERNER (F) The effective interest rates (per annum) at the balance sheet
FEMT : date were as follows:

—EENF —ETLF
2008 2007
HK$ RMB us$ HK$ RMB USs$

BT ARW® Y BT AR% E

EHRITER Long-term
bank loans — 5.5% — — 6.7% —
BHERTER Short-term
bank loans — 5.7% — — 5.9% —
ErEliEED Trust receipts
RITER import bank
loans — — 4.8% 5.8% — 8.8%
RZZEENF+ZA=+—-H  xKHE As at 31 December 2008, the Group has the following
MARBABITERMT : undrawn banking facilities:
—EENE CZEEZLHE
2008 2007
TER FTEr
HK$°000 HK$’000
FENFIE Floating rates
— R—FEREH - expiring within one year 439,902 392,424
R—FRIBNERARFEEER » ER The facilities expiring within one year are annual facilities
“ETNFLEAREHER ° subject to review at various dates during 2009.
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19 EEFRBH — & 19 Deferred income tax - Consolidated
EEMENEEREBEENENHHE Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
EEHNBAHEEEE S LEANEHIE there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
SR IEE P15 B AE BA N B — i A% B against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
B B A EARIKE o UBFBENT ¢ taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The net amounts are

as follows:

—EEN\F —TBtH

2008 2007
FERT FTERT
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEREEE : Deferred tax assets:
— 1218 B & W= # - Deferred tax assets to be recovered
REREEE after more than 12 months 387 9,717
— 1218 B A W= Y - Deferred tax assets to be recovered
EERBEE within 12 months 6,503 4,000
6,890 13,717
EERBEE Deferred tax liabilities:
— 12BRBBEER - Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
ELEHEERE after more than 12 months (738) (13)
— 12 AEER - Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
EEFIEAE within 12 months (2,973) (1,218)
(3,711) (1,231)
REREEE - F8 Deferred tax assets - net 3,179 12,486
ELEFMEFHEELEABNT ¢ The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is
as follows:
—EENF ZEELHF
2008 2007
FERT FTERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
=) Beginning of the year 12,486 317
RNiE&E R B (M 26) Recognised in the income statement (Note 26) (9,307) 12,169
F# End of the year 3,179 12,486
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19 BEFEH — FE @ 19 Deferred income tax - Consolidated (Continued)
EEREEEREEZE (R RE—H The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities without
BREEBERNERKHENER AT ¢ taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the

same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

BEBEEME Deferred tax liabilities:

Ko BEF

M B

Withholding

BEITE tax on
Tax undistributed #at
depreciation earnings Total
TER TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=-ZZEZ+t&F—-—H—H At 1 January 2007 (3,967) — (3,967)
REZRER Recognised in the income statement (895) — (895)
RZZEZELH+ZH=+—H  At31 December 2007 (4,862) — (4,862)
RERRER Recognised in the income statement 148 (610) (462)
R-ZZEZENFE+=ZA=+—H  At31 December 2008 (4,714) (610) (5,324)
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19 BERSBH — FE @ 19 Deferred income tax - Consolidated (Continued)
BEEBEEE : Deferred tax assets:
REH
BEE i
Tax  Unrealised HAit #at
losses profit Others Total
FTEx FTEr TEx TET
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
W=ZZEZ2tH—HA—H At1January 2007 3,089 — 1,195 4,284
REZRER Recognised in the income
statement 6,702 6,616 (254) 13,064
R-ZELE At 31 December 2007 9,791 6,616 941 17,348
+=ZA=+-—H
REZRER Recognised in the income
statement (8,470) (205) (170) (8,845)
R-ZENE
+=ZA=+-—H At 31 December 2008 1,321 6,411 771 8,503
il B AR B BRI EA - B A& R Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-
EEUSEAEENERNENE S ER forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
AEEFMBHEE R-ZEZENF+Z benefit through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31
A=1t—-H FTEELEBERTEEIK December 2008, the Group has not recognised deferred
HARERRBANEERSHEE income tax assets of HK$64,305,000 (2007: HK$38,051,000)
64,305,000 T (= T & £ & : that can be carried forward against future taxable income.
38,251,000 T) - EFAH B H B Cumulative tax losses of HK$196,842,000 (2007:
196,842,000 T (= & & £ F : HK$127,754,000) can be carried forward indefinitely; while
127,754,0005& 7T) A A BRER A8 cumulative tax losses of HK$127,304,000 (2007:
2 H K E18127,304,0008 T (Z 22 HK$52,628,000) will expire within five years.
+ F : 52,628,000 ) #§ X I F A E
H o
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20 B AR 20 Share capital
R+=A=+-—H
As at 31 December
“EENE C"ZTETLE
2008 2007
FTEx TERT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EIE Authorised
3,000,000,0000% & & IR 3,000,000,000 ordinary
BRMEEIETT shares of HK$0.1 each 300,000 300,000
ZEARBROEE
Number
of ordinary
shares
TR TERT
’000 HK$’000
ERITRHE Issued and fully paid up
R-ZBERE—H—H At 1 January 2006 100,000 10,000
BT Issue of shares 345,000 34,500
ROBEREER Capitalisation of share premium 800,000 80,000
RZEE+tE—-—F—H At 1 January 2007 1,245,000 124,500
TREBRE Exercise of share options 23,400 2,340
R-ZEZE+tE+-A=+—H At 31 December 2007 and
K—ZBEENEFE+ZH=+—H 31 December 2008 1,268,400 126,840
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20 PR A ¢\)
ERE

ARRARBOMEBREENT ¢

(i)

(ii)

BR DR ERA R REST S

HRETESR—EBBALEE
R MAQARBEERLEERA
HERANBERE HR-ZZTZ A F.
RARREBRDHERAERE
T2 R A 44,400,000 B IR
%'T&§ﬁ1mﬁmizm&m$
ENERABBLRDARSD © m%ﬁ
AIHEBEER BEBRERS
AEI—? A$ ﬁW%E’I
RZE-—AFEATHEH - K&
BiUEEEREENEEURSE
BIRAFHERBRE - REBRA
MERABRETS  KATRA
BREBENNERE -

BIRAE

RABHEM—EABI0F E-F
—ARENAZENERESE > A
BEERERTENES  REE B
BoEF > ftEM - REA- 58
ABAEEER S ACH - THEE
HEZERAE  BEFAARRER
HE; (1BBHEXZMERLT
(MR RREAH (EAEE
) BENERERMINERKRT
B RINBEEIANEERZAE
HahEE¥A R ENARKTE
MEROFHIURHENRSE - A&
BiEiEREECNEEUNESE
] = 451 It 5 BB AR AE o

e Consolidated Financial Statements

20 Share capital (Continued)

Share options

The Company operates two share option schemes as

described below:

(i)

KEEEZERARZAFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited

Pre-IPO share option scheme

Pre-IPO share options were granted by the Company to
certain directors and a consultant for their services to
the Group. In 2006, the Company granted 44,400,000
options under the Pre-IPO share option scheme to
subscribe for shares in the Company at prices ranging
from HK$1.14 to HK$2.28 per share. These options are
vested according to a pre-determined schedule over
three years from 2006 to 2008 and will expire on 10 May
2016. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to repurchase or settle these options in cash. No
additional options can be granted under the Pre-IPO
share option scheme.

Share option scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme,
which will remain in force for 10 years up to August
2016. Share options may be granted to any director,
employee, consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner
or adviser of or contractor to the Group. The exercise
price is determined by the Board and shall not be less
than the higher of (i) the nominal value of a share; (ii)
the closing price of one share as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of
offer, which shall be a business day; and (iii) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
offer. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to repurchase or settle these options in cash.
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20 A @) 20 Share capital (Continued)
B () Share options (Continued)
(i) BRAEE (&) (ii) Share option scheme (Continued)
RITEEREZB RAEBENMET Movements in the number of share options outstanding
BITREEWT and their related weighted average exercise prices are as
follows:
—BEN\F —EELHE
2008 2007
BRY¥H gR¥Y
THE TEE
Average Average
exercise exercise
price B AR R price B g #E
per share Options per share Options
BT T4 BT T4
HK$ ’000 HK$ ‘000
®—HB—H At 1 January 1.505 22,500 1.479 44,400
R Granted — — 2.060 1,500
171 Exercised - - 1.491 (23,400)
R+=ZH=Z+—-H At 31 December 1.505 22,500 1.505 22,500

R+=ZA=+-—8 Exercisable at 31

ATE December 1.480 21,500 1.712 7,128
REARTEBRENIHEBART Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the
BUT : following expiry date and exercise prices:

BB AR R
2 H B A BRITEE Share options
Expiry date Exercise price —ZZNE —ZTZFLHF
per share 2008 2007
BT T 5 R
HK$ ’000 ‘000
—E-AERHA+H 10 May 2016 1.140 9,000 9,000
ZE-R"¥RATH 10 May 2016 1.596 10,000 10,000
—E-AERH+H 10 May 2016 2.280 2,000 2,000
—EZ-~"ENAtH 7 August 2016 2.060 1,500 1,500
22,500 22,500
REBE-_ZENE+-_A=+—HLHF During the year ended 31 December 2008, share option cost
B REEEZZNBRNERERRY charged to the consolidated income statement was
2,357,000 7t (ZEE+ % : 7,330,000 approximately HK$2,357,000 (2007: HK$7,330,000).
BIT) o
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21 #E 21 Reserves
(a) &&& (a) Consolidated

N R4 EERE
FRE Statutory PR
RBEE  Share-based reserve Foreign AR RERT
Share payment (W) currency Other Retained @t
premium reserves (Note) translation reserves eamings Total
TiEn TEn TEn TiEn TiEn TEn TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

KRZEEtE-F-H At 1 January 2007 623,905 10,853 1,032 7,258 59,291 509,124 1,211,463
EEREER Currency translation differences
-K&E - Group - - - 28,011 - - 28,011
-HELNE - Associate - — - 948 - - 948
-RREHER - Jointly controlled entties — = - 86 - - 86
LE-ZHE (Gain resulting from change in estimated

NeEEEM consideration receivable

EUREZS from disposal of interest

MER (K314 in a subsidiary (Note 14) = = = = 23,299 = 23,299
HENBLRER Disposal of interest in a subsidiary

(W9 (b)) (Note 9(b)) - - - - 134,116 - 134,116
WERBLR Acquisition of additional interest

BMES in subsidaries - - - - 137 - 137
EERRETE Employee share option scheme
-RHERENEE - value of services in respect of
R EfE (HE20) share options granted (Note 20) = 7,330 = = = = 7330
-BARBNEAEFE - proceeds from issue of shares 43,034 (10490) = = = = 32,544
Bithe Dividend paid - - - - - @1857) (41857
ARAREREA Profit atiributable to equity

EfER holders of the Company - - — - — 290,259 290,259
BRTIRHE Transfer to statutory reserves = = 1783 = = (1,783) =
RZBZ+E+ZA=+-H  At31 December 2007 666,939 7,693 2,815 36,303 216,843 755,743 1,686,336
EEREER Currency translation differences

-%8 - Group - - - 28,179 - = 28,179

-BERT - Associate = = — 1,551 = = 1,551
HE-FHBAR Loss resulting from change

BENMTHEURE in estimated consideration

ZENEE receivable from disposal of

(&£ 14) interest in a subsidiary (Note 14) — — - — (17492) - (17492)
EaBRENE Employee share option scheme

- REERENEE - value of services in respect of

R EE (HiE20) share options granted (Note 20) - 2,357 - = = = 2,357

2 RE Dividend paid
-ERLERERE - 2007 fiel - - - - - 4304)  (84304)
-ZSEN\EHRE - 2008 iterim - - - - - GL710)  (31710)
AAAREREAEDER Profit atiributable to equity holders of the Company — — — = - 33325 33,325
EANLERE Transfer to statutory reserves - — 666 — — (666) —
RZBZNE+ZA=+-H  At31December 2008 666,939 10,050 3,481 66,033 199,351 712,298 1,658,152
K Representing: 10,147
BE-ZT\ERIRE Proposed 2008 final dividend 702,151
it Others 712,298
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21 @ @ 21 Reserves (Continued)

(a) B E @) (a) Consolidated (Continued)

Wiat - Note:

RIEPEIRBEMRG o 2D 55 A B K FE R L As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the Company’s
REENHBAR AR EEESSMEENL subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland China are
ZREIKEBEFEFBNBREZRTAID required to appropriate a portion of their after-tax profit (after
HERA-REEREERREES - —REE offsetting prior years’ losses) to the general reserve and the
TRAEEEEAFESESBTAR M enterprise expansion fund, at rates determined by their
BRESHAERRELE -REZ-ZT/\F respective boards of directors. The general reserve can be
+TZA=+—HLFE  666,000ET (=% utilised to offset prior year losses or be utilised for the issuance
Z+F :1,783,0008 T) BB E —REBR of bonus shares, whilst the enterprise expansion fund can be
TEERES - utilised for the development of business operations. During the

year ended 31 December 2008, HK$666,000 (2007:
HK$1,783,000) was appropriated to the general reserve and the
enterprise expansion fund.
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21 & @ 21 Reserves (Continued)
(b) &2 F (b) Company
NRB AR
i
Share-
R EE based HERE REEF
Share payment Contributed Retained &5t
premium reserve surplus earnings Total
TET TaAx TR ThAx TaAx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-EEtE&-A-H At 1 January 2007 623,905 10,853 528,331 17,964 1,181,053
EEERETE Employee share option scheme
-REBREN - value of services in respect
RBRKE & (Hz20) of share options granted (Note 20) - 7,330 = = 7,330
-BARBNHETE - proceeds from issue of shares 43,034 (10,490) = = 32,544
ARARESEA Profit attributable to equity
{5 &) holders of the Company - - — 68,849 68,849
BARE—ZZZtEHRHRE Dividend paid - 2007 interim = = = (41,857) (41,857)
ZE5tE At 31 December 2007 666,939 7,693 528,331 44,956 1,247,919
tTZA=t-H
EEBRETE Employee share option scheme
-RIEBREN - value of services in respect
TRER A EfE (HEE20) of share options granted (Note 20) = 2,357 = = 2,357
ARARERE Profit attributable to equity
AEE &R holders of the Company - - - 84,947 84,947
ERRE Dividend paid
-ZEELERHRE - 2007 final - - - (44,394) (44,394)
-ZEE\ERHRE - 2008 interim - - - (31,710) (31,710)
RZZZNE+ZA=1-H  At31 December 2008 666,939 10,050 528,331 53,799 1,259,119
& Representing:
BE_ZZ\ERERE Proposed 2008 final dividend 10,147
Efh Others 43,652
53,799
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22 BHEE DN

X BEEEERS - HERDHEAAL
R-—BERTHEAX 20T :

22 Expenses by nature

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution
costs and general and administrative expenses are analysed

as follows:
“EENE “EEtF
2008 2007
TER TER
HK$’000 HK$'000
EEANEMEREER Raw materials and consumables used 1,230,627 1,153,640
BERR M Purchases of finished goods 623,858 621,257
NIRSBER Processing and subcontracting charges 166,171 182,169
EELERIRERAL Manufacturing overheads and sample expense 81,843 89,691
ARmRERR Changes in inventories of finished
FEEH goods and work in progress (70,424) (120,935)
ME BERRERE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 92,471 64,284
HENE  BER Loss on disposal of property,
RENER plant and equipment 1,157 31
HELH R+ Amortisation of leasehold land
FRREEE and land use rights 1,170 832
BREESE Amortisation of intangible assets 7,133 11,473
ME BERRZERE Impairment of property, plant and equipment 17,960 =
BREERE Impairment of intangible assets 25,479 —
AEESREERE Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets 26,000 —
EEBRIE X (M 24) Employment benefit expense (Note 24) 633,451 471,307
EE RARRBHEX Freight, delivery and insurance expenses 121,318 125,118
BEREHRY Royalty expense 64,874 53,561
HEMS Sales commission 33,250 49,647
mEEE BEREEHRY Marketing, advertising and promotion expenses 44,628 29,317
BB H Quota charges 3,470 27,907
BFRRLZERE TR Operating lease rental in respect of
EFRHgEle office equipment and land and buildings
-REHENK - minimum lease payments 79,780 42,265
-gREE - contingent rent 10,240 13,938
REMmMe Auditor’s remuneration 4,432 4,592
FE W o TR (& — B 58 Impairment of receivables, net
. LECLEES - trade and bills receivable 17,591 6,386
-Re BARKREMEWHIE - deposits, prepayments and other receivables 22,380 —
-HER - related parties 185 =
RTEEzERE Share options granted to a consultant - 327
BEME - FHE Write-down of inventories, net 22,076 539
EX (M%) BEFE Net exchange (gain)/ loss (12,631) 8,870
HitBi % Other expenses 164,856 120,813
HERAK  HERDHBA Total cost of sales, selling and distribution costs
DR —RRTHE LA and general and administrative expenses 3,413,345 2,957,029
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23 H WA R & 23 Other income and gains
—EENE Z—E2ELE
2008 2007
THERT TAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEEAELERIEEE[  Gain on derecognition of licence rights and
HERBEENWE (B8 related licence fees payable (Note 8) — 33,526
BNELEERMGTZE Gain from change in estimated licence
EERNRE fees payable 650 655
Hit Others 800 571
1,450 34,752
24 BB KK 24 Employment benefit expense
“E2EN\FE CZEZETLHF
2008 2007
TERT FTiERT
HK$000  HK$'000
IE - -He  ZHRELA Wages, salaries, allowances and bonus 568,902 423,983
BAERN — AEMFHET2 Retirement benefit - defined
contribution schemes 24,574 11,151
BROMERE X Share-based compensation expense
—EEHERE - share options granted 2,357 7,003
B E MR Welfare and other benefits 37,618 29,170
633,451 471,307

(a) BEKBARAE — RERREE

AEBZHEBEREES MAET M
AESTE ([RESE]) k3
HBYUSTASENREM/AKG
Elo-RiERELHE X&E@ (E
I RHEEERBERNMELAESH
EhIE BHASEERAS%EREA
"R -BEEREESENEAMK
FRA1,0008 T 0 MEMBOHRAE
BREMR - REBBRERINBER
EEREBANERE -

KEEEZERARZAFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited

(a) Retirement benefit costs - defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of
the Group (the employer) and its employees make
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund legislation. The monthly contributions of
each of the employer and the employee are subject to a
cap of HK$1,000 and thereafter contributions are
voluntary. The Group has no further obligations for post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions.
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24 EE A @)
(a) BIKBRARA — REBRKRGE

(%)

BREPEAENRERAH A&
EAAHEPEAEREETEIAER
ERRAESEAELHEN - FA5E
EERASRAREHARA(BEIR
FE o RERIA) H8%m 5t &
R MAKBEARBEKANSRE
28%MEH R - MERERSD - XK
ERAAERARBNERMRD
Ef -BEREPRASHEEER
BRAETXNEMRAE -

rEBRHAE  FEE HEK
HENBIMBAREEKESES
MBRKREE - AEBE QR (EE)
LEEESAREESEHARA (BF
ITE- e EURIEA) MN5.5%F
17%]6) 5t Bl 3K o 78 £ B R E R0
BERERKEBANER -

BREMET MRS AEELEHR
RRERFNERE(E -

24 Employment benefit expense (Continued)

(a) Retirement benefit costs - defined contribution plans

(Continued)

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
schemes for certain of its employees in Mainland China.
The Group’s employees make monthly contributions to
the schemes at approximately 8% of the relevant income
(comprising wages, salaries, allowances and bonus),
while the Group contributes 8% to 28% of such income
and has no further obligations for the actual payment of
post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions. The
state-sponsored retirement schemes are responsible for
the entire post-retirement benefit obligations payable to
the retired employees.

The Group participates in retirement schemes for
qualified employees of its overseas subsidiaries in
Taiwan, the Philippines, Vietnam and Jordan. Each of the
Group (the employer) and its employees make monthly
contributions to the schemes at rates ranging from 5.5%
to 17% of the employees’ relevant income (comprising
wages, salaries, allowances and bonus). The Group has
no further obligations for post-retirement benefits beyond
the contributions.

The Group has no material obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond contributions to the above schemes.
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24 EE KA ) 24 Employment benefit expense (Continued)
(b) EEM < (b) Directors’ emoluments
BE-ZENF+-HA=t—-AHL The remuneration of each director of the Company for the
FE  KADPAZESHMESUT : year ended 31 December 2008 is set out below:
EERRE

RfSE  HROME
EZ#5%  Share-based
Employer's compensation
KEEL EEZE  contribution i respect of
e 4% Discretionary Housing to retirement share @
ESig Name of Director Fees Salaries bonuses allowances schemes options Total
T TiEn TiEn T TiEn T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HTEZ Executive directors

sEHR Li Kok Tung, Roy - 3355 2697 - 2 - 6,004
2EY Lai Ching Ping - 2783 25% - 12 - 5,390
A% Chow Chi Wai - 782 - - 12 1,159 1,953
8 Cheung Chi - 1,790 1,420 - 12 383 3,605
ZER Lee Kwok Leung - 982 950 180 12 48 2172
BUFsES Independent non-executive directors

EES Ma Ka Chun 100 - - — — = 100
(] Chan Kwong Fai 100 — — = - - 100
BHE Kwan Kai Cheong 150 - = = = = 150
BEX Wun Kwang 100 - - = = = 100

450 9,692 7,602 180 60 1,590 19,574
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24 EE A @) 24 Employment benefit expense (Continued)
(b) EEME @ (b) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
BE-_ZZLHE+-A=t+-HL The remuneration of each director of the Company for the
FE  KAPASESHMESUT : year ended 31 December 2007 is set out below:
RERRE

BESHE  HWROMS

B Share-based

Employer's  compensation

MERL EEZE  contribution in respect of

He %%  Discretionary Housing  to retirement share st
ESi? Name of Director Fees Salaries bonuses allowances schemes options Total

TEn Tén Tén TEn Tén Tén TEn
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HTEZ Executive directors
384 Li Kiwok Tung, Roy - 33 40 - 2 - 3734
REY Lai Ching Ping - 210 358 - 12 - 3,092
A& Chow Chi Wai - 2,002 60 - 12 5,029 7,103
8 Cheung Chi - 1,681 120 - 12 1,748 3,561
ZER Lee Kwok Leung - 701 174 120 12 226 1,233
BUFHES Independent non-executive directors
Y Ma Ka Chun 100 - - — = = 100
Rt Chan Kwong Fai 100 — — = = = 100
BHE Kwan Kai Cheong 150 - = = = = 150
BERX Wun Kwang 100 - - — — — 100
450 10427 1,113 120 60 7,003 19,173
REBEZE-_ZENF+=-A=t—H No directors waived any emoluments during the year
LEE HEREEREEMME (= ended 31 December 2008 (2007: Nil).

ZTRLFEHE) o
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24 EE A @) 24 Employment benefit expense (Continued)

(c) BZRBHFAL (c) Five highest paid individuals
rEERERSHFALTEENE (= The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
ZELF NR)EZ FENH2 in the Group include four (2007: four) directors whose
ERERLHEAMHc ZBENF+Z emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
A=+-HER EAEBALH above. The emolument paid/payable to the remaining
MEamT individual during the year ended 31 December 2008 is as

follows:

—EE\F C—FTLF

2008 2007
TERT FBr
HK$’000 HK$’000
K FEEEE Basic salaries, housing allowances
& H fth )2 8h and other allowances 2,041 914
BB A Discretionary bonuses 184 661
P& 17 B < B8 =2 Share-based compensation
- EREERE expense - share options granted 768 —
BRIREA — Retirement benefit - defined
REMUREE contribution schemes 12 12
3,004 1,587
(d) BZ=-ZFZEN\F+-A=+—HL (d) During the year ended 31 December 2008, no
FE AARUEZAMESFEM emoluments were paid by the Company to any of the
ExqngmagAT EAEMA directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
o BB N A 7R £ B A 5 B o B R inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
B(ZEZLF  8|) o compensation for loss of office (2007: Nil).
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BME WA REAE 25 Finance income and costs
—ZEEN\F C—TTtH
2008 2007
TET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
A E WA Interest income from
—8ITEX - Bank deposits 8,555 20,367
- BEFEREEFH - Customers for extended credit terms 346 2,541
-HENBARER A - Other receivable from disposal of
= 4 Y H A FE WIR 3K interest in a subsidiary (Note 14) 3,449 1,913
(fftzt 14)
MEWRA Finance income 12,350 24,821
ANEFH Interest expense on
-RITBERERX - bank borrowings and overdrafts (5,613) (2,549)
-ERNEEEE - licence fees payable (84) (3,470)
& AR Finance costs (5,697) (6,019)
BMEWANFE Net finance income 6,653 18,802
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26 FTEHIRA

ERANGHERBEAFEEMTERFE
MIEBZE16.6% (ZFELF . 17.5%) 5t
REE -

FEFR B KR AL % A 2 B R R
ERNANAFERREB% (ZEERLF
15%£33%) HEZ M E A X FE
B REFBAPERE  ZEHPTEKX
BERYNWBREARBEQTRANE
BELEFPIHCELE EMFAE
HEBAEERER MRFAER-F
ENFRHEA=FAEYR -

BN (BRRPBEARERIN BN 2HE
ERAFEMTERNBENERAEEE
EMERR 2 ARARITHETE -

RESBRERNBKRNBIERE

to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26 Income tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the
year.

Subsidiaries and associates established and operated in
Mainland China are subject to Mainland China Enterprise
Income Tax at rate of 25% for the year (2007: 15% to 33%).
In accordance with the applicable tax regulations,
subsidiaries and associates established in Mainland China as
wholly owned foreign enterprises or sino-foreign joint
ventures are entitled to full exemption from Enterprise
Income Tax for the first two years and a 50% reduction in
Enterprise Income Tax for the next three years, commencing
no later than 2008.

Taxation on overseas (other than Hong Kong and Mainland
China) profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profits for the year at the applicable rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

The amounts of taxation charged to the consolidated income
statement represent:

—EEN\F —TBtH
2008 2007

F# 7 F# 7
HK$’000 HK$'000

BN ER Fr 15 ¢ Current income tax
- BEBNEH - Hong Kong profits tax 29,993 50,012
—-HERECERER - Mainland China enterprise income tax 13,142 37,682
EEFFER (zE19) Deferred income tax (Note 19) 9,307 (12,169)
52,442 75,528

KEEEZERARZAFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited



ZEMBHMEME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26 FrE R X @

AEER SR AER OBRERERE
BREAERENONETHHERE

26 Income tax expense (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted

MERSENZRINT : average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated
entities as follows:
—EENE CZEBEZLHE
2008 2007
TET TET
HK$°000 HK$’000
TEEEAHERT Profit before income tax excluding
RAREHERRA share of profit/loss of
EBREBR AR AT associates and jointly controlled entities 82,100 418,925
LERREBE Tax calculated at weighted
B = Al 49 N #E £ 35 average domestic tax
i ETERNFIE rates applicable to profits in the
respective places/countries 22,837 81,900
HEFE . Tax effects of:
BERBTBA Income not subject to tax (1,023) (14,434)
OEIEE )3 Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 9,093 3,784
3 45 7 SRR FE P 1S B A Tax losses for which no deferred
BEEEFE income tax was recognised, net 27,293 9,930
RBEFERE(BZ) /FRZE (Over)under provision in prior years (1,218) 2,556
BEREZEE Effect of tax concession (5,317) (8,042)
BEEFEHENED Change in Hong Kong profits tax rate 335 —
HAth Others 442 (169)
BB X Tax charge 52,442 75,525
HORE 15 7R 1t 3 A B 2R Weighted average applicable
domestic tax rates 32.7% 19.6%
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26 FTEHB X @

REEE r HRE-ZZEN\FNA—H
EEBANSHBERI1TS%NE X B
16.5% » MO HIELES B RETEN
EoHEHHBE-SEAFT-A=T
— I EEREWEERBERAHBE
16.5%5 & °

THEMEFHERAG RSB TIEEANE
ETREBEVANMEERESBFHK -
ZEMBENEAUNTERRTE » &1
NETHREENBEIFERR kX
ERNGHBERENTE -

BE-ZZN\E+-A=1+-HL#HF
E BERCBREQATARAFEHER
FRRAX (ZE2LF  £)EFAR
BEEX -

27 BREA

(a) B

SRERABADRERDADRESR
B AELZE %4 33,325,000/
T (ZFEFLF 290,259,000 7T)
RERERTEERMETLHEN
1,268,400,00008 (= & & £ F
1,254,676,000/%) 5+ & o

to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26 Income tax expense (Continued)

During the year, as a result of the change in the Hong Kong
profits tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from 1 April
2008, deferred tax balances have been remeasured.
Deferred taxes expected to reverse from the year ending 31
December 2009 have been measured using the new rate of
16.5%.

The change in weighted average applicable domestic tax
rates, as stated above, is mainly caused by a change in mix
of profits earned by different group companies which are
subject to different tax rates, reversal of certain deferred tax
assets recognised in prior years, and the impact of reduction
in the Hong Kong profits tax rate.

There were no share of income tax expense of associates
and jointly controlled entities for the year ended 31 December
2008 (2007: Nil) included in the consolidated income
statement.

27 Earnings per share

(a) Basic

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company of approximately HK$33,325,000 (2007:
HK$290,259,000) and on the weighted average number
of approximately 1,268,400,000 (2007: 1,254,676,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

—EENF C—TTLF

2008 2007
RATBRERFEA Profit attributable to equity holders
EER (F#&x) of the Company (HK$’000) 33,325 290,259
ERTEERN Weighted average number of
MEEFEHH (FR) ordinary shares in issue (‘000) 1,268,400 1,254,676
BREXER (GEWL) Basic earnings per share (HK cents) 2.6 23.1
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27 BREF @

27 Earnings per share (Continued)

(b) #8 (b) Diluted

BERBFRNDBRABRKERE
EREYECSBRMAZEMET S
ERTEBRHEME - RER
PREEET & (M 5E20) T FRITHRM
AE-EBEHEZENEER
ARERBEBRITBREMMIE
BHNERBEEEHFTEABEE TR
BRFE(DARIRDNEBEH
MFIHE) WIBHRMDEHE - L
st ENRNDBEREBRRITERR
EMBEBTNRODHEFHER -

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. Shares issuable under the share option schemes
(Note 20) are the only dilutive potential ordinary shares. A
calculation is made in order to determine the number of
shares that could have been acquired at fair value
(determined as the average market price of the
Company’s shares in the relevant periods) based on the
monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options. The number of shares
calculated as above is compared with the number of
shares that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the share options.

—EEN\F —TTLF

2008 2007
RATREFE A Profit attributable to equity holders
FEAE &R (F %) of the Company (HK$’000) 33,325 290,259
MEEF e 84T Weighted average number of
EBREE (TR) ordinary shares in issue ('000) 1,268,400 1,254,676
AEERE (T0) Adjustment for share options ('000) — 19,815
SREBERFNWMETEY Weighted average number of
EBEREE (TR) ordinary shares for diluted
earnings per share ('000) 1,268,400 1,274,491
SREEER OBWL) Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) 2.6 22.8
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28 B 28 Dividends

—22N\E —TTLH
2008 2007
TERT TR
HK$’000 HK$'000

ERENZEERTHRKRE25 Interim dividend paid of HK2.5 cents

B (ZZZ+F : 3.3%14l) (2007: HK3.3 cents) per ordinary share 31,710 41,857

BESRTBERAKRYRE08 Proposed final dividend of HK0.8 cents
B (ZZEZ+F : 3.5%81l) (2007: HK3.5 cents) per ordinary share 10,147 44,394
41,857 86,251

R-EZAF=ZA-+ERAETHNERE
L EEEERESRALHR 20881
(ZZZLF 3581) -ZEEREAUE
RESHBERRLERMABESRE »
BERMABZ-_ZTAFE+=-A=1
- ALFENRBRAEAR -

KEEEZERARZAF  Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

At a meeting held on 25 March 2009, the Directors proposed
a final dividend of HKO0.8 cents (2007: HK3.5 cents) per
share. The proposed dividends have not been reflected as a
dividend payable in these financial statements, but will be
reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year
ending 31 December 2009.
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20 EEfBEE 29 Cash generated from operations
(a) EEFBRESHIIR (a) Reconciliation of cash generated from operations

—EEN\F —TTLF
2008 2007
FHT FiB

HK$’000 HK$'000

BRFT B AR R Profit before income tax 79,216 410,219
BTHRERE Adjustments for:
— B EE#E - Amortisation of intangible assets 7,133 11,473
—HELR T - Amortisation of leasehold land
5 PR and land use right 1,170 832
— ¥ BER - Depreciation of property,
RENE plant and equipment 92,471 64,284
— HENE HERZHE - Loss on disposal of property,
MEE plant and equipment 1,157 31
— BHRAEEREREE - Gain on derecognition of licence rights and
EANEERE NS related licence fees payable — (33,526)
— i ENEEREEEE - Gain from a change in estimate of
FiEE W= licence fees payable (650) (655)
— RH#Me - Share-based compensation 2,357 7,330
—BFEERE - Impairment of intangible assets 25,479 —
— W% BERZERE - Impairment of property,
plant and equipment 17,960 —
—HEESREERE - Impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets 26,000 —
— FERE—FE - Impairment of inventories, net 22,076 539
— BRSO E—FE - Impairment of receivables, net 40,156 6,386
—HEWA—FE - Finance income, net (6,653) (18,802)
— EEBEATER/ (8F) - Share of loss/(profit) of associates 2,884 (2,647)
— EhEAREHERESR - Share of loss of jointly controlled entities — 11,353
—EX (k&) /BE—3E - Exchange (gain)/loss, net (12,631) 8,870
EEELET ! Changes in working capital:
—FEEm - Increase in inventories (86,582)  (136,788)
—EREFRAR - Increase in trade and bills receivable (69,803) (233,318)
B2 m
— k& BARER - Increase in deposits, prepayments
H At B W iR 505 and other receivables (23,256) (65,054)
— EREZER - Increase in trade and bills payable 5,297 96,341
REMEEE M
— Bt RER A - Increase in accruals and other payables 14,352 63,128
FE £ 0k Z0 38 0
— XHENEERE - Payment of licence fees payable (8,578) (32,080)
EEMBRE Cash generated from operations 134,555 157,916
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29 EEFBHRES W 29 Cash generated from operations
(b) REERERP  LEWE - (b) In the cash flow statements, proceeds from disposal
KERZEMEREERRE of property, plant and equipment comprise

—EENE —FTLF

2008 2007

FEx FExT

HK$’000 HK$’000

R EFE (HEE7) Net book amount (Note 7) 3,339 2,137

HEME - #as Loss on disposal of property,

RFBENEE plant and equipment (1,157) (31)
HEME - #a Proceeds from disposal of property,

RFBEAERIE plant and equipment 2,182 2,106

(c) BEHBLAES (c) Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries

—BFN\F —TELHF
2008 2007
TER TERT
HK$’000 HK$°000

WES YR EER Net assets attributable to
BiEEFE minority interest acquired — 1,862
REBAEBHDH Excess of consideration
BREREDIREES H over the carrying
(BFEE21) value of the minority
interests acquired (Note 21) — (137)
WEREUARESHM Purchase consideration settled by cash — 1,725
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20 EEFBHEE®W 29 Cash generated from operations (Continued)

(d) HEKB QA ERE (d) Disposal of interest in a subsidiary

—EEN\F —TTLF
2008 2007
TR FBT

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHELERREZEN Net assets attributable to

EEFE minority interest disposed — 23,996
REBFFEELHERE  Excess of consideration over the carrying
BEMREES D value of the minority
(BF=E21) interests disposed (Note 21) — 134,116
HERBRIE Proceeds from the disposal — 158,112
LU 5 75 X &4 Satisfied by:
Re Cash — 128,571
BEEHEERT Direct costs of the disposal — (1,332)
DERRER Minority interest’s entitlement
FERE to dividend forgone — 30,873
—_ 158,112
30 XIAREE 30 Contingent liabilities
R-ZZBENE+=-A=+—-H  *&E As at 31 December 2008, the Group had no material
VWEEAIAREBE(ZESLEF  H) o contingent liabilities (2007: Nil).
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31 A — XKE 31 Commitments - Group
(a) EXREE (a) Capital commitments
REER BTN ERBENER Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date contracted
BT : but not yet provided for is as follows:
—EENE —EZEZLHF
2008 2007
FTERT THEx
HK$’°000 HK$’000
BRI HERBEN Property, plant and equipment
Mz HEREE contracted but not provided for 27,993 37,000
R=ZZEZENFE+-HA=+—-H" &K As at 31 December 2008, the Group had commitments
SEERZEOETRHPBERERILH to inject additional capital into certain subsidiaries
MEBABEABNIER  TELE established in Mainland China, totalling approximately
#115,525,0008 T (ZEE L F ! HK$115,525,000 (2007: HK$149,109,000).

149,109,00058 JT) °

(b) BEHERE (b) Operating lease commitments
AEBRELH BFRPAES The Group had future aggregate minimum lease
BrAHECERHEZRRER payments under non-cancellable operating leases of
HESMABEWT : land and buildings and office equipment, as follows:

—BEN\FE —TTLE
2008 2007
FHBT FBT

HK$’000 HK$'000

—FR Within one year 49,838 42,754
—EZHF Later than one year and not later than five years 88,829 98,056
hE# Later than five years 53,526 85,091

192,193 225,901
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N.EXBEH — RE

RZZTLFE=F > XEAUREKE
45,000,000 T WEZEBERARER
DNEEN25%BE - Bt AEERE
BREFARERADARANB AR WE
HEH0%EMETS% MEEEER W
ERAAREMBATAAREHEE

—EZtE+-H=1+—HIit X£EH
Pk BB £ 75 P A B Wi 22 45 104,681,000
BT RIFEEA11,914,0008 T (R EHE
FEELREFERER) - MEBER=-F
T+F-A-B%4%E AEFEHE=-ZF
E+FE+ A=+ -RALEFENRES
#3,357,501,0007% 7T & IR R FE 1k ) £ &
284,583,000 T °

R-ZZEZLFWA AEFURE
51,547,000 T L BEHBANEXSE
RAF ([LEERBAEE)NIERE
EE® - LBEEBANBEEERLATR L
BRESERZEEDRNERK - B
BEE-_ZZtE+-A=+t—-HL "
AEBFREEEREENKE S
52,051,000 7t & 4 £l & 3,012,000/8
Lol BR-_ZTLtE—-HF—H&
£ AEEBE-ZEELE+-A=T
—BEFERNKEEAHS3,339,750,000%
TR BRREMREF£291,012,0008 7T °

32 Business combination - Consolidated

In March 2007, the Group acquired an additional 25% equity
interest in Win Sports Limited at a cash consideration of
HK$45,000,000. Thereafter, the Group’s equity interest in Win
Sports Limited and its subsidiaries was increased from 50%
to 75%, and Win Sports Limited and its subsidiaries have
been changed from jointly controlled entities to subsidiaries
of the Group. The acquired business contributed revenue of
HK$104,681,000 and net loss of HK$11,914,000 (excluding
the share of loss of jointly controlled entities) to the Group for
the period from acquisition to 31 December 2007. If the
acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2007, Group’s revenue
would have been HK$3,357,501,000 and profit attributable to
equity holders would have been HK$284,583,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2007.

In April 2007, the Group acquired the distribution and retail
business of Shanghai Huiteli Enterprise Company Limited
(the “Shanghai Huiteli Business”) at a consideration of
HK$51,547,000. Shanghai Huiteli Enterprise Company
Limited was engaged in the distribution and retail of
sportswear in Shanghai, Mainland China. The acquired
business contributed revenue of HK$52,051,000 and net
profit of HK$3,012,000 to the Group for the period from
acquisition to 31 December 2007. If the acquisition had
occurred on 1 January 2007, Group’s revenue would have
been HK$3,339,750,000 and profit attributable to equity
holders would have been HK$291,012,000 for the year ended
31 December 2007.
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R.E¥¥E0 — KEew 32 Business combination - Consolidated (Continued)
FBEEFEREENFEROT ! Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:
RERE b}

AR BERBAEE
BRAE Shanghai

Win Sports Huiteli a5t
Limited Business Total
TERT TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WEERE Purchase consideration:
ReAE Cash consideration 45,000 51,547 96,547
ERWENEEMAX Direct expenses relating
to the acquisitions 477 — 477
WEREREE Total purchase consideration 45 477 51,547 97,024
o EREESEEEE Add: Carrying value of interests in
R E & jointly controlled entities 3,128 — 3,128
W FTKEBFEENAFE  Less: Fair value of net assets acquired (35,597) (28,552) (64,149)
5k Goodwill 13,008 22,995 36,003
FAEDIRYEAE2EDRSEE The goodwill relates to sportswear retail business in Mainland
¥ FERERWBEAREBHER China is attributable to the profitability of the acquired
RENRTEHE W R MmN B K fEE company/business and the resulting synergies relating to the
ENDHERBEEBAGANE - distribution and retail business in Mainland China expected to

arise from the acquisitions.
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2 ¥¥EH —HRE®@

KEFREENEEREGBNT !

32 Business combination - Consolidated (Continued)

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisitions are as
follows:

RERB L
AR ERANER
BERAF Shanghai

Win Sports Huiteli &5t
Limited Business Total
TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B FEEE Net assets acquired
HE Licence rights 3,726 — 3,726
EFER Customer relationships = 2,005 2,005
M WEREE Property, plant and equipment 4,562 — 4,562
"8 Inventories 44,492 22,689 67,181
EHEZRAZARZE Trade and bills receivable 31,067 = 31,067
e BEARER Deposits, prepayments and
H fth P& Y IR X other receivables 8,194 3,858 12,052
ReRBRITES Cash and bank balances 36,689 — 36,689
BNEZRIREE Trade and bills payable (52,143) — (52,143)
FE 5T 1R 30 & EL 4th B {3 R 5K Accruals and other payables (13,685) — (13,685)
EHRTER Short-term bank loans (8,545) — (8,545)
BNEERE Licence fees payable (6,894) — (6,894)
47,463 28,552 76,015
B OHRERESR Less: minority interest (11,866) — (11,866)
FEFEEZATE Fair values of net assets acquired 35,597 28,552 64,149
WEREREE Total purchase consideration 45 477 51,547 97,024
BB ARNRER Cash and cash equivalents in
BeZEY subsidiaries acquired (36,689) — (36,689)
HHESERIRREE Settled by offsetting with
trade receivables — (32,468) (32,468)
FEFRE (BERESHIRR Consideration payable (included in
R E A EFIRKA) accruals and other payables) — (762) (762)
WEEESR Cash outflow on acquisition 8,788 18,317 27,105
BRTREBSHIFERNELERREF Except for the licence rights and customer relationships
BEN FUBEBENEEREEND arising from business combinations, the fair values of the

FEEHREERE

assets and liabilities of the acquired businesses approximate
their carrying amounts.
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BBEEIRS

1ﬁ—HﬁﬁEﬁET§‘RFﬁ}§T”“%ﬂ%—H‘R
HE-FTNMEREBEREAEAZE
N UREAREHNIABLABEATE
E ARABEES -

AEERERBRELEETMALZA
FQuinta Asia Limited (B 2K 2D )
2E - ZATEBAL DR AK58.56%K
B o AQEESERABQuinta Asia
Limited & ZER A F °

BRRUEEGEETBHRRPEMIBD AR
BEN FAEBHEBELEETUTE
BR5:

(a) HE& m

to the Consolidated Financial Statements

33 Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered
to be related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence.

The Group is controlled by Quinta Asia Limited (the
immediate holding company), a company incorporated in the
British Virgins Islands, which owns 58.56% of the Company’s
shares. The Company’s directors regard Quinta Asia Limited
as being the ultimate holding company.

Apart from those disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the following significant transactions
were carried out with related parties:

(a) Sales of goods

—BEN\FE —TTLE
2008 2007
TR BT

HK$’000 HK$'000

MEARDERR — Minority shareholder of a subsidiary -
Umbro International Umbro International Limited 31,803 57,702
Limited
REBHLFZEEER —  Jointly controlled entities of the Group -
ENZEREAR Guangzhou Win Sports Limited * — 6,579
BRAR*
EEUERA A Sport Corners Limited * — 1,160
31,803 65,441

ERRerHENERHE -

BZEARAHEEERTARERE
SEARZEHEERNHER - &2
BH-ZZLENA-AERANE

N

*
=]

|

o|
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Goods are sold at prices mutually agreed by both parties.

*  Sales of goods to these companies were included for the
period when they were jointly controlled entities of the
Group. The companies have become subsidiaries effective
from 1 April 2007.
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BHEEIRZ @

(b) BE&m

33 Related party transactions (Continued)

(b) Purchases of goods

“BBN\F —TBLE
2008 2007
TET FHET
HK$’000 HK$°000
MEBARDHRER - Minority shareholders of subsidiaries -
Umbro International Umbro International Limited 1,857 1,469
Limited
Diadora S.P.A Diadora S.p.A. 24 —
AEEBE DR - Associate of the Group -
Fu Jin Bowker Fu Jin Bowker Company Limited 119,549 180,123
Company Limited
121,430 181,592

4

Y

\

(c) BERBREE®E

mEELHENEREE -

parties.

(c) Purchases of services and royalty

Goods are purchased at prices mutually agreed by both

—EEN\F ZEELHF
2008 2007
F#E T FE T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BERK Purchases of services
MEARLHRE - Minority shareholder of a subsidiary -
Umbro International Umbro International Limited 320 1,790
Limited
AEENLREHER - Jointly controlled entity of the Group -
Gadlee International Inc. Gadlee International Inc. 5,756 5,619
6,076 7,409
Ef/ENEEE Royalty paid/payable
MEARLHRE - Minority shareholder of a subsidiary -
Umbro International Umbro International Limited 64,869 53,561
Limited

RERBIESREIHENER

BEAELTUINNAS -

Purchases of services primarily relate to commission paid

to related parties on the basis mutually agreed by both

parties.
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BEEFRS ! 33 Related party transactions (Continued)
(d) &, BEEREBREFESE (d) Year-end balances arising from sales/purchases of
ZERER goods and services

—BFN\F —TELHF
2008 2007
TER TR
HK$’000 HK$°000

EWEELME Receivables from related parties
(BEREKREZESRAA) :  (included in trade receivables):

WELARIBRRER Minority shareholder of a subsidiary -
Umbro International Umbro International Limited 2,022 8,556
Limited
ENBELME Payables to related parties
(BEEMGESRR) (included in trade payables):
WEATDHRE— Minority shareholder of a subsidiary -
Umbro International Umbro International Limited 2,920 781
Limited
Diadora S.P.A Diadora S.p.A. 2 —
REBBHLENT — Associate of the Group -
Fu Jin Bowker Fu Jin Bowker Company Limited 46,077 28,832

Company Limited

48,999 29,613

FE BB A 2 E Payable to a related party

(BERESEESR (included in accruals

HMEFBESR) and other payables):
MEATDERE— Minority shareholder of a subsidiary -

Umbro International Umbro International Limited 12,544 22,615

Limited

FEREABKIARER-—RES All amounts are unsecured and payable within normal
FEEHRXM - trade credit terms.
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(e) BN B QKA

()

BAMBLARARELAHEER &
ERAREAKEE -

33 Related party transactions (Continued)

(e) Amounts due to subsidiaries

Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

FTEEBAEMS () Key management compensation
—2BN\F —BTLF
2008 2007
FTHET F&T
HK$’000 HK$’000
e BARER Salaries, bonus and allowances 24,602 14,934
EREFR — RE Retirement benefits - defined
HREE contribution schemes 106 96
B 10 #R B — Share-based compensation
=B R expense - share options granted 2,357 7,003
27,065 22,033

—ZZ/\£F3§ 2008 Annual Report
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EREHS  BXEIEHEN LU THE
AALTRS :

[Exg] AATEEE

[ 2] KESEERERAF -
R-ZEZERF+-A+=
AEMERSEMA LMW
THREERA A

[BEEAL] tHRAFEERE

[Diadora®:@ ] Diadora S.p.A. (A E K7
A A B R E B
YNE]

[Diadora HK] Diadora Hong Kong
Limited » % Diadora&
NE2EBAR

[Diadora ENE Diadora@ Z M E M

Eml WRER  FEAERR
9 5 85

[E=] RATES

REE:N BN B B2

[ KA | HE AR B BBR
RELE

[AEE ] RATREKBA A

[l ERAEERET

(&5 HEEBERTRE

[EmBH] EARRNHABEEIRE
ENBEH B=ZZFAEF
ABAB(EH=)

[EmRA ERBMERZMABRLA A

ExEmRA

In this annual report, unless the context states otherwise, the

following expression have the following meanings:

“Board”

“Company”

“Connected Perosn”

“Diadora Group”

“Diadora HK”

“Diadora Products”

“Director(s)”
“EU”

“Greater China”

“Group” or “we” or

“our” or “us”

“HKS’

“Hong Kong”

“Listing Date”

“Listing Rules”

KEEEZERARZAFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited

the board of Directors of the Company

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited, an
exempted company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on
13 December 2005

has the meaning ascribed to it under
the Listing Rule

Diadora S.p. A., a company incorporated
in Italy, and its subsidiaries

Diadora Hong Kong Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Diadora Group

products bearing the Diadora trademark
and distributed in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and Macau

the director(s) of the Company
the European Union

Mainland China, Macau, Hong Kong
and Taiwan region

the Company and its subsidiaries

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency
of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in the PRC

the date of commencement of dealings
in our Shares on the Main Board, which
is on Wednesday, 6 September 2006

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited



A% Glossary

[E#] RYERZXFAIZERATERE  “Main Board” the stock market operated by the Stock
RIBENRETR S (FE Exchange prior to the establishment of
FHETS)  HEFEER the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Pt Bl 3 A [2) B P B QA S Stock Exchange (excluding the options
& (ERRE ERFAEBE market) and which stock market
B 32 B R 4R continues to be operated by the Stock

Exchange in parallel with the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange (for avoidance of doubt, the
Main Board excludes the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock

Exchange)
[NYL] New York Laundryfy f /& “NYL” a brand named New York Laundry
Z%
[R% EREEEBNGR 8 “OEM” acronym for original equipment
£ER TEESOHEHMEEFK manufacturer, a business that
BURARENERIF manufactures or purchases from other
B NMELREBHRE=A manufacturers and possibly modifies
BE goods or equipment for branding and
resale by others
[BEE] BREH2.28B THBRERE “Offer Price” the offer price of HK$2.28 per share
[BXABER RADE LA B A “Pre-IPO Share the options granted by the Company to
7 B B 42 EBEETEER —BER Option(s)” certain employees and a consultant of
=B B R the Group prior to the listing of the
Company
[FE]s REARAENE  FEE “PRC” or the People’s Republic of China, excluding
[FEAE] FE BARAE “Mainland China” Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
[AR®] TEIEEEBARY “RMB” Renminbi, the lawful currency of the
PRC
[ 1n ] KARRKRATEREE “Share(s)” the share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the
0.107% T 19 % 17 share capital of the Company
[R3R] ARERER “Shareholders” shareholders of the Company
[ B 32 Frr | EBBERSZMERA “Stock Exchange” the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
A RERBRRSZREEM Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
BERABNZENE A A Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited
[REFTEBR] REFTREKBEAT “T&S Group” T&S HK and its subsidiaries
[REFT] REXTERAT AL “T&S HK” Team & Sports Limited, a 60%-owned
B 5 60%4E &= [ MY B 2 subsidiary of the Company
= o
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[TSG BVI] TSG (BVI) Limited » R

ZEEEMR LN E

[REEHE] TSG BVIR HKE R &

Umbro plc @ R EE %
REMETHAT  RE
MBAR  HBEAaRE
AESMBARSEZ R
AEHHLF

[Umbro%E |

[Umbro
DR

Umbro International

Limited (Umbro% B #) &
F-XHKERQA) ET&S
HKR=ZZtE-AN\A
FTYM DR BRR
EXRFEHEERD
UmbroE @ & #ft Umbro&
B 8 A UmbroE f il 5] 3
#IUmbroE & #& 7 %

[Umbro
HEERE]

REFTEUmbroE B
& Umbro Licensing
LimitedR=ZZ—F 1 A
“tNBFINEERER
Z UEHERBERHEE
R 28 UmbroE fm

R 35 Umbro7 85 1 & & A
Umbrofm BN &£ B 72 85
MiEEEBRREMAR

[Umbro& & |

ENBERE
EEBRERARARAT
D B E 75% MR FE R B
INE

[ZE£H
[KFE ]

EEREWBLR

KEBEBERAR AKX
N E EEEE 100%E & 1Y
iG]

[KESE] KEREWB LA

“TSG BVI”

“TSG Group”

“Umbro Group”

“Umbro Distributor
Agreement”

“Umbro Licence
Agreement”

“Umbro Products”

“Us”

“Win Sports”

“Win Sports Group”

“Winor”

“Winor Group”

KEEEZERARZAFT  WinHanverky Holdings Limited

TSG (BVI) Limited,
incorporated in the BVI

a company

TSG BVI and its subsidiaries

Umbro plc, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange of London, and its
subsidiaries, associates and entities or
companies controlled by it or its
subsidiaries or its associates

the distributor agreement dated 8
February 2007 and entered between
Umbro International Limited, one of the
members of the Umbro Group, and T&S
HK in respect of the sale and
distribution of Umbro Products in the
Greater China and purchases of Umbro
Products from the Umbro Group,
superseding the Umbro Licence
Agreement

the licence agreement entered into
between T&S HK and Umbro Licensing
Limited, a member of the Umbro Group,
on 24 May 2001 in respect of the sale
and distribution of Umbro Products in
the PRC and Hong Kong

a selected range of sportswear and
other products bearing the Umbro brand
and distributed by us pursuant to the
Umbro Distributor Agreement

the United States of America

Win Sports Limited, a 75%-owned
subsidiary of the Company

Win Sports and its subsidiaries

Winor International Company Limited,
being an indirect 100% owned
subsidiary of our Company

Winor and its subsidiaries
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